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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

FY 2018
—2-NF
BB E

HK$’million B & & T

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

FY 2017
—T—+F
BT E

HK$’ million B &7t

(Restated) (& =E3l)

Revenue =E 2] 45,994.4 43,371.3 +6%
EBITDA® *Egﬂi%ggxu* 10,212.2 10,442.4 -2%
Profit before tax* FRBE A& R 7,621.3 8,348.4 -9%
Net profit attributable to owners  Z<7A T)#&8 A FE(L 4 F)

of the Company

— Underlying net profit* — E AR 4,603.1 5,589.1 -18%

— Reported net profit —BRmEARF 6,075.8 5,5693.4 +9%
Basic earnings per share SREXRER

— Based on underlying net profit* — AR FIGTE HK$4.313i& T HK$5.3583% 7T -20%

- Based on reported net profit —EREAFEE HK$5.692% T HK$5.363/% 7T +6%
Interim dividend per share ERTEHRKRE HK60 centsi&{ll HKB0 centsi& Il -
Special interim dividend per share SRS FIHERE HK50 centsi# 1l - NATERE
Proposed final dividend per share EZSRAKE HK70 centsi&{l HK100 centsi1Il -30%
Net asset value per share BREERE HK$43.738 T HK$43.23% 7T +1%
Net gearing FRMELR 37% 20%

* Excluding: * N
(1) Gain on fair value changes of investment properties with gross amount of ) REMERNHERE) 2 W Bl RIEE

HK$174.9 million , net amount of HK$138.0 million after sharing by non-
controlling shareholders and deferred tax (2017: gross amount of HK$54.3
million, net amount of HK$41.6 million after sharing by non-controlling
shareholders and deferred tax).

2 Share-based payments of HK$3.1million in 2017 (2018: Nil).
Q) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$2,089.8 million (2017: Nil).
(4) Written off of property, plant and equipment with gross amount of

HK$764.1 million, net amount of HK$755.1 million after sharing by non-
controlling shareholders (2017: Nil).

5) Impairment loss recognized on available-for-sale investments of HK$34.2
million, net of portion shared by non-controlling shareholders in 2017 (2018:

Nil).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Kingboard
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to report satisfactory results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2018. During the year, the electronics sector has met with
weaker demand owing to the US-China trade friction and a slowdown in
domestic consumption in China. Against this adverse backdrop, the laminates
and printed circuit boards (“PCBs”) divisions have responded by adopting
a proactive sales strategy and effectively optimising their product portfolios,
thereby driving continual sales growth. The chemicals division benefited from
the state’s supply-side reform to eliminate backward production capacity.
With the steady price increases of major chemical products and the division’s
capability in cost control, the division recorded significant growth. The
properties division recorded a substantial improvement in its profit margin
from residential property sales, helped by a surge in the average selling price
of the booked projects. The commercial property portfolio for leasing also
registered rental income growth on the back of higher occupancy rates.

Revenue of the Group increased 6% to HK$45,994.4 million in 2018, posting
an underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items) of HK$4,603.1 million,
down by 18%. Taking into account a pre-tax gain of HK$2,089.8 million from
the disposal of a subsidiary, reported net profit increased 9% to HK$6,075.8
million. The Group maintained a robust financial position and the Board has
therefore proposed a final dividend of HK70 cents per share, subject to
approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). Together
with the interim dividend of HKB0 cents per share and the special interim
dividend of HK50 cents per share, this will constitute a full-year dividend of
HK180 cents per share.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ 587 #f

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®HE

PERFORMANCE

Being the world’s largest laminates producer, the Group is equipped with a
sophisticated and comprehensive vertically integrated production chain. The
laminates division was thus able to rapidly respond to demand changes amid
weakened market conditions. By increasing the sales of high-value-added
products, the division was able to raise its average selling price. Segment
turnover (including inter-segment sales) increased by 3% to HK$17,144.9
million. However, because of the rapid price increase of raw materials such
as copper and chemicals, the price increase of laminates was unable to
fully cover cost surge, thus profit margin was depressed. Earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) declined by 21% to
HK$3,536.5 million.

As the technology for 5G telecommunications networks matured and was
ready for take-off, demand for related equipment has remained robust. The
PCB division was effectively upgrading its product mix towards the higher
end, thereby driving the sales of high-value-added items. With the completion
of the acquisition of a PCB factory in Huizhou, Guangdong Province, its
capacity was effectively utilised to fuel a more broad-based growth for the
division. Growth in orders from automobile and home appliance sectors was
witnessed, and there was an enhancement in the overall client portfolio. As
a result, the PCB division reported a segment turnover growth of 19% to
HK$9,754.1 million. However, as production efficiency of high-grade products
has not reached optimal level, costs remained high. EBITDA dropped 11% to
HK$1,051.1 million.

Competition in China’s chemical industry has become less intense as the
state tightened safety and environmental requirements, driving backward
capacities out of the market. As the supply and demand conditions improve,
the sector is poised for a new upward cycle. Demand for major chemicals,
including caustic soda, acetic acid and phenol acetone, remained robust
leading to year-on-year price surges. This has driven the segment’s turnover
(including inter-segment sales) to increase 15% to HK$16,150.3 million. The
Group has also capitalised on its competence in management, environmental
standards and cost control to fully reflect the price increases in profit growth,
posting an EBITDA of HK$2,114.8 million, up significantly by 30%.
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PERFORMANCE (continued)

Sales from Huagiao Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 3 and Phase 4, Kunshan
Development Zone Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 2, Jiangyin Kingboard Yu
Garden Phase 1 and Huaian Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 1 and Zhangpu
Yu Garden were partially booked during the year. As the property segment
continued to be affected by housing control measures, the booking of
unit sales has dropped. Taken together with rental income of HK$1,055.8
million, property segment turnover decreased 28% to HK$4,685.8 million.
Nevertheless, with rising average selling prices, the yield from property
sales showed a notable improvement, driving a 10% increase in EBITDA to
HK$2,170.0 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial and liquidity position continued to be robust. As at
31 December 2018, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$25,502.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$25,184.1 million)
and 2.36 (31 December 2017: 2.26) respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$7,473 million. A total of HK$31,925 million
bank facilities were available, of which HK$27,514 million, or 86%, had been
utilised as at 31 December 2018, to finance the Group’s investment, capital
expenditures and for working capital purposes.

The net working capital cycle increased from 41 days as at 31 December
2017 to 42 days as at 31 December 2018 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, was 30 days (31
December 2017: 23 days).

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days, was 50 days (31
December 2017: 53 days).

- Trade and bills payables (excluding bills payables for acquisition of

properties, plant and equipment), in terms of creditors turnover days,
was 38 days (31 December 2017: 35 days).

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERKRE

ﬁW%%@E%EEE&@%~EM%%E@
HRTEE —H - TREEMEE B ERE
E%%I*%&%ﬁ%*l%EEZ% D E
AR - RN BT REERETE - ATAKRE
8B T - BRESWATEETAENT
EEAT FHEMMALEEFETIR28%E
O+AENTHERBENTEET  BEBEBF
BEELT  MEHEQRREZILMN - R0
BAME - HE TEREEZANTRR
BIMO%E—+—BETEET -

REBEE RUBARR

SEMNMBRRFERSER SRR _Z
—NFE+ZA=+T—RAZRBEEFES
TEATHREZS B —TEBAL(ZE—tF
+-A=+-H:ZBREt-EBATOE—t
BEIL) Bk ERA236(ZT—tF+ A
=+—H:226) -

RZT—N\F+ZA=+—8 REEZHESE
FREESEBENALTHEELT=ZEEH
Lo RZE—NF+ZA=+—8  AJHAH
BITHMEAEA=E—TNLE=ZTREES
T ER—BHETRE-THEEBTK86%
EWEA - M%H$¢l%ﬁﬁ\ﬁ$iﬁu

MEAE—REEESHE
FEEEeRAER T —+F+_A=+—
Aem+—H ﬁMi—giﬂﬁ+—ﬂ

=t+—HBHHm+—/ - @

- FEREHA=TRH(ZZT—
A=+—R8:=+=H)-

TtF+=

- BEHEREEBEHAATH(CZE
—tFEFT-A=t+—H:A+=R)-

- O REBREMRFBER(TRIERE
BEME BERREZEAERE) R
=StNB(ZE—+tF+=-A=+—
H:=+FA)-



BEEEARAQA

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®HE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The principal of the total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$27,514 million as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: approximately HK$19,088 million), approximately HK$26,890 million
(31 December 2017: approximately HK$18,120 million) of which was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All of the bank loans of the Group bore
variable-interest rates.

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest-bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) was 37% as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: 20%), while the proportion of bank borrowings between
short term and long term stood at 26%:74% (31 December 2017: 28%:72%).
During the year, the Group invested HK$2.9 billion and HK$2.2 billion in
new production capacity and property construction expenses respectively.
Backed by a highly experienced professional management team, the Group is
confident that these investments will deliver stable and satisfactory returns to
Shareholders over the long term.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. It did
not enter into any material derivative financial instruments, nor did the Group
have any material foreign exchange exposure during the year. The Group’s
revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a global workforce of
approximately 41,900 (31 December 2017: 42,800) to cope with business
requirements. In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the Group
grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based on the Group’s overall financial achievements and individual
employee performance. The Group’s continued success relies on a solid
human resources strategy. The establishment of the Kingboard Institute
of Management helps nurture middle and senior managers. In addition, in
response to the economic policy of Greater Bay Area, the Group recruits
fresh graduates from mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan every year for
focused training and development. This talent pool will give the Group new
impetus to its long-term development.
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PROSPECTS

The Group enters 2019 in good shape, with earnings capability strengthened
and core divisions working closely to create strong synergies. The Group has
built a visible advantage in production efficiency, research and development,
and environmental transformation. In the coming year, the management
team will actively expand market shares while working tirelessly to explore
new development opportunities. And with the opportunity of development of
Greater Bay Area, the Group looks forward to achieving solid growth in the
years ahead.

With the help of 5G telecommunications network upgrades, the electronics
industry is witnessing a steady rebound in demand and broad-based growth
momentum. Laminate prices are already on an upward track. To cope with
market requirement for more sophisticated products, the laminates division
will pledge its full efforts in enhancing its portfolio of thin, high-frequency
high-speed and halogen-free laminates. The proportion of sales of high-
value-adding products is expected to significantly increase. New laminates
facilities in Jiangmen and Shaoguan, Guangdong Province and Thailand are
scheduled to be commissioned in phases within this year, propelling the
division into a new growth cycle.

The PCB division also expects strong order growth as investments in 5G
telecommunications projects increase. The division has made early moves to
add high-precision and automated equipment to its production plants, which
are now well prepared for a major leap in facilities utilisation. This business
line will also benefit from the country’s stimulus policies as well as promotional
campaigns for automobiles and home appliances. The PCB division is
well on track for admirable growth. Led by the market and aiming to fulfil
ardent demand, the division will progressively expand capacities for PCBs
designated for such growth sectors as telecommunications and automobiles.

As the supply-side reform continues in China, the chemical division will seek
to optimise resources deployment and to further its environmental protection
efforts. The Group will adopt a highly efficient, low-carbon production model
as it continues to expand in the scope of basic and fine chemicals. With the
exit of backward capacities, it is believed that chemical prices will stabilise
to more profitable levels. Work to add new caustic soda and epichlorohydrin
production lines to the halogens chemical plant in Hengyang, Hunan Province
has been completed and is ramping up to full capacity. The division is also
seeking to duplicate its high-efficiency production model in China in other
overseas markets.
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P ROS P ECTS (continued)

The property division plans to expedite sales of residential projects in Eastern
China in order to improve the cash flow cycle. The Kau To project in Shatin,
Hong Kong is expected to be launched this year. The development comprises
56 houses and 48 apartments, and will be introduced to the market upon
completion. Rental income is also expected to steadily increase on the back
of higher occupancies for the division’s Shanghai commercial properties and
the expiry of rent-free periods for tenants.

Development and trial production of the modular version of the graphite floor
heating product line has been completed, with a full sale launch targeted
for this year. This new modular system will help streamline the installation
process and enhance the quality and energy efficiency standards. The Group
will increase capacity for this product, which is expected to contribute new
growth drivers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our Shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEAEZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 63, BBS, is the chairman and a co-founder
of the Group, and the chairman and a non-executive director of Elec &
Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary of the
Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”)
and dual-listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was the chairman and director of Kingboard Copper
Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”) which is the subsidiary of the Company listed
on the SGX up to 3 January 2012. Mr. Cheung is a director of Hallgain
Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan, the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin
Sang and the father of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components including
laminates prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction
and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight
in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong
Business Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006. In
2011, Mr. Cheung was awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Mr. Cheung was appointed as a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China. In 2017, Mr. Cheung was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 52, is the managing director of the Group. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 29 years’ experience in laminates production. Mr.
Chang graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in marine electronics. He is responsible for the Group’s phenol/
acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and in Huizhou, Guangdong
province. He was re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive
director of EEIC with effect from 1 August 2014.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 54, is the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Shing. He joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB industry
since 1984 with particularly extensive experience in marketing components
and materials required for PCB production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the Group’s chemical business operations and property developments in
southern China.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EEREREBAECER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 64, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing
and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Ka Shing. He joined the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s
chemical business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a non-
executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 48, is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing, the sister-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the auntie of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing.
She joined the Group in 2002. Ms. Cheung was appointed as an executive
director and the vice chairperson of EEIC with effect from 1 August 2014 and
responsible for the strategic planning of EEIC. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked as an administration assistant manager in a listed company for about
5 years.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Shing, aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 1 August 2014. He joined the Group in 2009 and is
responsible for the property development business of the Group in eastern
China. Mr. Cheung obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in the study of
Management with International Business at the University of London in 2009.
Mr. Cheung is the son of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms. Cheung
Wai Lin, Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and nephew-in-law of Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director
on 11 January 2011. He joined the Group in 1996 and is currently the chief
financial controller of the Group in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
He is responsible for the management of the finance and tax matters of the
Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with the finance and
economics department of the government of the PRC for 12 years. Mr. Chen
graduated from Jiangxi Finance and Economics University (formerly known
as Jiangxi Finance and Economics Institution) in 1990. He is an accountant
certified by the finance department of the government of the PRC.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2015. Mr.
Cheung has extensive experience in the performance and cultural sector. Mr.
Cheung has participated in a number of community associations, including
the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Honorary
Secretary); The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee
(First, Second and Third Election Committee Member); Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of PRC Election Committee (Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh
Election Committee Member) and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2010. Mr. Cheung was elected as the Hong Kong deputy to the 12th National
People’s Congress in December 2012. Mr. Cheung was an independent
non-executive director of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (stock code:
00391), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. CHONG Kin Ki, aged 63, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in 1 July 2016. He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in 1980. He became a Fellow of the
Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1984, a Foundation Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in 1993, a Foundation Fellow of the Hong
Kong College of Surgeons in 1993. Dr. Chong has been a private medical
practitioner since 1989 and become a Registered Specialist in General
Surgery since 1993.

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 72, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 1 October 2016. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong
in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting and auditing matters,
having worked in the auditing profession for over 30 years, 20 years of which
he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers in
2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and
1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Leung is an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (“KLHL”"), a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director
of two other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838) and
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0657).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EEREREBAECER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHAN Wing Kee, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 July, 2017. He received a
Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in 1970 and he has over 35
years of experience in the textiles and garment manufacturing industry. Mr.
Chan joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (stock code: 294), a garment
manufacturer, in 1970 as was appointed as a managing director in 1987
and has been an executive director of which since then. He is an executive
director of YGM Trading Limited (stock code: 375), a marketer and builder
of international apparel brands in Asia. He is a Standing Committee Member
of The 10th, 11th and 12th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of
China; Ex-member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau
Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-
Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 45, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company
secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a 70.79% owned subsidiary listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2018 in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are set out in Notes 47, 20 and 21
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 can
be found in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which are specific to
the Group and/or the industries in which the Group operates. These risks may
materially affect the Group’s business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and business prospects. The Group has identified the key risks
and uncertainties as follows:

Product defects

The products of the Group may contain defects that can only be detected
when the electronics systems into which they are incorporated are in use.
The Group could be exposed to significant liability claims in the event that its
products are found to be defective. While the Group has implemented sound
systems to monitor its products at various stages of its production processes,
no assurance can be given that the Group’s products are free of defects.
Any significant liability claims could have an adverse impact on the results of
operations and reputation of the Group.

Customer contracts

The Group typically enters into one-off purchase orders with its customers. As
such, the amount of purchase orders may vary significantly from time to time,
and it is difficult to forecast the amount of orders to be received by the Group
in the future. No assurance can be given that the Group’s customers will
continue to place purchase orders with it in the future in similar amounts to
prior periods, if at all. As a result, the results of operations of the Group may
vary significantly in the future.

Competitive industry

The business segments in which the Group operates are highly competitive.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to compete
successfully against its current competitors or emerging companies in
the future. If the Group fails to compete effectively, the Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and business prospects may be materially and
adversely affected.
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BUS' N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions

The recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions have adversely
affected economies and businesses around the world. A slowdown in the
global economy, in particular, the PRC economy, could lead to a reduction in
demand for the Group’s products and may materially and adversely affect its
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks and uncertainties stated above are not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks or uncertainties that are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. The Group
endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, waste reduction and energy saving. For instance, the in-house
manufacturing facilities of the Group operate in compliance with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations. The Group reviews its environmental
policies on a regular basis.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the ESG Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on our website within three months from
the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group and its business operations are subject to various laws, rules and
regulations. The Company seeks to ensure adherence to such laws, rules
and regulations through various measures such as internal controls, approval
procedures, staff trainings and oversight of business operations at different
levels of the Group. The Board also monitors the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations on a regular
basis.

So far as the Directors and senior management are aware, for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group has obtained the approvals, permits,
consents, licences and registrations required for its business and operations,
and there was no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations by our
Group that have a significant impact on the Group.
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BUS' N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers in order to operate in a
sustainable manner and to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

The Company strongly believes that employees are its most important
and valuable assets. In order to recognise the performance of and provide
incentives for its employees, the Group reviews its policies on remuneration
and benefits for its employees regularly to ensure that they are in line with the
market standard. The Group reviews and improves catering, residence and
recreational facilities and services to provide a pleasant living environment to
the employees regularly. The Group organises various recreational activities
for its staff to participate to maintain a close relationship with its employees.

The Company maintains sound relationships with its customers and suppliers
which enable the Group to foster long term business benefits. The Directors
and senior management of the Company endeavours to exchange business
ideas and updates of the Group with its customers and suppliers from time to
time. To maintain its competitiveness, the Group aims to deliver high quality
of products and services to its customers.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 68.

An interim dividend of HK60 cents per ordinary share and special interim
dividend of HK50 cents per ordinary share amounting to HK$649,891,000
and HK$541,576,000 in aggregate respectively was paid to the Shareholders
during the year. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK70 cents per ordinary share to the Shareholders on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 4 June 2019, being the record
date for determining the entitlement of Shareholders to the proposed final
dividend, amounting to HK$758,207,000, in aggregate, and the retention of
the remaining profit in the Company.

For the final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2018 proposed
by the Directors and subject to the approval by the Shareholders in
the forthcoming annual general meeting, please refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend policy, the objective of which is to allow
the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s future growth. The declaration,
form, frequency and amount of dividend paid by the Company must be in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations and subject to the articles of
association of the Company. In deciding whether to declare any dividend,
the Board will take into account a number of factors, including the financial
results, the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity requirements,
and the current and future development plans of the Company. The Board
will review the dividend policy of the Company as appropriate from time to
time.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held in aggregate approximately
HK$10,410 million investments in equity and debt instruments,
representing 11% of the total asset of the Group as at 31 December
2018, of which approximately HK$1,455 million and HK$8,955
million respectively were equity and debt instruments, representing
approximately 2% and 9% respectively of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2018. These equity and debt instruments consist
of mostly securities listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
bonds issued mainly by companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Group acquired its equity and debt instruments through
on-market purchases. The Group will from time to time monitor the price
movement of prices in securities and bonds and may adjust its investment
portfolio as and when appropriate.
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INVESTMENTS (continued) ?ﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)
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By leveraging our experience in sales and rental properties, our major
investments in available-for-sale investments/equity and debt instruments
has focused mainly on the debt instruments of issuers engaging in the
properties sector. Our investment objectives are to diversify the investment
portfolio and generate stable income. The following table sets out the major
debt instruments held by the Group as at 31 December 2018:

Fair value

as at

31 December

Name of investments 2018
RZE—NF

Bond
interest for
the Period

+=A
=1+—H B

AT
HK$'000
Fi87

fR5FFIE
HK$'000
THETL

EERZFRERA R (RBRP LT
LD RS+ 2007 )IRHT DK E S 32 5 P
BRAR(THRM]) LRz ES

Bonds listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”) by Country Garden Holdings Limited
(HK stock code: 2007)

(i) fixed coupon interest 4.75% per annum and maturity () BEFE4TEZEERE - BHA

date on 28 September 2023 ABZZEZ-=FAA-1N\H 942,234 51,500
(i) fixed coupon interest 7.125% per annum and (i) EEFET125B 2 EFES - FIHA

maturity date on 27 January 2022 B-ZE-_—F—A=-t++tH 1,311,958 23,979
(il fixed coupon interest 8% per annum and maturity (i EEFESECEERE - FHH

date on 27 January 2024 B-ZE-_NF—-A=-t++tH 1,279,380 26,924

Bond listed on SGX by Guangzhou R&F Properties BENE D ERH AR A B (R AT LT -

Co., Ltd. (HK stock code: 2777): BRRIR - 2777V NIRRT LT 2 &% -
(i) fixed coupon rate of 5.875% per annum and maturity () BB E5875EW ZEFREE

date in February 2023 WHR=—ZE-=%F— A5 1,364,251 91,524
(i) fixed coupon rate of 5.75% per annum and maturity (i) BB ES TS EZEERE W

date in 2022 S F5E 211,185 13,455
(il fixed coupon rate of 7% per annum and maturity (EEFETEZEATES TR

date in 2021 T —F3IH 903,482 45,084

Bond listed on the Stock Exchange by KWG Group EEREEERERER AR (RERA L
Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 1813) with o RS - 1813) BT 2
&%

(i) fixed coupon rate of 6% per annum and maturity () EEFE6EZETERE

date in 2022 YR —E 5|5 585,234 38,364
(il) fixed coupon rate of 9.85% per annum and maturity (i) BEFEO8EZETES -

date in 2020 YR -—ZE-ZTFF|H 797,706 7,578

7,395,430 298,408
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I NVESTM ENTS (continued)

Save as the debt instruments as set out in the table above, the Group did not
hold any significant investments in the securities of other companies during
the year ended December 31, 2018.

Based on the announcement of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2007) (“CGH”") dated 21 September 2016, the senior notes (“CGH
Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in September 2016, and due in 2023.
The CGH Senior Notes are listed on the SGX and carries an interest of 4.75%
per annum and interests are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the
CGH Senior Notes was intended to be used for refinancing certain of CGH'’s
existing indebtedness and for its general working capital purposes.

Based on the announcement of CGH dated 19 September 2018, the senior
notes (“CGH January 2022 Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in September
2018, and due in 2022. The CGH January 2022 Senior Notes are listed
on the SGX and carries an interest of 7.125% per annum and interests are
payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the CGH January 2022 Senior
Notes were intended to be used for refinancing CGH'’s existing offshore
indebtedness.

Based on the announcement of CGH dated 19 September 2018, the senior
notes (“CGH January 2024 Additional Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in
September 2018, and due in 2024. The CGH January 2024 Additional Senior
Notes are listed on the SGX and carries an interest of 8% per annum and
interests are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the CGH January
2024 Additional Senior Notes were intended to be used mainly for refinancing
CGH'’s existing offshore indebtedness.

According to the announcement of annual results for the year ended 31
December 2018 of CGH, as at 31 December 2018, its group’s net gearing
ratio was 49.6%, representing a year on year decrease of 7.3 percentage
points.
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I NVESTM ENTS (continued)

Based on the announcements of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 2777) (“GRFP”) dated 13 November 2017, 12 January 2017 and 18
April 2018: (i) the senior notes (“GRFP 2023 Senior Notes”) were issued by
GRFP in November 2017, and due in February 2023. The GRFP 2023 Senior
Notes are listed on SGX and carries an interest of 5.875% per annum and
interests are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the GRFP 2023
Senior Notes was intended to be used to refinance debt and for general
corporate purposes of GRFP; and (i) the senior notes (“GRFP 2022 Senior
Notes”) were issued by GRFP in January 2017, and due in 2022. The GRFP
2022 Senior Notes are listed on SGX and carries an interest of 5.75% per
annum and interests are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the GRFP
2022 Senior Notes was intended to finance GRFP’s overseas projects under
China’s “One Belt One Road” strategy and for general corporate purposes;
and (i) the senior notes due 2021 (“GRFP 2021 Senior Notes”) were issued
by GRFP in April 2018, and due in 2021. The GRFP 2021 Senior Notes is
listed on the SGX and carries an interest of 7% per annum and interests are
payable semi-annually. The proceeds from GRFP 2021 Senior Notes was
intended to finance debt and for general corporate purposes. According to
the announcement of annual result for the year ended 31 December 2018
of GRFP, the net debt to total equity ratio of GRFP increased to 184% at 31
December 2018 from 169.6% at 31 December 2017.

Based on the announcement of KWG Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1813) ("*KWG”) dated 16 March 2017, the senior notes (“KWG Senior Notes”)
were issued by KWG in March 2017, and due in 2022. The KWG Senior
Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange and carries an interest of 6% per
annum and interests are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the
KWG Senior Notes was intended to be used for refinancing certain of KWG'’s
existing indebtedness and for its general working capital purposes.
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Based on the announcement of KWG dated 15 November 2018, the senior
notes (“KWG 2020 Senior Notes) were issued by KWG in November 2018,
and due in 2020. The KWG 2020 Senior Notes are listed on the Stock
Exchange and carries an interest of 9.85% per annum and interests are
payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the KWG 2020 Senior Notes was
intended to be used for refinancing certain of KWG’s offshore debt.

According to the announcement of annual result for the year ended 31
December 2018 of KWG, as at 31 December 2018, its group’s net gearing
ratio decreased from approximately 68% that as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately 65%.

For further information of the business and financial performance of the above
companies, please refer to the report and announcements referred in the
above paragraphs for details. Please also refer to the respective publications
of the above companies from time to time for updates on their prospects and
performances. The report and announcements referred above do not form
part of this annual report and do not constitute any publication issued by, or
any opinion, advice or view of, the Company or any of its directors.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT OR EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of Company’s shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, apart from issue of shares as a result of the exercise of share
options by the Directors and certain employees of the Group, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the
Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at 31
December 2018 comprised the retained profit of HK$174,067,000 (2017:
retained profit of HK$144,919,000).

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium and the
special surplus account of the Company are also available for distribution to
Shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2018, the sum of the retained profits and the share premium

of the Company amounted to approximately HK$6,248,970,000 (2017:
HK$6,011,451,000).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing

Mr. Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Ming Man

Dr. Chong Kin Ki

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Chan Wing Kee

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, each of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, being executive Directors
and Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent non-
executive Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s articles of association.
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, being executive
Directors, and Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent
non-executive Directors, will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies”.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

ESzROER

RZZE-N\F+_A=+—H EFKESE2
BEATHRARF LA EE(ERRLES R
HIE R0 ([ 5 R G &) 1) SBXVER) Z B fn
HEBRMOHEST  FARRRIRIEZES LB
BIRPIFE35216FE 2 BrLMATACE 2 e - 3k
REBELEHEITAESETESIHNRETH
EHEAR R LB ST

Long position RR
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (“Shares”) (a) AABEREEOABTZEER (TR

% 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the Company
Shares held AR F]
Name of Director Capacity Fride T BRITRA
EEpE EmtE RGEE ZBHBE D
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Note 1) Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 5,055,970 0.4668%
SREIEE S A (Mt ERA A TiEEs
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 7,787,228 0.7189%
BB S A (MRE2) ERe A/ TiBkEns
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 564,500 0.0521%
REELE EmEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,683,200 0.1462%
{3 A S A (BRES) ERA A TiEEs
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie (Note 4)  Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,319,000 0.1218%
sRiEE L (FiEE4) ERAE AN/ TiBkEns
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 1,521,000 0.1404%
REK L Em=EAA
Mr. Cheung Ming Man Beneficial owner 10,000 0.0009%
SREAGISEAE EmEE A
Dr. Chong Kin Ki Beneficial owner 90,000 0.0083%
GrEREfge BEmfEa A
Notes: Mz -
1) Out of the 5,055,970 Shares, 3,341,405 Shares were held by Mr. Cheung 1) % 5055970k kg R - H A

Kwok Wing and 1,714,565 Shares were held by his spouse.

3,341,405 % f% 15 Ty R SR B &8 Se E AR A
BB 0 m1,714,5650 8% 1 Bl i B A48
#H -

©) Out of the 7,787,228 Shares, 6,216,488 Shares were held by Mr. Chang ©) RZ7,787,228 k& - H A
Wing Yiu and 1,570,740 Shares were held by his spouse. 6,216,488 8% B 17 Ty FR Bk MR ST HE AR A
A 0 1,570,740/ 8% 17 A i H A4S
A -
©) Out of the 1,583,200 Shares, 812,500 Shares were held by Mr. Ho Yin 3) 7 5% 1,583,200 ik fx o & - H A
Sang and 770,700 Shares were held by his spouse. 812,500/% AR 17 7o e {A] 36 4 56 AR AR A 3%
B 770,700 B A% 17 Bl ey EL BC 1B 5
5o
(4 Out of the 1,319,000 Shares, 1,299,000 Shares were held by Ms. Cheung (4 7% 1,319,000 B B 0 & - H &

Wai Lin, Stephanie and 20,000 Shares were held by her spouse.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

1,299,000 f& {5 SR EE L LR A
A M20,0000% 0% 17 Bl fh LB B A -



BEEEARAQA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)
(b) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (“KLHL Shares”) in KLHL, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

27

EECRDER

REW@®

(b) ADAFFZEHBHEDTRERER
BEREECIBAZEER(TEEEE
AR 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
issued KLHL of KLHL
Shares held HRERER
Name of Director Capacity Frise#1TEH EBTRA
EEpE RS BERRGEHE ZEHNBED
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,243,000 0.040%
SR B8 S A (B EE) BEnEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 9,200,000 0.299%
BB S A (M E2) EnlEAATEER
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 2,543,000 0.083%
Al B A A4 [iRLk
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.097%
REESLE BEREAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 379,000 0.012%
REKEE BEREAA
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 200,000 0.006%
SRIZELZ LT BEREAA
Note: iz :
1) Out of the 1,243,000 KLHL Shares, 1,143,000 KLHL Shares were held ) 1,243,000 % BSEFE IR AR5 B
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by his o B 1,143,000 0% 28 1 B iR
spouse. TheR R B AR AR5 - 11100,000
R s BRI B b B AL B -
2) Out of the 9,200,000 KLHL Shares, 7,500,000 KLHL Shares were held by 2 7 5% 9,200,000 % 22 7% 1E [E th Bk 19 &

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and 1,700,000 KLHL Shares were held by his spouse.

s H f 7,500,000 B% 2 OE E B IR
BT REKBAEERAFEE - M
1,700,000 A% 38 5 1& B R At 19 Al e EL A
BFEE -
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28

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(c) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE RS

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIZ e 4 BEmEBA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
LIPS BB A
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner
REESLE BEmEBA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
Al A A4 BEmEBA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(d) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of EEIC, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE ERME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIER S BEmEa A

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
ks BEmEa A

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
fa] A e A EmEa A
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(c) ADFRFZEHBHMELTRERER
FRLAFARETERABEIBTZER
SEELERD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
(Note)

Fris R R REIRE
BAEE

(Bff&E)

1,904,400
423,200

846,400

529,000

=
ay

AEEMESFRERERARARZ
BREEELERD - ZFRERMN I E
B A UK BUR B R AR A PR A RUE AR
RRGBEEHHEERAGENE L&
SZHER - TOSB BB B B BB
BSEMDIR BEERER -

(d FRRFZEHEEHEQTEEICKAF
ZEBR(TEEICKR )

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
issued EEIC share capital
Shares held of EEIC

FIE%1T {HEEICE R{TRA

EEICH 3 & B ZHHBE D
1,547,200 0.8277%
486,600 0.2603%
486,600 0.2603%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(e) Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.1 each in the
share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE EEME
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse
Al A A Bt

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2018.
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued

issued KBCF share capital
Shares held of KBCF
BT (GEEREEERT
EEEERO A BRAEZBHIBED

2,000 0.0002%
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SHARE OPTIONS BRBRE

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, and EEIC and KLHL RAT - EEICKIESHEBIRELEIRETEI:E
(including their vesting and exercise period) are set out in Note 34 to the B(BREERBHMTER) SERNGEMBHRE
consolidated financial statements. L34 o

On 8 October 2018, an aggregate of 16,700,000 share options were R=ZE—N\F+ANH ' 516,700,000 &
exercised at the exercise price of HK$12.424 per share with a closing market EEREETE  TEEAER12.4248 T
price of HK$24.40 on the immediately preceding business day when the ZERESBREETEN—EEER AR

options were exercised for ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.1 each. FIEREEOABITHEBIR ZKHE AT
Save as disclosed, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or had 24 4078 7C ° Br EXCFTIEEESN - BEFE AR
lapsed under the Company’s share option schemes during the year under NEZ BB EEE T ERE - 176F -
review. The following table discloses movements in the Share Options under ST B A S B AR - TRINE
the Scheme during the year: ZAT BB MBS BN R 2 &
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
1 January 31 December
2018 2018
RZE—N\F Exercised R=T—N\&E
—H—H duringtheyear +=H=+—H
i RATE RERTHE i RATE
Category 1: Directors F18 - EF
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing REELEE 3,360,000 (3,360,000) -
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu ERSK RS 2,660,000 (2,660,000) -
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan REE LA 1,960,000 (1,960,000) -
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 1) Ay A S A (B 1) 1,440,000 (1,440,000) -
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REEZ T 2,460,000 (2,460,000) -
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing REKKAEE 3,160,000 (3,160,000) -
15,040,000 (15,040,000) -
Category 2: Employees (Note 1) g4 : ®E(MIFE) 1,660,000 (1,660,000) -
Total all categories FrEERIE T 16,700,000 (16,700,000) -
Note 1: In addition to 1,440,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the spouse of Mr. BHEET « BR{A] 36 A St A2 15 #91,440,000 19 12 5¢ B8 Ak 1
Ho Yin Sang held 1,660,000 Share Options. SN - (] A S A 2 BR 4B TR 7 1,660,00017 12 5

HBAE -
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SHAR E O PTlO N S (continued)

The following table discloses movements in KLHL Share Options during the
year:

Outstanding

BERERE®

TREFZEEERELBRERNFAZE

Outstanding

as at as at

1 January 31 December

2018 2018

RZE—N\F Exercised R=Z—N\&E

—H—H duringtheyear +=H=+—H

i RATE RERTT i RATE

Directors and employees of KLHL EHEBREENEES - - -
Total A&T - - -

No KLHL Share Options were granted to the Director and employees of
KLHL under the KLHL share option scheme throughout the year ended 31
December 2018.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the options as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement or contract of significance in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, its substantial Shareholder or any subsidiaries
of its substantial Shareholder was a party subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year under review.

WBE=T-N\E+=A=+—HILFER
AR B R B IR IR T E
KRB TR U B A T TR R (B SE B -
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BRI fn kKBS MmER o

EEEEAXRS - REHE
WIE TR

BB R] ST R F REM R AL
MEFYREEEMECEREEIHRER
BEABEZIERRS  WHHAEK »
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2018, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
Shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

Name of shareholder Capacity

RS ERME

Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) (Note) Beneficial owner

() BEmBEAA

FMR LLC Investment manager
REKTE

Fidelity Puritan Trust Investment Manager
REKTE

(] The letter “L” denotes a long position.

Note:  As at 31 December 2018: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing,
being a Director, was also a director of Hallgain.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has adopted the principles of
good corporate governance and complied with the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2018, save for the deviation that independent non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code.

For further information on the Group’s corporate governance practices during
the year, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2018, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, the Company and Hallgain entered into
a purchase framework agreement (the “KHL/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase certain materials for the production of PCBs such as
copper balls and drill bits from Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the
“Hallgain Group”) from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. Under
the KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount of
materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market
price) of the materials under the KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KHL/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on
the basis that Hallgain is a substantial Shareholder and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(b)

KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement (continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the table below. Details of the KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s joint announcement
dated 26 October 2016.

KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to supply
copper and laminates to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019. Under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement the amount to be supplied is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of the products under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on
the basis that Hallgain is a substantial Shareholder and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL
is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the table below.
Details of the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October
2016, and KLHL's circular dated 21 November 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

BERX S @)

(@

(b)

2NEE, HallgainiE BAEL 1535
()

HEEE Hallgain¥ BIELFHIE T
ZREGBE_E—NF+_A=+—H
HEEZEEIREERZSEHNAT
% - BEEE Hallgainks SERRE
CHIBEENARRI B AT —AET
A-+ARBZBMAREHRE -

2 EEE R, Hallgainfit EAE 22 1%
]

RZE—RE+AZ+RE  BEERE
REAHallgain] 4 EAE 2R % ([ 208
BER, Hallgainft EIEZR R ) - &
o BEEEREERER-Z—t
F—A—HAE-_ZT-NF+_A=+—
A AHallgains B 4 fE 8 & B i E ik o
R AR 2 E & B 1R Hallgain fit f& 1E 22
g BEEZHEYIFETE M2
HEOFTREERRAE &A=
1R, Hallgainft EIERBFEB T 2 E 5
ERHE  RERER(ZEBRTHE)
158 FHallgain®E @B A2 EEEBIREE
YEH Z ERIETEME °

i HallgainBEZ/E - BIE TR
BlARRRZBEAL - MEBEEER
BlARRRZHEAR - #RE TR
A% 14A% - EBFHEEIR Hallgainftf&
ERBHFET IR DERARRZIFE

BSEEE R, Hallgaintt EAE 22 15 318
TZRGBEZFT—N\F+ZA=+—
ALFEZFELREEBRZEHR
T - EEREER,Hallgainft EELR
BHEZHFBERARRBHA-ZT—X
FHAZ+RNAZBARETR  UKRE
EEEBRR-_Z—AR"F+—A=1+—8
2P REE -



BEEEARAQA

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase
materials for production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries
from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market
price) of materials under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the KLHL
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on
the basis that Hallgain is a substantial Shareholder and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and KLHL
is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the table below. Details of the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s joint announcement
dated 26 October 2016 and KLHL’s circular dated 21 November
2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERS )

The annual caps and actual transaction amounts of the continuing connected TRV EXFFEE HEE—E—-N\FE+ =8
transactions disclosed above for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set Tt HISEENBERESSZFELRE
out in the table below. ERR SR -
Amounts Annual caps
K] EE LR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
0] Purchase of copper balls and dfrill bits from AREBIRIEZEEEE,Hallgain 565,709 572,000
the Hallgain Group by the Group under B EEZR I M Hallgain & #
the KHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework BB E IRk & SR
Agreement
(i) Sales of coppers and laminates to the Hallgain 3 & @k = MR B E 702,935 770,000
Group by the KLHL Group under the KLHL/ F&BHR,Hallgainfft &
Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement HEZR Hip & MHallgain g
& I & B IR E AR
(iii Purchase of drill bits and machineries fromthe S 1EE R & EEEES 366,706 385,000
Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group under BB, HallganiE &
the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework HEZR 1% % A Hallgain &
Agreement HE B A i Es

The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the corresponding LR oML NEAREBRAMBE S
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 as announced T N\F+_A=+—HILFRFEZHBEF

by the Group. [EER -

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing BYENTESCEN LABERERS &
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been EMREZER G TN AEBEMNBE R —MED
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on BREFIREEAFEGRREIL - BRS KRR RE
normal commercial terms and that the terms thereof and the relevant annual BEELRAATFEERFTAARR KRN
caps thereto are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and e VG

the Shareholder as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018 disclosed by the Group
from pages 33 to 37 of this annual report in accordance with Listing Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditors has confirmed that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018:

(@) have not been approved by the board;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of transactions during the year ended 31 December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have any other
plans for its material investments and capital assets.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in Note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration paid to a senior management (excluding the directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was within the following band:

HK$2,000,001 or above

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2,000,001 7THIA 1

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual reports, the Group did not have any other
material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies or
joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the articles of association of the Company, every Director,
agent, auditor, secretary or other officer for the time being and from time to
time of the Company (and the personal representatives of those persons, as
the case may be) shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and funds of the Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges,
expenses, losses, damages or liabilities incurred or sustained by him in or
about the conduct of the Company’s business or affairs or in the execution or
discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or
liabilities incurred by him in defending (whether successfully or otherwise) any
civil proceedings concerning the Company or its affairs in any court whether
in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

Appropriate insurance covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s
liabilities arising out of activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers combined or suppliers combined were less than 30%
of the Group’s sales or purchases respectively.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year under review.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to Note 48 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
event after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wing
CHAIRMAN

20 March 2019
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The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance practice of a
listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for
a listed company to operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of
various self-regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.

The Company has adopted the principles of good corporate governance and
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018, save for the deviation from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code since the independent non-executive Directors are
not appointed for a specific term. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all
the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association. As such,
the Company considers that steps have been taken with a view to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are in line with the principles
of the CG Code.

In addition to applying the principles in the CG Code, which is mandatory
in nature, the Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best Practices which are
suitable to the Company’s current situation. The Board will continuously
enhance the corporate governance standard of the Company by reference to
the Recommended Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed
that he or she has complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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A.

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board'’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his
associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum
of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meetings and
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued) A.

The Board (continued)
During the year under review, the Board had held four meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:
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Number of Meeting R EE 4

Executive Directors BITES

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) RER(EE) 4

Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) DKB(EZREE) 4

Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4

Ho Yin Sang s 4

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie K@ 4

Cheung Ka Shing REN 4

Chen Maosheng 5321 4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES

Cheung Ming Man KRG 4

Chong Kin Ki fres: 4

Leung Tai Chiu P 4

Chan Wing Kee Bk 4

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than four times
in the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director were segregated
and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

° scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

° preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

° exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between Management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

. assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

EE

PIREBE

MEFEFE  SEeMIFEE - £B
BEURAAREERLE - TERE
BREBEEBING - BIkhE—%
AT

FEREBBETRENATEE

. EHRENEEFABIMBR
B - WHRREFE RIS R
BEEREYSE  MIRHH
ARFZEE

. KEEREOIPERERENGE
g

. THEEEREFE ZAEMR
BEOE S BEMERMT - #BR
EFRE2ABRBR TELR
E R

. B FERE N E AR AR AR AT
ZIFRERIES|

EEAETEARREBRERILAK
SEARERETE-



BEEEARAQA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

A.

DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, seven of whom are
executive Directors and four of whom are independent non-executive
Directors who are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of the Directors. One of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualifications
(or accounting or related financial management expertise) as required
by the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board as of the report
date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Cheung Ka Shing

Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors
Cheung Ming Man

Chong Kin Ki

Leung Tai Chiu

Chan Wing Kee

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Ho Yin Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Cheung Ka Shing is the son
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the nephew-in-law of
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

During the year under review, the independent non-executive
Directors were not appointed for specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that although such arrangement deviates from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards, property developments
and chemical products, administration and management experience
in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skills. The Company
believes that the current Board with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible for
re-appointment at the next following general meeting (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or annual general meeting (in the case of
an additions to the Board) after appointment. The appointment of
Directors are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual general
meeting one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-appointment by Shareholders.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but shall
not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment shall
have their biographical details made available to the Shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision on their re-appointment.
Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to the Shareholders by announcement and
shall include in such announcement, the reasons given by the Director
for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

According to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HiTE=S
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REIR(F/E)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) kg (EFaE)
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE

Ho Yin Sang [BE:%

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REE

Cheung Ka Shing RE

Chen Maosheng 532
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Cheung Ming Man SREABL

Chong Kin Ki HEEH

Leung Tai Chiu Rt

Chan Wing Kee 53

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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A.

DI RECTO RS (continued)

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chong Kin Ki (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the date of the report. The role of
the Remuneration Committee is to formulate policies and procedures
for determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management
and other remuneration related matters. The Remuneration
Committee is set up with written terms of reference which set out
clearly its duties and authorities delegated by the Board, including the
following duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;
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B.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

° recommend specific remuneration packages including, where
appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive
payments, and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such other members
of senior management as it is designated to consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors (including non-executive Directors,
if any), taking into account factors such as effort, time spent
and responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to
him by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for
similar position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis
for the year under review is set out on pages 151 to 155 in Note
11 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in terms of
Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings during which the Remuneration Committee,
among other things, assessed the performance, and determined
the remuneration policy and packages for all Directors and senior
management.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial performance
and operations of the Company to the Audit Committee and the
Board and respond to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit
Committee and the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 60 to 67 of this annual report.

Risk Management, Internal Control and Responsibility
of the Board

The Board acknowledges its accountability to the risk management
and internal control system and its responsibility to review the
effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
fulfil business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from
the top, performing risk assessment, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control. Essential to this
risk management and internal control systems are well defined policies
and procedures that are properly documented and communicated to
employees.

The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

° formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

. monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management, Internal Control and Responsibility
of the Board (continued)

The Group has established an internal audit department to review
the financial condition, operational condition, risk management,
compliance control and internal control of the Group. For 2018, the
Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.

C.
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C.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

° review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy

of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfil its oversight role
over the Group’s risk management and internal control function
by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk
management and internal control system at least annually.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
embedded within our business processes so that it functions as
an integral part of the overall operation of the Group. The system
comprises a comprehensive organisation structure with assignment
of definite accountabilities and delegation of corresponding authorities
to each post. Based on our organisation structure, a reporting system
has been developed including reporting channels from division heads
of business units to the Board.

The risk management and internal control systems and accounting
system of the Group are aimed at identifying and evaluating
the Group’s risk and formulate risk mitigation strategies, and to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against
unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorisation, and the accounting
records are reliable for preparing financial information used within the
business for publication, maintaining accountability for assets and
liabilities and ensuring the business operations are in accordance with
relevant legislation, regulations and internal guidelines.

The Group has a defined organisational structure with clear defined
lines of responsibility and authority. Each department is accountable
for its daily operations and is required to report to executive
Directors on a regular basis. Policies and procedures are set for
each department, which includes establishing and maintaining
effective policies to enhance risks identification to which the
Group are exposed and taking appropriate action to manage such
risks, establishing a structure with defined authorities and proper
segregation of duties; monitoring the strategic plan and performance;
designing an effective accounting and information system; controlling
price sensitive information; and ensuring swift actions and timely
communication with our stakeholders.

Procedures and Controls over Handling and Dissemination of
Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group has internal policy
and procedures which strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside
information and has communicated to all staff; the Board is aware
of its obligations to announce any inside information in accordance
with the Listing Rules and conducts the affairs with reference to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012. In addition, only
Directors and delegated officers can act as the Group’s spokesperson
and respond to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit
services to the Company, the Committee will keep the nature and
extent of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group were as follows:

Nature of services PRIEMHEE
Audit services ZEPRTS
Non-audit services FERZEARTS

()  Tax services () RS
(i)  Other services (i) EAbARTS

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audited services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

° to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
o to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
o to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

° to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report,
namely Mr. Cheung Ming Man (Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr.
Leung Tai Chiu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

° discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by a different independent non-executive Director, to
assist the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee.
Each Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements which are
substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
(Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the
date of this report. According to the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of
the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continueq)

Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, being executive Directors
and Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent
non-executive Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, being executive Directors
and Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent
non-executive Directors, will offer themselves for re-election. During
the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it had considered the
policy for the nomination of Directors, and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship.

It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors. All the above-named Directors were nominated by the
Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the CG Code. The policy aims to achieve diversity on the members of
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition, a number of aspects
would be considered, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with Shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each committee are required to attend and answer questions from
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries
by Shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations
website which enables the Shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the
Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“‘EGM”) provide good opportunities for Shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All Shareholders receive the annual
report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other corporate
communications. The notices are also published on the Company’s
website at www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each Shareholder is
permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association, Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an EGM by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:
Address: 23/F, Delta House

3 On Yiu Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
Email: enquiry@kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association.

An up to date version of the Company’s articles of association is
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders may refer to the Company’s articles of
association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingboard.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 68 to 257, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) Eﬁi@%ﬁ'$lﬁ(%>

Key audit matter

HMRESSR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANFTOMHRRETSHETEE

Assessment of net realisable values of properties held for development (“PHD”)

AL EFRRME(FRRME D WTERFE

We identified the assessment of net realisable values of PHD
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the amounts
and judgements involved in estimating their net realisable
value and the future costs to completion of the PHD.

The carrying value of the Group’s PHD amounted to HK$20
billion as at 31 December 2018. The Group’s PHD are all
situated in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the net realisable values of the PHD
are determined by reference to the estimated future selling
prices. The future selling prices are estimated by reference
to the recent selling prices of similar properties in the same
project or relevant locations. In addition, the management
estimates the future costs to complete the PHD by reference
to the actual development costs incurred and the completion
status.
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Our procedures in relation to the assessment of net realisable
values of PHD included:

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the costs recognised
in PHD, on a sample basis, by obtaining the direct
confirmations from independent qualified surveyors in
respect of the costs incurred and the completion status;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of the PHD, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to recent transaction prices of similar
properties in the same project or relevant locations, based
on our knowledge of the property markets of the relevant
locations; and

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future
costs to completion of the PHD, on a sample basis,
based on the actual development costs incurred and the
completion status of the properties of the Group with the
adjustments, taking into account the current market data
and the past history of the similar projects.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRETSE

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BNNFSNAHRRETSRETRE

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of subjective
judgements and complex estimates required in determining
the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises
commercial, residential and industrial properties located
in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom, which
was stated at fair value of HK$16.9 billion, accounting
for approximately 17.9% of the Group’s total assets as
at 31 December 2018 with a gain on fair value change of
HK$174.9 million recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year then ended.

As further disclosed in Notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair values of these
investment properties, the Group engaged a professional
independent valuer (the “Valuer”), to carry out the valuation.
The valuation committee of the Group provided information
to the Valuer and the Valuer established and determined the
appropriate technique and inputs to the valuation model. The
significant unobservable input of the approach is the price
per square metre of comparable properties. Changes in the
comparable properties adopted may result in a significant
increase or decrease in fair values.
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capability, and objectivity of
the Valuer;
° Understanding the key assumptions applied to the

valuation based on available market data and evaluating
their reasonableness; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
information used by the Valuer and the valuation
committee in the valuation model, including adjustment
factors for location and other individual factors such
as road frontage, size of property and facilities, on a
sample basis, in order to assess the appropriateness,
completeness and accuracy of these inputs and
comparing the comparable properties adopted with fair
market unit price.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) Eﬁﬁ@%ﬁ'%ﬁ(ﬁé)

Key audit matter

HRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BNNFSNAHRRETSHETRE

Impairment assessment of goodwill relating to the printed circuit boards (“PCB”) business

EN R 4B AR ([ ED R ARBEAR |) 375 B £ T BB E RT AL

We identified the impairment assessment of the goodwill
arising from the PCB business as a key audit matter as the
amount is quantitatively significant to the Group and the
valuation involves significant judgements and assumptions.

As set out in Notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to determine the present value. The key
assumptions made by management relates to the discount
rate and growth rate.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2018
was HK$2.5 billion. Included in the balance is the goodwill
relating to the PCB business of HK$1.9 billion. The key inputs
adopted by the management of the Group are made with
reference to relevant industry data and the management has
determined that there is no significant impairment loss on its
goodwill.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill relating to the PCB business included:

Obtaining the audited financial results of PCB business for
the year and understanding the basis adopted in the value
in use calculations prepared by management;

Assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions made
by the management, including growth rates and expected
changes in capital expenditure with reference to current
market circumstances;

Testing the appropriateness of key inputs applied by the
management in preparing the cash flow forecasts against
historical performance, including revenues, cost of sales
and operating expenses, with reference to management’s
future strategic plans of the Group in respect of the CGU;

Assessing the key factors in determining the discount
rate, including the Group’s debt and equity ratio, return
on investments and other risk factors for reasonableness;
and

Testing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management in respect of the growth rates and
discount rates and evaluating the extent of impact on the
calculations of the value in use.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEZ =ZT— \GF+_A=+—HILFE

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
(RESEE))
(#esEa)
Revenue mEEE 5 45,994,419 43,371,270
Cost of sales and services rendered $HE M IR RSO (35,691,963) (33,243,202)
Gross profit EF| 10,302,456 10,128,068
Other income, gains and losses Hadg A~ WS R EiE 7 169,786 132,371
Distribution costs 7 $HR AR (1,199,959) (1,149,527)
Administrative costs TR AN (1,959,820) (1,706,910)
Loss on fair value changes of BEATERABEZ
equity instruments at fair value REITEY
through profit or loss N EZEERE (148,297) -
Gain on disposal of debt HEZRAFESA
instruments at fair value Hib2miizs 2
through other comprehensive income B TAZ K= 3,578 -
Gain on fair value changes of WEMELNTEES 2 14
investment properties s 174,896 54,284
Gain on disposal of HEATHHEREZ
available-for-sale investments s - 1,153,015
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMB R Rl e 37 2,089,808 -
Share-based payments VAR AR FE A5 3R = (3,136)
Impairment loss recognised on ARSI E R 25
available-for-sale investments BEEE = (34,152)
Finance costs & AR 8 (589,222) (311,919)
Share of results of joint ventures EIEAENFIEE 21 86,515 -
Share of results of associates i AN E 20 192,169 103,267
Profit before taxation BB A1 5 A 9,121,910 8,365,361
Income tax expense FriSifsz 9 (2,051,710) (1,631,177)
Profit for the year AN S 10 7,070,200 6,834,184
Profit for the year attributable to: REE G EIEHE -
Owners of the Company EN/NCIESZEUN 6,075,760 5,593,434
Non-controliing interests eI i S 994,440 1,240,750
7,070,200 6,834,184
Earnings per share FRRER 13
- Basic — EAK HK$5.692 /&t  HK$5.363 /87T
_ Diluted — HK$5.655 &5t  HK$5.314 T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OILL’ROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBElkHEMEEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z— /\F+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\#F —ELF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHx FHL

Profit for the year REE R 7,070,200 6,834,184

Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year AN E B2 (X)W
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEeREF P EE B HE -

Translation reserve: PE
Exchange differences arising from EFEZ2REY
translation to presentation currency i EA 2 MR ERE (2,333,128) 2,918,666
Items that may be reclassified BERAEBEWET IR
subsequently to profit or loss: 1Bz 7B -
Investment revaluation reserve: REEMGHE
Fair value loss on debt instruments measured at AT EFAHEMEEmRESZ
fair value through other comprehensive income BB TRz A FAEEE (533,782) -
Reclassify to profit or loss upon disposal of EHEEATEF ARLMEE
debt instruments at fair value through Was 2 BB TA
other comprehensive income MEMHEEE (3,578) -
Net changes arising from AHEERE 2
available-for-sale investments R - 403,135
Translation reserve: b W e A
Exchange differences arising from EHfTE NS EMEE
translation of foreign operations EH =% (122,092) (6,825)
(659,452) 396,310
Other comprehensive (expense) AEEHMEAR(FL)
income for the year (net of tax) Yas (BRA5 %) (2,992,580) 3,314,976
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEPEPEERE 4,077,620 10,149,160
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2HEWREERE
attributable to: FEIR1AEE -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEE YN 3,425,901 8,495,578
Non-controlling interests IR RE RS 651,719 1,653,582
4,077,620 10,149,160
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

AT 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\F+—-A=+—H

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018
—B-)N\fF
HK$'000
FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EME 14 16,925,863 17,151,915
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 15 14,879,768 14,529,533
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 16 1,539,781 931,029
Other non-current assets HiIEmeEE 17 - 691,213
Goodwill HmE 18 2,467,076 2,288,149
Intangible asset M A E 19 27,000 -
Interests in an associate BN R 7 RS 20 540,681 504,090
Interests in joint ventures NN 21 2,466,504 -
Equity instruments at fair WAFEFABEZ 22
value through profit or loss MR T A 1,291,534 -
Equity instruments at fair value through BEAFEFARMEEREZ 23
other comprehensive income HmT A 164,124 -
Debt instruments at fair value through BRATESAEMEERZEY 24
other comprehensive income BT A 8,876,637 -
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 25 - 5,746,584
Entrusted loans ZHRHER 29(a) 605,789 788,860
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYE  BEK
properties, plant and equipment wiEREENEL
and investment properties =N EER 332,890 485,451
Deferred tax assets FIER IR E B 26 3,653 3,768
50,121,300 43,120,592
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =8 27 2,956,116 2,115,557
Properties held for development FERYHE 28 20,023,136 15,637,824
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EWBRR R 29(a)
and prepayments TERIRIA 8,514,957 11,763,029
Bills receivables BN EE 29(b) 4,545,599 5,036,119
Debt instruments at fair value through RN EGFAHE M2 EWE 2 24
other comprehensive income BRI A 78,195 -
Available-for-sale investments AR HERE 25 - 778,986
Other current assets HimEEE 17 659,429 -
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 16 38,410 24,363
Taxation recoverable E{EEE 19,873 7,964
Bank balances and cash RITHBRES 29(c) 7,473,324 8,113,756
44,309,039 43,477,598
Assets classified as held for sale DEAEFEEE 30 - 1,696,193
44,309,039 45,173,791
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBARRE

2018

—B-)N\fF

HK$'000

FTHET

Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NME M EMERR 31 6,424,456 9,569,089
Bills payables ANES 31 512,566 691,834
Deposits received from TEETEEMMKET &

pre-sale of residential units 3,551,562

Contract liabilities aHBEE 31 3,448,068

886,418

Taxation payable FESFL IR 1,167,261
Bank borrowings HwITEE - 32
— amount due within one year —FNEIE 2 5B 7,254,600 5,290,745
18,806,951 19,989,648
Net current assets mEEEFE 25,502,088 25,184,143
Total assets less current liabilities BERERABDERE 75,623,388 68,304,735
Non-current liabilities ERBALE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFBEAE 26 731,036 783,418
Bank borrowings HwITEE - 32
—amount due after one year —FREE 08 20,259,081 13,797,597
20,990,117 14,581,015
54,633,271 53,723,720
Capital and reserves B A 2
Share capital &N 33 108,315 106,645
Reserves =4 47,224,670 45,932,874
Equity attributable to owners PANNCIESZSUN
of the Company JE(EHER 47,332,985 46,039,519
Non-controlling interests FEIE R RE RS 35 7,300,286 7,684,201
Total equity AR 54,633,271 53,728,720

FO8EFEBTE ZIAMBKHREENZZE— N
FZA-TRAESEESMEREETE  WH
THEERKEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 257 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wing Chang Wing Yiu
REIR 1592
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEZ =ZT— \GF+_A=+—HILFE

Non-
Share e ptions N iy revaluati ! on  Translation  Retained controling
premium BSeIve } pofits ~ Sub-fotal  interests

Balance at 1 January 2017 WZE-tE-A-A
=i 103840 4652528 1,911 215,459 10504 512652 266370 1119542 (277790)  (449,187) 31,381,085 37587,004 6,365,068 43,952,672
Proft for the year KERER - - - - - - - - - - 5503434 5503434 1240750 6834184
Net changes arsing fom avallable-for- ~ ATEERE 2 E8FE
sale investments (Note ¢) (Mite) - - - - - - - - 38693 - - %69% 1600 40313
Bxchange dffeences aisng fom BT EZE2HERmES
anglation to presentafion curency  ZERER - - - - - - - - - 2502 - 2500042 308424 2,018,666
Bxchange dffeencesaiing fom - R &SIt AL
ranslation of foreign operations JEREE - - - - - - - - - (5,083 - (033 (179 (682
Total comprehensive income for the year A& 2ENALE - - - - - - - - 0893 251500 5503434 8495578 1653582 10,149,160

Issug of new shares fromevercise of KT B EIRER

shar opns S 285 1204004 - 0% - - - - - - - ST - v
Recogniton of equity-settied B ERREENRG
share-based payments PR - - - 3,13 - - - - - - - 81 - 313
Final dhvidend for the year ended HET3-nETZR
31 December 2016 Note 12) Zt-RLLEE?
KEBa kD) _ - - - - - - - - - (126880 (726880) - (126880

Specilfinal dividend for the year HETTE
ended 31 December 2016 Note 1)~ +=A=1-RLEE#H

RRERS (H2) - - - - - - - - - - 5N p15N) - 15N
Interim dividend for the year HER-1E
ended 31 December 2017 Note 12 +=A=+-BILEEZ
HERE (i) - - - - - - - - - - (6398710 (639872 - (6%987)
Deemed disposal of partial BIELERBLA
interests in a subsidiary i - - - - - - - 199559 - - - 109559 423286 62284
Acquitions of additona hErBARN
interests n subsidiaries EihEa - - - - - - - 7160 - - - ATI604 (437008 (265492
Disposal o partal intrests HE-EHERAZ
inasubsday Bhiex - - - - - - - 301 - - S0 M 6L
Capital contrbution from non-controling B F3HARMEE
shargholders of a subsidiary it - - - - - - - - - - - - 1003 13034
Dividends paid to non-controling HFHBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries HIRREZ RS - - - - - - - - - - - - (815806 (815,806
Transfers to reserve EROHE - - - - - 102496 - - - - (19249%) - - -
2805 1214004 - s - 1% - 6120 - - GN0TEY  U06Y MM (T8I
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-E-+&
t2Rz+-RER 106645 5866532 1,911 2,560 10594 706,148 256370 1810841 109,145 2066022 35,103,751 46,039,519 7684201 63723720
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

Share
capital

BE
HK§'000
TEn

Capital

Share  redemption
premium  reserve
g%

REEE RERE
HKS'000  HKS$'000
Tén  TEn

Share
options
reserve
BriRE
i
HK$000

TR

Attributable to owners of the Company

Special
surplus
account

KHER

(Note a)
(Kita)

ALFRA AR RS

Property

Statutory  revaluation
reseve  reserve
nEEf

i1 ] i
HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn  TER
(Noteb)  (Notec)
(ztb)  (Hic)

Investment
Goodwill - revaluation
reseve  resene

REEH
ERER i
HK$'000  HK$'000
T Tén
(Note d)

(Hitd)

Translation
reserve

Eifif
HK§'000
Tén

Retained
profits

REER
HK§'000
TEn

» .

Sub-total

/J\ﬁ-
HK$'000
Thn

Non-
controlling
interests
FER
e i
HK$'000
Thn

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZF-\E-A-A2
e 106,645 5,866,532 1,911 2,560 10594 705148 256,370 1,810,841 109,145 2,066,022 35,103,751 46,039,519 7684201 53,723,720
Acjustments cue to adopting RARERE Y RE
new standards (see note ) (BHs2) - - - - - - - - ) - ®m = 2 c
Balance at 1 Janvary 2018 (Restated) ~ H=F-/\E-A-82
H(asn) 106,645 5,866,532 1,911 2,560 10594 705148 256,370 1,810,841 50373 2,086,022 35162523 46,039,519 7,684,201 53,723,720
Profit for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - = - 6075760 6075760 994440 7,070,200
Fair valug loss on det instruments AT EsF A Ef
measured at fai velue through PAlEERIEY
other comprefiensive income LFEEE - - - - - - - - (437,681) - - (437687) (96,005  (33,782)
Reclassfy to proft orloss upon disposal B EFRA TR A KA
of debt Instruments at far value Ak ERIA
through other compretiensive ncome AP EZIEA - - = = = = = - B = - B (461 (579
Exchange differences rising from RifEz2HE%
franslaontopresentatoncurency A ZESEE - - - = = = = = - (2086532) - (20865%2)  (46,9%) (2333,128)
Bchange dffeencesaiing fom - R ESMEEAEL 2
translaton offoregn aperations EizE - - - - - - - = - (1259 - (1225 41 (12200
Tota comprehensive (expense) TERRA(RR)
income for the year haigE = o = = - - - - (440804) (2209055 6075760 3425901 651,719 4,077,620
Issue of new shares fomexercise of - RTEERBRE
share optons METHRE 1670 208371 - (2,560) - - - - - - - 07481 - T4
Finaldvidend for the year ended HE-T-+E
31 December 2017 Note 12) t-R=-BILEEL
RERE () - - - - - - - - - - (1,066452) (1,066,452) - (1,066452)
Interim cvidend for the year ended e ]
31 December 2018 (Note 12) Tof
RER - - - - - - - - - - (649,801)  (649,891) - (649,891)
Specil interim dividend for the year e
ended 31 December 2018 Note 12~ + HLLER
h feto) = - . . - . - . = - 5 (556) - (5T
Acquisitons of addtional 323
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - (60,260) - - - (60,260) (464764)  (525,024)
Disposel o partal inteests HENBELTSER
nasibsday - - - - - - - - - L
Capital contrution from HBLTIERRER
non-contraling shareholders of HEE
asubsiday - - - - - - - - = = C - G648 66418
Dividends paid to non-controling THTHERTZ
sharefolders of subsicaries FERRE RS - - - - - - = = > = = - (685354  (685:3%4)
Translers o reserve ERTHE - - - - - 508,055 - = = - (508,055 = = o
160 2830 - o) -8 - e - - RGO (h1R4%) (103564 (3168069
Balance at 31 December 2018 RoE-NE
TRz +-AEH 108,315 6,074,903 1911 - 10504 1213203 256,370 1728844  (300431)  (143,033) 38472309 47,332,985 7,300,286 54,633,271
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ma

Notes:

EEEER

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company under the Group
reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People's
Republic of China ("PRC") for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain properties of the Group for own use as a result of transfer of those properties
from properties, plant and equipment to investment properties.

Goodwill reserve represents the effects of changes in ownership in certain
subsidiaries when there is no change in control.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, net changes arising from available-
for-sale investments consist of gain on fair value changes amounting to
HK$1,521,998,000, gain on disposal amounting to HK$1,153,015,000 and
impairment loss amounting to HK$34,152,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEZ =ZT— \GF+_A=+—HILFE

» .

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(RESEVES))
(#eEa)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FdF 30
Profit before taxation [ B Bl Vs A 9,121,910 8,365,361
Adjustments for: PR
Share of results of joint ventures e N (86,515) -
Share of results of associates NI S (192,169) (108,267)
Depreciation of properties, Y% - BEREETE
plant and equipment 1,968,043 1,757,861
Impairment loss recognised on HE F WS ERZ
trade receivables RIEREE 137,003 166,793
Impairment loss recognised on AT SR ERR
available-for-sale investments AR = 34,152
Interest expenses and other FLESZ R EAth B & 2
finance charges 589,222 311,919
Interest income on bank balances, RITHESS - ERAEBAERZ
deposits and entrusted loan FlEUWA (85,280) (127,393)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEERE 2 WS
investments = (1,153,019
Loss on fair value change of equity BAFEFABEZEZ TR
instruments at fair value through N ELHERE
profit or loss 148,297 -
Gain on disposal of debt instruments HERAFEFAEM
at fair value through other TEWE 2 B TR K
comprehensive income (3,578) -
Gain on fair value changes of WEYENFEED 2 W
investment properties (174,896) (54,284)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary S —HME R Rl 2 W 37 (2,089,808) -
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEEFEED 33,612 24,304
Write down of inventories WeHEE 34,954 20,607
Loss on disposal and written off of HEMMEEYE - BREK
properties, plant and equipment R EE 916,161 40,519
Share-based payments VARR 1 FZ 2R R = 3,136
Operating cash flows before REtEBEESEHAI 2
movements in working capital LERSRE 10,316,956 9,286,693
Increase in inventories FEEN (906,085) (232,381)
(Increase) decrease in properties FFERYECEM)RL
held for development (6,147,406) 143,388
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 K H M EUERF K
receivables and prepayments TETFRIER A (4 00) 2,511,999 (4,585,617)
Decrease (increase) in bills receivables FEUM =R A (38 0) 308,946 (1,630,276)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 R H M ERBRFR O ) 180
payables (768,294) 2,283,495
(Decrease) increase in bills payables FEAT 3 O A ) 180 (147,456) 509,677
Decrease in deposits received from TEEFEEMMWZETER D
pre-sale of residential units = (4,297,597)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEM 96,506 -

—E— ) \FFRK



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018
—g-N\%
HK$'000

FEx

2017
T4
HK$'000

FBT
(Restated)
( z«( )

Cash generated from operations KEEESRE 5,265,166 1,477,382
Other income taxes paid EM BB (1,713,663) (1,452,569)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (BHDF B L8 ER

("LAT") (paid) refunded (M sbIgER ) iRE (70,668) 299,714
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EEEEFEH (32,416) (30,044)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEBMBRSFH

ACTIVITIES 3,448,419 294,483
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Purchase of equity investments at BERATFEFABREZ

fair value through profit or loss R E (6,430,116) -
Purchase of debt investments at fair value BB AF@EETA

through other comprehensive income Hib 2z 2 EBRE (5,429,438) -
Acquisition of joint ventures WHEE & QT (2,296,619) -
Purchase of properties, EEYE - f B X &E

plant and equipment (2,255,679) (1,937,943)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME  BEMEER

properties, plant and equipment and WEMEMTEIS

investment properties (332,890) (485,451)
Purchase of investment property BEIREYHE (173,346) -
Purchase of equity investments at fair value BBz A FExH A HA M

through other comprehensive income SHEW G ERIRE (156,000) -
Prepaid lease payments made BEREAHEERKIE (146,726) (38,533)
Proceeds from disposal of tlj’%?ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ.#)\?% v

equity instruments at fair e TEPTSFIE

value through profit or loss 6,541,115 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — TR A Rl TS 3R 37 1,155,875 -
Proceeds from disposal or on maturity of ﬁ’%?ﬁﬂ$ﬁﬁ-kﬁ‘rﬁzi\ﬁﬂﬁ/\2

debt instruments at fair value through B TA(KEIE) TS FIR

other comprehensive income 1,006,100 -
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME - BE MR EFTS KA

plant and equipment - 168,328
Interest received 2HFILE 379,457 111,281
Repayment received on entrusted loans ZAERBYEER 160,056 162,995
Dividend received from an associate B —REEE A RS 131,018 3,966
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEE [ HERE - (10,081,401)
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEEREMSHRIE

available-for-sale investments - 11,713,755
Net cash outflow arising on W B A B EE 2 FRERE 36

acquisitions of subsidiaries (489,069) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEBMARS T

ACTIVITIES (8,336,262) (383,003)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

HEEERER
2018 2017
—E-)\fF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T4
(RESEVES))
(#&Eq)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
New bank borrowings raised FIRITEE 11,377,103 16,220,081
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITEE (3,108,570) (13,997,363)
Dividend paid on ordinary shares IR RE (2,257,919) (1,678,272
Dividends paid to non-controlling YNFHBERAFZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FEIERRAR R 2 AR B (685,354) (815,806)
Interest and other finance charges paid ERAFEREHAAFEE A (639,074) (346,929)
Consideration paid for acquisition of W BT B A )RR IME R PTI R(E
additional interests in subsidiaries (525,024) (265,492)
Proceeds from the partial disposal of HEMNB R RE D S8 RIE
a subsidiary 26,329 1,307,207
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ {T{# B LR ETEIE 207,481 940,774
Capital contribution from non-controling  MB AT 7 JEEAAR R H & 58
shareholders of subsidiaries 66,418 130,341
NET CASH FROM REEHBEREFE
4,461,390 1,494,541

—E— ) \FFRK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#% SRCTE

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASHAND R4 RBE4$ZEEE (L) EmTEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (426,453) 1,406,021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FNzRERRESEEER

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,113,756 6,472,614
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERgE

CHANGES (213,979) 235,121
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE ERZRERRESEEEE -

END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BRITEBRIRS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 7,473,324 8,113,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEZ =ZT— \GF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

Kingboard Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 47.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and
sales of laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals,
magnetic products, property development and investments
(“Properties”) and investment business.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”) while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
considered it is more relevant for the users of the consolidated
financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA?”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HK(FRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

—REH

REEBERA (AR ERSE
BT A L TERAR - ERHE
BRBAR S ERA (B2
FIRET o AR B FEMIFEE 2tk &

R e (NG
5 -

KARABREER AT HBARZ
FEEBHNKITELT

HIfBARTENEERER - BRI
BEAR ([ ENRIARBEIR)) ~ (L TEE M ~ T
EmRERHERY MEZRIRE
(M%) RIREER -

ARABMMEEERBARK(TAR
%)) ARAER(ERD)ARNET
(ML) 2IEREMBRREEMESE
RIERE - MR TRERINVETZY

RAFERE LN E BB
2 R B E R R S ET
ARBREKBAR (SR AEE DR
AEEERERATHEEGTMAS
MR BB I 15 B R R RO 3T R R R 48
HENE

EABERENEN SMIA
BENBRRENEGT, FRANUMER
EEIEHEN

FR(ERMBRERE  ERFZRBARE
ZE8)-2EHN

EAMBERENESE  BOXARINNR
TR Rit&

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ HKF RSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial

Instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

21 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related

interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
“Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the

related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

21

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of laminates,
printed circuit boards, chemicals, sales of properties and other
service income which arises from contracts with customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Impacts on assets (liabilities) as at 1 January 2018

Trade and other payables & 5 Kk H A FE(BERR @)

Deposits received from FEETEEMMEETS
pre-sale of residential units ()
Properties held for FEREME
development (b)
Contract liabilities SHEE (@)b)

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at
31 December
2017

BER
—T—+F
+=A
=+F=E
2R EEE
HK$’000
FHET

(9,569,089)
(3,551,562)

15,637,824

~

By
=

5 S
BN
i

‘:ﬂ]]N

ERMBRBEAFI5R
[EF&H%E](#)
AEERERK B HEBRER -
ENRIARBE AR oAb TEE G A R 85 B
YEN RS REMRAEFFEH
HARFEUA ©

ERASERNEENRERTE
015 R SR E R EAB RN ET X
ROEH - D RIRH S R3H

= o

NRERE BN BRBENSE
1R TEE N ENE
R-E-N\F—HA—-AfEGEEY
BARRIRR NIER S BRI A
THE  TEERREBHTEN
HA -

R-ZE-NE-A—-BAYEE
(BR)NXE

Carrying

amounts

under

Impacts of HKFRS 15 at
adopting 1 January
HKFRS 15 2018
BAER

—ZE-N\F

—HA—H

RIREBI

FANE BB 75 ER A
FREREA F155ETE
ERIE o) -7 ZERHEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
1,184,094 (8,384,995)
3,551,562 -
69,684 15,707,508
(4,805,340) (4,805,340)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (continued)

Notes:

() Advances from customers of approximately HK$3,551,562,000
and HK$1,184,094,000 in respect of sales contracts signed with
customers previously included in deposits received from pre-sale
of residential unit and trade and other payables, respectively were
reclassified to contract liabilities at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 15.

(b) At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15, interest expenses
of HK$69,684,000 relating to the significant financing component
has been adjusted to the contract liabilities and capitalised in
the properties held for development, due to the effects of the
time value of money of the deposits received from pre-sale of
residential units, which provides the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the properties under development. These
benefits implicitly exists in the contracts.

The application of HKFRS 15 has had no material impact on
the Group’s retained profits as at 1 January 2018.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2018, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and its consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERHHERLE
H

ﬂ
i IN
o T

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 78 B 75 BB SR A ([
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MR IRAER D) )
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

21 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 BERMBHRREAE155
Customers” (continued) [BEEEHWE(#)
Impacts on the consolidated statement of financial H_E-N\FF+ZA=+—HBF
position as at 31 December 2018 and consolidated EHMBRRERRBZE-S—N\F
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 TZA=Zt+—HLEFENRER
December 2018 mRNTE

Amounts

without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

ki34
FRERZEA|
REH R F15RNEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BdaE FET T#ExT THET
Revenue R (@) (45,994,419) 69,684 (45,924,735)
Cost of sales and HHE RIR AR AR
services rendered (@) 35,691,963 (69,684) 35,622,279
Properties held for FEREME
development (a) 20,023,136 (2,441) 20,020,695
Trade and other payables & 5 Kk H A e BERR (o) (6,424,456) (1,311,056) (7,735,512)
Deposits received from TEEMEMKETS
pre-sale of residential units (b) - (2,134,571) (2,134,571)
Contract liabilities AHREE (o) (3,448,068) 3,448,068 -
Notes: BT
(@) This relates to interest capitalised upon application of HKFRS (a) WIEE BEERBEMEH
15, due to the effects of the time value of money of the deposits RERFE15HREBEHNE AT
received from pre-sale of residential units. B ERXEESMEMKE

SHREEERZE

(b) This relates to the reclassification of advances from customers (b) HWIEE BB EREF BN
from deposits received from pre-sale of residential unit and trade REEMERKITERE S
and other payables to contract liabilities. MEMERERERETDHAE

BHALE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEHAHEEKRE:TZE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG s 3 e 352 B (] B 58
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MR IRAER D) )
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)
21 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 BRUBHRJFERE155
Customers” (continued) [BEEEHWE(#)
Impacts on the consolidated statement of cash flows HEE-_E-—-N\F+=-A=+—
for the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEFENGERERERN
g

Amounts

without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

3 4% &
R SRR
RER HE E15HMNEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT FHExT
Operating activities TS
Decrease in deposits received TEEMEMBET 2R
from pre-sale of residential units - 1,093,436 1,093,436
Increase in properties held for IR
development (6,147,406) 67,243 (6,080,163)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 M HE M FERBRFOR D
payables (768,294) 580,307 (187,987)
Increase in contract liabilities AXBEEN 96,506 (95,506) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related

amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, and the related consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for 1) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the effect arising from application
of HKFRS 9 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
Line items or reserves that were not affected have not been
included.

2.2

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ERMBRBERFONR
(@ TR IRMEEBIE (@)
A ERE B IR RERF
RATEENTENE

TRHEANBERERAH -F
—N\F—-A—BEREEWHH
RERNFERELNTE - X

BRI RE Y B0 EHER
B -

Equity
instruments
at FVTPL*
required by Equity Debt  Investment
AFS HKAS 39/ instruments instruments  revaluation Retained
investments* HKFRS9 atFVTOCI*  at FVTOCI* reserve profits
EAGTHES
gLkt
FORER BAYE BATE
BAYE HAHMEE SAHBRE
STAREZ L6 6 REEf
AHEERE BRIA BEIR*  RBIA* i REEHN
Note HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz TiER TR TiEn TiEn TiERn TiEn
Closing balance at 31 RZE—+5+=A
December 2017 ST-HZERES
-HKAS 39 -EAGENE0% 6,525,570 - - - 109,145 35,103,751
Effectarising fominiial Y5 EREANBEF
application of HKFRS 9 B 08% 7 /2 () (6,525,570) 1,650,830 8,124 4,966,616 (58,772) 58,772
Opening balance at RZF-\5-A-H
1 January 2018 LENEH
(Restated) (mEit) - 1550830 8,124 4966616 50373 35,162,523
As defined below. EER T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related

amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

@ Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments
Reclassification from AFS investments to equity
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the
Group’s equity investments of HK$1,550,830,000
were reclassified from AFS investments to equity
instruments at FVTPL. The fair value gains of
HK$58,772,000 relating to those investments
previously carried at fair value were transferred from
investment revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Reclassification from AFS investments to equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCYI”)

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) for the fair value changes of all its
unquoted equity investments previously classified as
AFS investments and which was measured at cost
less impairment under HKAS 39. These investments
are not held for trading and not expected to be sold in
the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9, HK$8,124,000 were reclassified from
AFS investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related

amendments (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(@)

(b)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments (continued)
Reclassification from AFS investments to debt
instruments at FVTOC/

Listed bonds with a fair value of HK$4,966,616,000
were reclassified from AFS investments to debt
instruments at FVTOCI, as these investments are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
of these assets and the contractual cash flows of
these investments are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Related fair value gains of HK$50,373,000 continued
to accumulate in the investment revaluation reserve as
at 1 January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related

amendments (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables that are within the scope of HKFRS 15.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
assessed individually and/or grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including other receivables, and bank balances are
assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis and
there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

All of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI are
listed bonds that are graded in the high credit rating
among rating agencies. Therefore, these investments
are considered to be low credit risk investments and
the loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

The Directors considered the additional ECL allowance
as at 1 January 2018 measured under ECL model is
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2 FEHFERKZEITIZE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEEEBED (BB
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS EATS R EREER |) ()
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 23 HAMBHITENHBD
financial position arising from the application of mEMBERRRZTE
all new standards ) .
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting polices ‘L;‘MK%@@ﬂB@ﬁZﬁ@ '
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial MY EREMBRRARAT AR
position had to be restated. The following table shows the 51 e Tﬁﬂjﬁ’\%ﬁ%ﬂiﬁl’ﬁﬁ R
adjustments recognised for each individual line items. Line SERE  TREAXEDTE
items that were not affected by the changes have not been MR -
included.

31 December 1 January

2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
—T-tf§ BRI BRBHK

t=A B RER REEN ZE-N\F

Sqr=1[g 21555 9% —H-H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THEx TER TEx
(Restated)

(fzEan)

Non-current and current assets JEFBRFEHEE

AFS investments AHHERE 6,525,570 - (6,525,570) -
Equity instruments at FVTPL BATERAERES
BRIA - - 1,550,830 1,550,830
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEAEM
EERENESTA - - 8,124 8,124
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BATER AR
EERENEBTIA - - 4,966,616 4,966,616
Properties held for development FERENE 15,637,824 69,684 - 15,707,508
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENERR 9,569,089 (1,184,094) - 8,384,995
Deposits received from HEMEMWETE
pre-sale of residential units 3,551,562 (3,551,562) - -
Contract liabilities aRaRE - 4,805,340 - 4,805,340
Note:  For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities MiE: ZASEFABRILHT
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018, BrREAe2BYORE
movements in working capital affected by the changes in the AR—F-NF—-A—-RAZ
Group’s accounting policies have been computed based on BUma MBI R E
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 EREFRBE-FT - N\F
January 2018 as disclosed above. tT-A=t-BLFELSE
BB RE R E (A REART
H)ZR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23
Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS

10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases!

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2.

PR AR M

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and the
interpretation mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify
a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$17,771,000, as disclosed in Note 42. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$116,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$175,620,818 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

PR AR M

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The Directors expect that the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared
with the current accounting policy would result in increase in the
Group’s right-of-use assets and related lease liability. The combination
of straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective
interest rate method applied to the lease liability will result in a higher
total charge to the profit or loss in the initial year of the lease, and
decreasing expenses during the latter part of the lease term, but
there is no impact on the total expenses recognised over the lease
term. Based on facts and circumstances as at 31 December 2018,
the Directors do not expect the application of HKFRS 16 will have a
material impact on the financial performance and net assets of the
Group.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained profits without restating comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ji) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUSs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of CGUS).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the group
of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
and a joint venture is described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or a joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, in an associate or joint venture, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method when the investment is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale

are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2)

HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach when reocgnising revenue:

o Step 1: Identify the contracts with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions

in note 2) (continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of laminates, printed
circuit boards and chemicals is recognised at a point in time. Under
the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from these
sales is recognised when customer acceptance has been obtained,
which is the point of time when the goods are delivered based on the
agreed shipping terms and the location specified by the customers,
and when the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of these
products.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of properties in the
ordinary course of business is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the respective properties.

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised over time.

Revenue from property investment and licence fee income will
continue to be accounted for accordance with HKAS 17, whereas
dividend income and interest income from investments will be
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 9.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods, properties or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if
the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides
the customer or the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment
terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions

in note 2) (continued)

Existence of significant financing component (continued)

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods, properties or service is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer
of the associated goods, properties or services in which the Group
adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a significant
financing component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. The relevant interest expenses
during the period between the advance payments were received and
the transfer of the associated goods and services are accounted for
on the same basis as other borrowing costs.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Goods, services, interests and dividends
Revenue from the sale of goods other than sales of properties is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as ‘deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) (continued)
Goods, services, interests and dividends (continued)

Service income from drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon the
provisions of the accommodation services. Revenue from food and
beverages sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the
provision of goods and services.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Licence fee income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant licence agreement.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to
receive payment have been established.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for lands and development costs, are included
in properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Any difference between
the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount
of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
category of properties, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties, plant and equipment under construction) less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Decognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as either other non-current assets or
other current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
are stated at cost less impairment, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible, intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policies in respect of

goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible, intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if
the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

The Group transfers prepaid lease payments to properties held
for development when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s redevelopment rather than owner
occupation. The previous carrying amount of the prepaid lease
payments becomes the cost of properties held for development upon
the date of transfer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangements or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits

the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of

an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, the
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arisen from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments at FVTOCI and dividend
income from equity instruments which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue. Interest income
from bank balances and deposits are included in other income, gain

and losses.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transition in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transition in note 2)
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transition in note 2)
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCI and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying amounts of
these debt instruments. The amounts that are recognised in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have
been recognised in profit or loss if these debt instruments
had been measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI, are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transition in note 2)

(continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually and/or collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occeurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk of financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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BEEEARAQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii)

)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit — impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(©) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis below:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI, bank
balances and other receivables, are each assessed as
a separate group);

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Except for investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in OCIl and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying amount of
these debt instruments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and AFS financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, entrusted
loans, bills receivables and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial asset (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i) AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest methods,
are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in

the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments will not be reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified
as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR aR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI
upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

3.

PR AR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018); and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payables is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
(continued)

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
For share options that are vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

PR AR M

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Notes 14 and 26)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios as at 31 December 2018, and concluded that
the investment properties located in the PRC with carrying amount
of approximately HK$9,926,051,000 (2017: HK$10,111,585,000)
are held under a business model which objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the Directors
have determined the presumption that the carrying amounts of such
investment properties are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on LAT in
respect of changes in fair value of such investment properties but has
recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

4.

PR aR M

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY |

continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Notes 14 and 26)
(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties located in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$3,107,690,000 (2017: 2,943,432,000) and
HK$3,892,122,000 (2017: HK$4,096,898,000), respectively are
not held under a business model which objective is to recover the
economic benefits of the investment properties entirely through use.
No deferred tax is recognised in respect of the fair value change in
such investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of investment properties in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom, assuming that the Group is considered as a non-
resident in the United Kingdom.

Legal claim (Note 41(b))

The Group is currently involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in
Note 41(b) to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors
have evaluated and assessed claims made against the Group
based on legal advice received and information presently available,
the Directors are of the opinion that the plaintiff has an intrinsically
defective claim and the Group should have a more than reasonable
chance to succeed. Accordingly, no provision nor accrual are made in
the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its properties,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are expected to be
shorter than previously estimated, or it will write-off obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Changes in
these estimations may have a material impact on the results of the
Group. The management reviews properties, plant and equipment
to determine if there is any indication that the assets may have been
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts
of properties, plant and equipment will be determined based on
discounted cash flow method of each asset or a CGU. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment loss (2017: HK$nil)
was recognised as the Directors consider that there was no indication
of impairment that require the estimation of the recoverable amount
of the properties, plant and equipment including the licensed assets.
At as 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of properties, plant
and equipment was approximately HK$14,879,768,000 (2017:
HK$14,529,533,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Note 18)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash,
a material impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of goodwill was approximately HK$2,467,076,000
(2017: HK$2,288,149,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowances for inventories (Note 27)

In determining the net realisable value of the Group’s inventories,
the management estimated the net realisable value of inventories
based on the most reliable information available at the time the
estimates are made. These estimates take into consideration the
fluctuations in price, the balance on hand relative to sales prospects
and the condition of the inventories. A write down of HK$34,954,000
(2017: HK$20,607,000) on inventories has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amount of inventories was HK$2,956,116,000 (2017:
HK$2,115,557,000).

Estimated net realisable value on properties held for
development (Note 28)

In determining whether write down should be made to the Group’s
properties held for development, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the estimated market value (i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling expenses)
less estimated costs to completion of the properties. Write down is
made if the estimated market value less estimated cost to completion
of the properties is less than the carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable value on properties held for development for sales is
less than expected as a result of change in market condition and/
or significant variation in the budgeted development cost, material
write down may result. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of properties held for development was approximately
HK$20,023,136,000 (2017: HK$15,637,824,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (Notes 29 and 39)
Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018

When there was an objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition where applicable). Where the actual future cash flows
were less than expected or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of trade receivables (Notes 29 and 39)
(continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 9

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings for
each grouping of debtors that have similar credit risk characteristic.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable, and available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, certain balances of trade receivables and
those credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 39 and 29.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was approximately HK$6,315,685,000 (2017: HK$6,276,643,000),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$1,033,494,000 (2017: HK$934,179,000).

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level
3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the
price per square metre in reference with recent transactions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed in Note 14.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s equity instruments
at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI and debt instruments
at FVTOCI (2017: AFS Investments), the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Directors will assess the valuation of financial
instruments based on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day
in the markets at the end of each reporting period. The fair value
of the Group’s bond securities listed on the Stock Exchange, the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”), SIX Swiss
Exchange (“SIX”), Deutscher Aktienindex (“DAX”) and Cayman Islands
Stock Exchange (“CSX”) is determined with reference to the pricing
vendors’ estimation, who will assess its fair value, taking into account
primarily the fair value quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the
lack of marketability of the bond securities at the end of the reporting
period. The pricing vendors will exercise their judgements based on
their experience to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the equity investments at FVTPL,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and debt instruments at FVTOCI (2017:
AFS investments), the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the Directors. Any changes in the marketability of the listed bonds will
affect the fair value of the investments. Notes 22, 23, 24, 25 and 39(c)
provides detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the
Group’s equity instruments at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI
and debt instruments at FVTOCI (2017: AFS investments).

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EABRmRMEE
5. REVENUE 5. B

FREXBEITNAT

Analysis of revenue for the year is as follows:

Revenue recognised at a point in time

AR — B B A 2 KA

2018
—B-)N\f&E
HK$’000

FEx

2017

HK$’'000
FBT
(RESEIE))
(FesEat)

Sales of chemicals HENTER 15,383,741 13,351,870
Sales of laminates HEE IR 14,928,663 14,594,174
Sales of PCBs $HE ERIAR BEAR 9,754,081 8,194,104
Sales of properties HEYHE 3,630,003 5,570,171
Others (Note i) A (BT 478,459 371,158
Revenue recognised over time (Note ii) P& A P e SR Y 2 S5 88 (B i) 126,986 60,560
Revenue from contracts with customers BEAHWES 44,301,933 42,142,037
Rental and licence fee income e REEFRABIA 1,175,784 1,017,436
Interest income from debt instruments (Note iii) &7 T B F 5 U A (i) 401,497 177,147

Dividend income from equity instruments R T ARBUA
(Note iii) (F 3iii) 115,205 34,650
45,994,419 43,371,270

All sales contracts, apart for sales of properties, have an original BRESEMEI TEHESHNRTEHRF
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, B AE—FHAT - BB EHRREL
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not F1ISRATNEEZERERS NN

disclosed. SEERTERE -
Notes: BisE -
ZEHRIEBREMEEREE

314,600,000 /& 7T ( = & — + &F :
303,103,000/ 7T) °

(i) The amount mainly included sales of magnetic products of (i)
HK$314,600,000 (2017: HK$303,103,000).

(ii) Revenue recognised over time represents income from hotel ammodation. (ii) BER R RERR A & SRR IEIB S R ©
(i) During the year, the Group reorganised its internal reporting structure which (i) FR - AEEBERENIPZHER - H

WRERENZRDH - REEBD
BB o FBEHN T XM EE - EERRE
AR AAEETEXBEBN I
o BB S ES T AR B A
REBRMNEE) kT ANREKA
CBIERT A MM ~ Was S E51R) 5T
oy ESE S

resulted in recognition of an additional reportable segment, the investment
business segment, details set out in Note 6 below. The Directors consider
its investment activities are a part of the Group’s principal business
activities and accordingly interest income from debt instruments using
effective interest method and dividend income from equity instruments
which was previously included in other income, gains and losses has been
reclassified to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBHmRME
5. REVENUE (continued) 5. %*%ﬁ(%)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PERERTEFEHNBHNEREN
performance obligation for contracts with customers REZEHE
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RZZE—N\F+_A=1+—H  #HEY
obligations for sales of properties (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) ESHEEHR TBAOSTCREKSED
as at 31 December 2018 and the expected timing of recognising REK)NXZEELRTEAER L ELRE
revenue are as follows: BRI
Sale of
properties
SHEYI
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —FR 5,003,820
More than one year BiE—F 2,585,505

—E— ) \FFRK
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM?”) in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are organised into six
main operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sale of laminates,
(i) manufacture and sale of PCBs, (iii) manufacture and sale of
chemicals, (iv) sales and rental of properties (“properties”), (v)
investments (mainly investment income from debt instruments at
FVTOCI, equity instruments at FVTPL and equity instruments at
FVTOCI) and (vi) others (mainly including service income, manufacture
and sale of magnetic products and hotel business). The management
aggregated the sales of properties and rental income business
into one reportable segment because the financial performance of
both businesses are affected by changes in the property market. In
addition, the management aggregated service income, hotel business
and manufacture and sale of magnetic products into one reportable
segment because the revenue, results, assets and liabilities of each
business are insignificant to the Group. No other operating segment
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS consolidated financial statements.
During the year, the Group reorganised its internal reporting structure
which resulted in recognition of an additional reportable segment,
the investment business segment. Prior year segment disclosure
have been re-presented to conform with current year’s presentation.
The CODM assesses segment profit or loss using a measure of
operating profit whereby certain items are not included in arriving at
the segment results of the operating segments (share of results of
associates, share of results of joint ventures, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, finance costs, share-based payments and unallocated
corporate income and expenses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinueq) 6. TEER @

(@) Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:

(GY)

DEEREREE
INT ARG E N EBRDEE D2
REFLEBNER 2NN

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—-\F+=-H=+—H
IEFE
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals Properties Investments Others Eliminations Consolidated
BAER ORSER  LIER W% R& A af Ba
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn TRz TEn  TER Tz TRn  TEr  TEx
(Note a) (Noteb)  (Notec)  (Noted)
(Hta) (W&b)  (Wic)  (Kkd)
Seqment revente HPesE
External sals HiEES 15048663 9754081 15383741 4685787 516702 605445 - 45994419
Inter-Segment sales PiEEESR 2,096,233 - 766,600 - - 6,921 (2,869,754) -
Total A: 1714489 9,754,081 16,150,341 4,685,787 516,702 612,366 (2,869,754 45,994,419
Resut Ei
Segment results %k 203745 47351 1378150 2340266 325305 70,218 7,524,965
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBR A AR 2,089,808
Unallocated corporate income FARZATRA 101,629
Unallocated comorate expenses FARZARLH (283,954)
Finance costs HERK (689,222)
Share of resuts of joint ventures ElRenazE 86,515
Share of results of associates E BenA%E 192,169
Proftt before taxation iyl 9,121,910
Notes: BT
(@) The management aggregated the revenue derived from the sales (@) BREEHHERREREE

of laminates and licence fee income into “Laminates” segment.

(b) The management aggregated the revenue derived from the sales
of properties and rental income into “Properties” segment.

BERERERBRAGHA
[EINEAR |50

(0) EEERHENELEER
HEWAAHAIEIDE -

(© The management aggregated the revenue derived from the (0) BEEHEB AR WA
interest income from debt instruments and dividend income into KRB EEEE AR
“Investment” segment. BnaEB e

(d) The management aggregated the revenue derived from the sales
of magnetic products and income from hotel accommodation and
income from other businesses.

(d) ERERHEUEERESR
HoOBEEBRAREME
BWAGHE -

—ZF—

NEFFHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBHmRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued) 6. DEER@
(@ Segment revenue and results (continued) () IHEXFREE&H
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=—=—+tH&+=-A=+—H

ILFE

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties  Investments Others  Eliminations - Consolideted
BAER {LIER E: R g Sis

HKS 000 HKS000  HK§000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKSO000

T T T TR TL TAn THR

Seqment revente HPesE
Extemal sales HIMEE UTa17d 8104104 18351870 6467607 211797 431718 - 43371210
Inter-segment sales HRCHEE 1,041,088 - 64308 - - 74 (2585,649) -
Total A3 16,605,242 8194104 13996,173 6467607 211,797 431,992  (2,585,645) 43.371,270
Resut Ei
Segment results priE 3,958,106 693,051 966,306 1,974,715 1,330,660 18,854 8,936,752
Share-based payments WA (3,136)
Unallocated corporate income FARZAAMA 44,388
Unallocated corporate expenses RARZAFTH (408,991
Finance costs HERK (311919
Share of resuts of associates N 103,267
Proft before taxation BRI 8,365,361
Inter-segment sales are charged on a cost-plus basis with an S EfE 2 S EBRFRRAMA
arm’s length margin. SR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBmRMETE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEMER
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) HHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities AT BiRies R BRmyEElIn 2
by operating and reportable segments: AEEEERBEZON

At 31 December 2018

Assets
Segment assets
Interests in associates
Interests i joint ventures
Unallocated corporate assets
- Bank balances and cash
- Deferred tax assets
- Taxation recoverable
- Others

Consolicated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilties
Unallocated corporate liabilties
- Bank borrowings
- Taxation payable
- Deferred tax liabilties
- Others

Consolicated total liabilities

-RiTERERS
-ERHEAE
-HERE
-t

RREEMRE

af

NBaRE

RALZAAGE
-RiTlEE
- EAHA
-EHERR
-t

GREERE

Laminates

BRER

HK$'000
TEn

17,437,583

(2,909,757)

PCBs
HRISER
HK$'000
Tn

12,309,234

(2,004,057)

Chemicals
tI1ER
HK$'000

T

6,668,691

(1,076,408)

R-ZZB-N\F+ZA=t—H

Properties Investments Others Consolidated
nx k& At G
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

0,044,104 10648610 1,147,151 87,4537
540,681

2,466,504

3,458,847
3,653
19,873
505,408

94,430,339

(4,055,118) - (94,479) (10,139,819
(27,513,681)
(1,167,261)
(731,036)
(245,211)

(39,797,068)

= — \FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR MIEE

6.

v

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2017

Assets
Segment assets
Interests in associates
Assets classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets
- Bank balances and cash
- Deferred tax assets
- Taxation recoverable
- Others

Consolicated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilties
Unallocated corporate liabilties
- Bank borrowings
- Taxation payable
- Deferred tax liabilties
- Others

Consolidated total liabiliies

Laminates
BEER
HKS'000

T

BE

AR
EAw%LﬂZ?ﬁﬁ_ﬂ
ARRGERE
Al ARAE
S iraia)e k)
e
- lEE
-t

18,467,204

RREERRE

af

/-\_L '515

* AL WAL
-RiTlEE
-8R
-ERREAR
-Eft

(2,921,899

GAREeE

PCBs
)4

10,965,041

(2,107,749)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interest in associates, assets classified as held
for sale, deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable,
certain bank balances and cash and others assets
used jointly by operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and others liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.
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6. DHER

b) PBEEREREE
R=B—t&F+=A=+-A8

Chemicals  Properties  Investments Others  Consolidated

o S T
HKS' 000 HKS'000

in
[RESEICN)

7793988 37321462 6,625,570 98,067 82,031,402
504,000

1,696,193

3,421,162
3,768
7,964

629,614

88,204,383

(1690579 (4,236,209 - B1%) (11042559
(19,088342)
1836,418)
(783,418)

(2,769,926)

(34,570,663)

REENBRARDESHE

o BREBEAANENR
FEAE ECHEA
EOAREBE - A%
5 AR 5 M T 4R
TEBREALREME
BN HARESRE
WEHH R

. BRIRTTIEE - BEHRIA
BE BERBERKE
DERFHRIEENE M E
B9 ERESEE

ESER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

6.

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

segment assets:

Capital addtions

Depreciation

Release of prepaid lease payments

Loss on fair value changes of
equity instruments at FVTPL

(Gain on disposal of debt instruments
at FyToC

Impairment loss recognised on
trade receivables

Write down of inventories

Interest income from bank halances
and cash and entrusted loans

Loss (gain) on disposal and written off
of properties, plant and equipment

(Gain on fair value changes of
nvestment properties

U

i

BfiEEERE
BOVETARENERD
ERVERIER
HERDFETALEE
hEnERIALS
HERRUENEDL
HEsR

Hirs
BOEBIEERERER
HEHA
HERMENR - BERAEL
BRkE)
RENFLTRED
Wi

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Laminates

REER
HK$'000
Tin

960,14
502,680
6,3%

51,68
16,685

20,01

31,304

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

PCBs
HIIAEA
HK$000
Thn

1,565,299

574,756
398

13548
11,575

29,028

43,054

6. DHER

Hitt&¥
BE_Z2-N\¥t+-A=+—H

(c)

Chemicals
tIER W%
HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn TEn
579,088 8,411,371
1875 67210
6,875 -
nm -
6,694 -
28,005 5,008
841,191 463
- 174806

ILFE

145

DEMERHADHEENTER

7

Properties Investments

R&
HK§'000
Thn

1,242

148,207

(3,578)

Unallocated
Others ~ amount Consolidated
iy AAREE Ba
HKS000  HK$'000  HK$1000
TR ThR
7,061 - 11,523,863
3431 - 1,068,043
16,478 - 33,612
- - 148297
- - (3578)
- - 187,003
- - 34,954
63 3,105 85,280
149 - 016,161
- - 1748%

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBHmRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coniinued) 6. ZTEER=
(c)  Other information (continued) (c) HtER®E
For the year ended 31 December 2017 gz2-E—+tH&E+=-A=+—8
LHEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or DEERIADIBEENTER
segment assets: $E
Unallocated
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties ~ Investme Others amount  Consolcated
RHER It IER VES Hff
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS'000
T L T Tt T T
Capital addtions BRER 871,791 833,166 308910 4,039,884 - 36,162 - 6089912
Depreciation e 560,203 496,003 650,033 6,108 1,349 44120 - 1,757,861
Release of prepaic ease BREEERE
payments 5392 4485 9,388 - - 5,039 - 24304
Gain on disposal of AFS investments  HET [ ERENE - - - - 1153015 - - 1153015
Impaiment loss recognised on TRSENEET e
trade receivables 81,211 73408 12,174 - - - - 166,793
Write down (reversal of write down) WA (BEMR S
of inventories 6,269 (2,738 17,086 - - - - 20,607
Interest income from bank balances FTERRASRERER
and cash and entrusted loans LN A048 24807 1806 20814 - m 01 121,39
Loss (gain) on disposal and writien off ~ HERAENE - BEREEZ
of properies, plant and equipment Ela&) 38,751 (1,800) 1841 - - 279 148 40519
(Gain on fair value changes of RENELTEES
nvestment properties ey - - - 54,284 - - - 54,284
The Group operates principally in the PRC (country of NEBMFEEBM NP (AT
domicile). EER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(©

Other information (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location of the customers
or tenants or in the case of interest income and dividend
income, the principal place of business of the investee or
debtor:

147

6. DHER

©

Hitp &R (&)
AEEREE P REF AR
Sl fsf 8 1) S A B Bl B A IR
BRRENTHERANTEELE
MEHIINEEFEERSTN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+-HLEE

2018 2017

—EB-N\E —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&xT T4

(RESEICE))

(#&Eq)

The PRC (country of domicile) AL (FTEEISR) 40,750,156 39,201,410
Other Asian countries (including Thailand,  ESMEIR (BIERER -

Japan, Korea and Singapore) HA - 52BN ) 2,684,884 1,898,719
Europe BN 1,730,037 1,623,699
America FM 829,342 747,442

45,994,419 43,371,270

No single external customer of the Group contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
other than deposits paid for acquisition of properties, plant
and equipment and investment properties, deferred tax assets,
other non-current assets and equity instruments at FVTPL,
equity instruments at FVTOCI and debt instruments at FVTOCI
(2017: AFS investments) by location of assets is presented as
follows:

BE_T—tFt+-A=1t—H
RZF-NF+-_A=1+—HL
BEE  AREYEE—ZIMNE
BEPEAREEEERERI0%

BB - BE RRE R
BYMEENZES  BEHEE
E - RtSERBEEREATE
FPAERSERTIA  BRATE
SEARMEERENES TAR
BAHEF AR MEEEENE
BIA(ZZ—tF At eE
BE)IN AREERBEER
BEMEOMEINMT

At 31 December

Rt+t=HA=+—H
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The PRC (country of domicile) R (FTERZR) 32,614,128 31,764,571
United Kingdom s 6,440,982 4,179,692
Thailand ZRE 397,352 249,313
39,452,462 36,193,576

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMEWA - Wz KkESE

2018 2017
—E-N\F B+
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET T
(RESEIE))
(g )
Other income, gains and losses includes: BEaWA -~ hms REEeE
Interest income on bank balances and deposits SRITHE R NI E 2 F B 43,420 74,495
Interest income on entrusted loans ZREERZFERA 41,860 52,898
Government grants AT RG 42,550 -
Loss on disposal and written off of properties, HEMMEDE - BEX
plant and equipment REZEE (35,177) (40,519)
Others Hip 77,133 45,497
169,786 132,371
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMA
2018 2017
—EB-)N\fF —E—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
(RESEICE))
(g2 )
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 645,104 345,522
Imputed interest on contract liabilities SREEZEERNE 2,441 -
Less: Amounts capitalised in the construction W R TIE
in progress BN EEE (13,721) (4,794)
Amounts capitalised in the properties FERYEDN
held for development BRI &5 (44,602) (28,809)
589,222 311,919
Bank and other borrowing costs capitalised during the year includes FRZERMEBITREMESRABTE
the bank and other borrowing costs of HK$42,161,000 (2017: BRERBREMEREBEE ZRTEE
HK$28,809,000) arose from a bank borrowing specific for a property R SR 1T & E b 18 B A 4 42,161,0007%
development project and interest on advance payment received from T(ZZF—+4F : 28,809,000 L) *
customers of HK$2,441,000 (2017: nil) as well as, bank borrowing B E PN TR 22,441,000/ (=
costs arising from the general borrowing pool which were calculated T—tF:B)R—REEEEZR]T
by applying a weighted average capitalisation rate of 2.63% (2017: BERAEK  UWEEREERIIMET
2.23%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets. BHEREFERE263%( T —L4F

2.23%)51E

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



BEEEARAQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. Fif8BimAxX
2018 2017

—B-N&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FATT

The amount comprises: HIBEIE

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EATSH 1,463,040 1,187,799
PRC LAT AR £ it I (E R 511,934 251,217
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEMEH 62,456 61,609
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HibRlEEm 2 1718 37,028 29,919
Underprovision in previous years BEFERETR 641 12,165
2,075,099 1,542,709
Deferred taxation (Note 26) RIER IR (FI5E26) (23,389) (11,632
2,051,710 1,681,177

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

RRAPBRCEMSIRE(SEMER
ENDREERED - AZTENF—A
— A% BENTEMBARZE
FriSE R A25% ©

AR LR ER AR R B ERA
RBRRAMBRMEE - L HIRESER
(REMEHEBAMEREEBRKA)
WA BT 3 30% 2 60%E A H 2 £ i 15
B} - HEEBRKRARE R LI -
BRREERA > REMEREERR
AR - BRBERBRBARZE TR
& HEMERELTHIIIEER - 2
FEZERTRRT &R ERMEHE -

EBNEGBIREMEFEE 2 (T EEH
SEAIA16.5% 2 FRREHE -

ot EANE R 2 BOR A B A A E
ZHAREHH -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9 ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁi(%)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as REE 2 1A B R AT B 2 $RR 10
follows: T

2018 2017
—E-N\F ==

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit before taxation MR B Vs A 9,121,910 8,365,361

ABIA (B3 TSI E25%

Tax charge at the domestic income tax (ZZ—+%F :25%)

rate of 25% (2017: 25%) (Note a) STE 2 B (Mi5ta) 2,280,478 2,091,340
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR B R 2 s &

tax purpose 44,974 18,668
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  HERRIUEE 2 TS & (577,031) (575,472)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures EHEERREEZRBTE (21,629) -
Tax effect of share of results of associates FEIEEEE R RIEE 2 IS 2 (48,042) (25,817)
PRC LAT B IR E R 511,934 251,217
Tax effect of PRC LAT hE TR ER 2 T E (127,984) (62,804)
Tax effect of Tax Concession (Note b) RS ER 2 HET 2 (HsEb) (90,729) (112,318)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RTFERHEEBEZHETE 153,698 91,296
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) F LATE R 32 > B I8 E548 (20,807) (39,503)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BB A SRS T A -

operating in other jurisdictions/areas READ RLARER, R A&

other than the domestic income tax rate WEBAT .z T RTE z f 2 (12,023) (49,635)
Effect of tax exemption (Note c) MIBEN R 2 522 (Mistc) (41,770) (67,960)
Underprovision in respect of prior years BEFEREBTR 641 12,165
Tax expense for the year NERE 2 B 2,051,710 1,531,177

Notes: Bt EE

@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) represents the PRC (@ NEEMRSHBER26%(ZF—+
Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations are substantially F o 26%) RAEEREBD EW TR
based. FEIEMEHE -

(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (b) RBEEMREHE  SFRiieEaE
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially EETRAUEZARA=FM15%H K
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC obtained official BE - ARAETHREMBRAREES
endorsement as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax Concession”). RIERBIEITEE([RBEE]D -

© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are © RARRIHORF 2 & FHBRRIES
exempted from profit tax. Zm MIERR R BN FISEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GO BRENE
10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. AEEERF
2018 2017
—E-)N\EF TE—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at RS M B AR (L)
after charging (crediting): LATIEE :
Auditor’s remuneration HEETEN S 13,050 13,050
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 31,833,996 28,450,936
Cost of properties sold EEMERK 2,103,757 4,132,281
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment  ¥1% - [RE R EITE 1,968,043 1,757,861
Direct operating expenses in relation to BREKREYENEEZZE
investment properties Sz 208,356 184,608
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 5t 5 FE U BE 51 iR~ R E & 18
(included in administrative expenses) (BFFATTEER) 137,003 166,793
Net exchange loss (gain) PE H e (e ) 58 9,537 (11,314)
Release of prepaid lease payments FERHEERIE 2 # D 33,612 24,304
Total staff costs, including directors’ BIKRAKEE BEEEHE
emoluments (Note 11) (BF3E11) 3,211,618 2,974,443
Write down of inventories, included in MORIFE - st ASHERA
cost of sales 34,954 20,607

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. B THHEBRES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [ [

(@ Directors’ emoluments (@ E=Me
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: EfSREN T

2018 2017

=t S —EtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Fees we 1,128 1,088

Other emoluments: Hif e :

Salaries and other benefits HFe NEMBF 18,073 17,503
Contributions to retirement RIREFIE SR

benefits scheme 834 816

Performance related incentive payment TERIIARAEE IE 104,194 105,170

124,229 124,577

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived or agreed to wavie any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Employees’ emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2018, four (2017: four)
of the highest paid employees are Directors and the Chief
Executive.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the emoluments of
the remaining one (2017: one) individual were as follows:

11.

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b)

()

=
[

- THRRKRES

Sz (48)

THHERMNE
EKBEE TN BARRRITERE
o AR EXWE - BP&
NE G RITRAARIR M2 RS
ZIREN o

THAHKEMNESREREE
"B N\ER-T—+F+A
=T RLEFEREXRBRE
ERBE -

BEME
BE-F-)/\F+-H=1+—H
FFE mE(CE—tF:m
B)BEBHALEHEIREER
TTHAREL

BE-Z-\F+t=A=+-—
HIEFE #T—8(ZF—+t
F o —R)ALHBSETIAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Salaries and other benefits 4 REMEF 3,202 3,112
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R F|zHEI{H X 148 145
Performance related incentive payment TYERIBBRAERIFIA 20,042 20,360
Total emoluments B¢ 4258 23,392 23,617

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid to or receivable by the Directors or
the Group’s five highest paid individuals, including Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(d)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

As disclosed in Note 46, the Group entered into sale and
purchase transactions with the subsidiaries of a shareholder
with significant influence on the Group. The price is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time
with reference to the prevailing market price.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu, Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the executive Directors,
are interested in these transactions to the extent that they
have beneficial interests in these companies.

Save for the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company or the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

1. B
)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2018 2017
—B-)N\f&E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T4
Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE
ZE-N\FHHRE
2018 Interim dividend of HK60 cents FxEmARe0 L
(2017: HK60 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ=—+F : 60751) 649,891 639,872
ZE— \FERIFER B
2018 Special interim dividend of HK50 cents GBS0
(2017: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZT—+F : 8|) 541,576 -
—E—FREARE
2017 Final dividend of HK100 cents BiEER100481L
(2016: HK70 cents) per ordinary share (ZZT—7RF  70781l) 1,066,452 726,880
ZENFERIAREARE
2016 Special final dividend of HK30 cents G B30
(2017: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZT—+F : #|) - 311,520

2,257,919 1,678,272

2018 2017
—2-N% —E—tf

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TETT

Dividends proposed EERE

FEOE\FAREKRE

Proposed 2018 Final dividend of HK70 cents G AR 70
(2017: HK100 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—+%F : 1007E10) 758,207 1,066,452
The final dividend of HK70 cents per ordinary share amounted to BEEERREBE-_ZE—NF+=A
HK$758,207,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 = t—HLEFERERAREGRE
(2017: final dividend of HK100 cents per ordinary share amounted to 70 + £ ¥ /R3758,207,000/8 TT
HK$1,066,452,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017) (ZF—tF  pBE—T—tF 1=

A=+—BLHFERERETRE D
f& 100781l - & %8 & 1,066,452,000 7
. 70) ¢ HEAFAR R IR EE AR R
general meeting. FREUM - HOE -

have been proposed by the Directors and are subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



BEEEARAQA

-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

13.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following

data:

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share

AESRERNEERNZ
pael

157

BRER

ARABEAANBIEERER R EERT
BT BIETE

2018
—B-N\F

2017

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

6,075,760 5,693,434

Number of shares

R B

2018

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from share options

BREARNZ BB INE
FI
RSB E HA
NCEES 5 i
TRk RE

—B-)N\fF

1,067,373,737 1,043,040,213

6,989,986 9,676,220

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of diluted earning per share

SRIPSRA 2 ARV
FHH

1,074,363,723 1,052,616,433

REBEE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HILF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 did not take into account the effects of share options
of the Company granted on 21 March 2011 and the share options of
KLHL, as the exercise prices of the outstanding share options were
higher than the average market prices of the Company’s and KLHL's
shares during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BN s EESRE SR NI EE B
RARZE——F=A=+—BHTH
HARITE 2 B BBE R @ EREER
BEBERE  AEE2—_FT—+tF1+-A
=t BLFERZEELBREITE
B #EARR FEEEERBRONT
BFBERR

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

14.

PR AR M

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

14, BEYE

HK$'000
TAT

FAIR VALUE AEE

At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%—AF—H 15,368,824
Exchange adjustments B b, 1,005,427
Transfer from properties held for development (Note) HEBFERYE(MT) 723,380
Gain on fair value changes N EZ W 54,284
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H 17,151,915
Exchange adjustments P& H T (674,622)
Transfer from properties held for development (Note) EEE R EYE (M) 100,328
Additions NE 173,346
Gain on fair value changes N EZE W 174,896
At 31 December 2018 R \F+—A=+—H 16,925,863

Note: Certain properties held for development were reclassified to investment
properties upon changing in use as evidenced by commencement of
operating leases with independent third parties (see Note 28).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2018 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited (2017: Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited), an independent qualified valuer not connected to
the Group. Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was determined
based on direct comparison method by reference to the market
observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to reflect
conditions and locations of subject properties. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in prior years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14, BEWE &)

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the Directors
has set up a valuation committee, which is headed up by the
persons in charge of financial matters of the Group, to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

The Group engages an independent valuer to perform its valuations.
The valuation committee works closely with the independent valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The persons in charge of financial matters reports the valuation
committee’s findings to the Directors every quarter to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties

held by the Group

in the consolidated

statement of Fair value
financial position hierarchy
fRE MR RS RNFE
REEREG2REMZE  FERH

Valuation techniques

HERM R
TERABE

Industrial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison

EATAME
1A B0

Price per square metre,

RETHENENATE EFEK
UHEZEE  HEEAKENKEY
MALTHE URATFEHAEETEE
(B T K B A BUR

AEBBBE - 2B AEMETHEE -
MEZESRBYMAEMEZAE B
AEEEEE N EERTRE AR
B BEMBEBNALTEFTAERER
SHEZEENER  UBREBEENEA
BEAFENREREA -

R=F—\F+=A=+—AR=Z
—tF+=A=t+—8  AEEZRE
MESFRE=ADTFESER -

TREVNZEREMEZAFEEES
N (CEZATA RS ERT R AR
AR A BT 28 A SR A BRIR
BB AFTEFESEZ AT EEBEARR
(F—ZE=f) -

Significant unobservable
and key inputs inputs

Sensitivity

A significant increase in
the price per square metre

method with price per
square metre

Hong Kong

REBN IR B=/R
B

BERLBEREF K

using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$41,426
to HK$47,368 (2017:
HK$42,389 to HK$42,862)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALRYER
ZEALE A S E A {E R A
Hiz(NFREBIE - WEX
NEYVFFTORERE - N
THFHKAT,42678 L E
473688 TT(ZFT—+F :
42,3898 7T £ 42,8628
JT) e

used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

ST K ERAE LTS
EHR AN RO AT B
EAWELF - B2 -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR MIEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

statement of Fair value

financial position hierarchy

iRE BRI R R ~¥E

REERFHEZIREME RERT

Commercial properties  Level 3
in the New Territories,

Hong Kong
REBHANEANE F=R
Commercial properties  Level 3

in Hong Kong Island,

Hong Kong
REBEEBENERY F=R
E

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERM &
FEHABUER

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERETFIIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERETIIK
B

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

14, BEWE )

Significant unobservable
inputs

BEATAIHR

B ABUR

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$54,147
to HK$54,337 (2017:
HK$54,692 to HK$55,015)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALRYER
B E A S E A (E R E
iz (NFREBIE - WEX
NEVFTTORERE - N
FHFFHKE4,147TBTTE
54,3378 L(ZF—+t5F :
54,6928 7T 255,015/
TT) e

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$200,090
to HK$203,981

(2017: HK$168,650 to
HK$170,071) per square
metre.
RAMSEEALRYER
ZEALE A S E A {E R E
iz (MNREEEE - WEX
NE)VFTTORERE - N
T8 7K200,0908 L E
203,981 (=T —+t4F ¢
168,650/8 L& 170,071/
7T e

Sensitivity

BURE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

¥ I RERAE LT
BHREMENO A FER
EBRBLF - RZIA -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

¥ I RERAE LT
BHREMEN RN TFER
BARBLF - RZIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

rRE MIIRR RS
REEREZREME

Commercial properties
in Shanghai

SN EES

Residential properties
for rental purpose in
Shanghai

R EBRELERRZRN
EEME

Fair value
hierarchy
AFAE

BB

Level 3

FE=R

Level 3

E=M®

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
BRI K

T 2B AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERETFIIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BEERLBERETIIK
B

161

14, BEWHE )

Significant unobservable
inputs

BATABE

EETPANE 67

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB30,458
to RMB34,523 (2017:
RMB28,000 to RMB36,500)
per square metre.
HRATSEEALEYER
ZRALE A K E A E R E
& (MERATBE - MEX
NE)NEFTORER - N
THFHRARKEZ0,458
TEARME4,5237L(=ZF
—+F : AR¥28,0007T
= AR¥36,5007T) °

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB125,000
to RMB158,333 (2017: N/A)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALLRYER
B E A S E A ERIE =
& (ERETIERE ~ WE R/
F)NGFHARER  NTF

B K ARE125,0007T
= AR#158,3337TL (=&
—tF  NEA) -

Sensitivity

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FFIRERKRIE LTS
BHREMENO A FER
BRELF  RZIA -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FFIRERAE LTS
BUREMEN R FEFEXR
fELET  RZIFA -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR MIEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

AR RS

AEERFHZREME

Commercial properties
in Guangzhou

REMNEERYE

Commercial properties
in Shenzhen

NZRUIFE)EEYE S

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Fair value
hierarchy
AFE

ZRIEASR

Level 3

Level 3

F=M

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
AR &

FE@H AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BEERLBERETIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BEREBEREFIIK

B

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

14, BEWE )

Significant unobservable
inputs

BRTAEE
EETPANG7

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB16,510
to RMB28,013 (2017:
RMB15,800 to RMB27,953)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALLRYER
E BALE DA K E A E B A
=iz (NEREBEE - WEX
NEVFF T RERE -
FHFHRARE6,510
TEARK28,013L(=F
—tF : AR¥15,8007T
&= ARM27,9537T) °

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB15,794
to RMB16,207 (2017:
RMB15,000 to RMB16,500)
per square metre.
RAMSEEAILEYER
= BB A K E A {E R A
=iz (INREEE - MEX
NEVFFTORERE - N
FEFIRARKE15,794
TEAR16,207T(=F
—+t%F : AR¥15,0007T
= AR¥16,5007T) ©

Sensitivity

HRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FFIRERKRIE LT
BIRREMEN N FER
BARBLEF - RZIA -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

BT RER AR LT
BHEREMENRFER
EBRBLF - RZIA -
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A I IRARMIEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

AP BIRR RS

AEERBHZREMFE

Commercial Shops in
Qingyuan

RIB RN E R

Commercial properties
in London

N GEZ GOTS)SEUE S

Fair value
hierarchy
AFE

iR 7|

Level 3

F=H

Level 3

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERM &
EEHALE

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BEREBEREFIIK

=

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERG T K

s

163

14, BEWHE )

Significant unobservable
inputs

BERTAER

B ABUR

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB10,000
to RMB10,360 (2017:
RMB10,778 to RMB10,898)
per square metre.
RAMSEEAI L EYER
Z BB A K& E A E R A
=iz (NREBE - MEX
NEVFTTORERE - N
FHF 75K AE#10,000
TEAR10,360T(=F
—tF : AR¥10,7787C
= AR¥10,8987T) ©

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from Great British
Pound (“GBP”) 5,656

to GBP14,439 (2017:
GBP5,277 to GBP13,754)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALRYE
12 B B AR E AR {E B
F &z (NEREBE - M
RNE )R GF T AREIE
NFEGFJ5K5,6564 8%
14,4395 85 ( — T —+ 4 :
5,277 HEEZE13,754H8%) o

Sensitivity

BURE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

B IRERAE LT
BHRENENORAFER
BARBELEF - RZIA -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

IR BIEAE LT
B A MEN ATFEH
EAELF - R2IA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior years.

Certain investment properties with a carrying value of

HK$1,780,000,000 (2017: HK$1,780,000,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BMEKRRE

Freehold
lands

KAERLE
HK$'000

13

Leasehold

Buildings  improvements

BT
HK$'000
AL

BRNREE

Plant and
machinery

HERER
HK§'000
TAL

Licenced
assets
&
FR&E
HK$'000

Furniture,

fixturesand  Transportation

equipment

equipment

Bk

Properties,
plant and
equipment
under
construction
RYE
BERRE
HK$000

COST A
At1 January 2017 RZE—tF-A-R 53,440 3427219 1,024,892 23,458,802 2,186,769 1,531,844 139,615 777,59 32,600,233
Exchange adjustments ExRg 294 93,468 6,339 1,206,346 151,921 90418 7,753 75,420 1,630,959
Additions HE - 5072 33,301 1,040,064 21,147 302,950 14,464 605,285 2,028,883
Transfer from properties held ERERERNE

for development (Note 28) (Hzio8) - 179,254 - - - - - - 179,254
Disposals and write off HE Rdfss - (14,493 (57,211) (521,500) (65,056) (24,379 (12,029) 35,510) (730,171)
Reclassffications v - 2412 21,780 362,454 - 54,616 - (461,262) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=1-R 53,734 3712992 1,029,101 26,545,166 2,301,381 1,965,449 149,810 961,525 35,709,158
Exchange adustments ExgE par) (1%252) G673 O3 (108032 69,792 (5,347) B4317) (1208941)
Acquired on acouisiions of BB ARG (H:T36)

subsidiaries (Note 36) - 4817 - 371,341 - 2891 1,430 12,521 393,000
Additions e - 21,512 26,729 1,177,219 5619 222,887 16,351 1,493,563 2,963,990
Transler from properties held for ~ BEEHEENE

development - 430444 - - - - - - 430,444
Disposals and write off HER#HH - (399 532 (2604976 - (60,085) (13083 (10750 (269569
Reclassfications ENE - 188,509 7678 532,018 - (176,788) - (551,417) -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\FtZA=1+-R 51,268 4223420 1,021,456 24,109,097 2200968 1,874,562 149,181 1,871,115 35,501,062
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  $7& R
At 1 January 2017 RZF—t5-A-R - 723,167 552,044 14,894,729 1,870,901 919,843 94 447 - 19,065,131
Exchange adjustments EipE - 13,503 4,287 781,827 131,985 50,224 6,131 - 987,967
Provided for the year TEERE - 29,929 57,515 1,461,116 71,075 126,777 11,449 - 1,757,861
Eiminated on disposals and wrte off R+t $4 i - (9518) (57,155) (474,808) (48,662) (21018 (10,163 - (621,324)
At 31 December 2017 i 2 o s - 757,081 556,691 16,062,864 2,025,299 1,075,826 101,864 - 21,179,625
Exchange adjustments By - 0573) B89 [E6837) (04919 (36,566) (3462) - (745,946)
Provided for the year TEERE - 44,599 40,265 1,639,739 67,576 162,453 13411 - 1,968,043
Eiminated on disposals and wrte off &R+t 84 i - 4,018) (6608 (1,716471) - (42,991) (10,340) - (1,780,428)
Reclassfication ENAE - 3958 - 13 - (3.971) - - -
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\F+tZA=1-R - 775,888 571,427 16,019,798 1,997,967 1,164,751 101,473 - 20,621,294
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\§+t-A=1-R 51,263 3447632 450,029 8,089,299 203,011 71981 47,708 187,115 14,879,768
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tE+ZA=1-R 53,734 2,965,911 412410 8,882,302 276,082 879,623 47,946 961,525 14,529,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 15.

EQU'PM ENT (continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those
under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis after
taking into account of their residual values at the following rates per

annum:

Freehold lands Nil

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired
terms of leases ranging from
twenty to fifty years

Leasehold improvements 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-33"/3%

Transportation equipment™® 10-20%

* Including those grouped under licenced assets.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s freehold lands of HK$51,263,000
(2017: HK$53,734,000) are situated outside Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND

EQU'PM ENT (continued)

Note:

U

Details of licenced assets:

(B

15. Y% - BERZRE

Buildings
BF

HK$’000

BT

0 B REEFS

Plant and Transportation
machinery equipment
HK$’000 HK$’'000

T +

Total
PN
AR

HK$'000
FET

COST Jo%:
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—HF—8 327,512 1,850,568 8,689 2,186,769
Exchange adjustments N AR 22,090 129,218 613 151,921
Additions NE 4,617 22,175 955 27,747
Disposals and write off HE R I3 (28,158) (36,054) (844) (65,056)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+tF

+=-—A=+—H 326,061 1,965,907 9,413 2,301,381
Exchange adjustments [ 5 7% (15,159) (90,439) (434) (106,032)
Additions NE 4,456 1,163 - 5,619
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—)\F

+=-—A=+—8 315,358 1,876,631 8,979 2,200,968
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT T RiR{E
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—HF—H 145,036 1,717,176 8,689 1,870,901
Exchange adjustments FEH AR 9,303 122,100 582 131,985
Provided for the year AE RS 3,638 67,379 58 71,075
Eliminated on disposals and write off 65 B 53 884 M i i (27,028) (20,824) (810) (48,662)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+tF

+—-A=+—H 130,949 1,885,831 8,519 2,025,299
Exchange adjustments I 5 (6,141) (88,383) (394) (94,918)
Provided for the year IR E R 3,249 64,268 59 67,576
At 31 December 2018 RZZT—N\F

+=-A=+—8H 128,057 1,861,716 8,184 1,997,957
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—)\F

—A=+—8 187,301 14,915 795 203,011

At 31 December 2017 RZZT—+tF

+—-A=+—H 195,112 80,076 894 276,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQU'PM ENT (continued)

Note: (continued)

Details of licenced assets: (continued)

On 3 August 2011, 30 August 2013 and 28 August 2015, a subsidiary of
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF
is a listed subsidiary of the Group), entered into a licence agreement and a
letter of extension and amendments with Harvest Resource Management
Limited (the “Licencee”), a third party, to licence KBCF’s copper foil
manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou to the Licencee
for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2017. On 30 August
2017, the Licensor entered into a letter of extension and amendments with
Licencee and extended the licence period for a further period of two years
to 31 August 2019. The details of the licence arrangement which remained
unchanged, are as follows:

(@) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings in
Fogang and Lianzhou;

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventories which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(c) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in Fogang
and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in Note 17 were licenced for licence income of
HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month, as a measure by KBCF to generate income from
the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the interested party
transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and trading of copper foil,
with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF (Note 41(b)) and the approval
of the interested party transactions mandated by the shareholders and/or
when KBCF clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper
foil. Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FA{JHEFIE
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: TENHEERBEZ EHIAT
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%—AF—H 896,477
Exchange adjustments T W % 44,686
Additions NE 38,533
Charge for the year AFEEZH (24,304)
At 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+F+-_A=+—H 955,392
Exchange adjustments T (33,147)
Additions NE 146,726
Transfer from property held for development (Note 28) ERATERYE(ME28) 542,832
Charge for the year AEEZH (33,612)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—\F+=ZA=+—H 1,578,191
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEmELTWT -
Current assets BB E 38,410 24,363
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,539,781 931,029
1,578,191 955,392
The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments are amortised TENEEFIRIZN TI5FE50F M EMH
ranged from 35 years to 50 years. HigasH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This represents inventories licenced to the Licencee (see Note 15).
Under the licencing agreement, the licencee may use, consume and
dispose of the licenced inventories which include consumables and
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and
return the quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or
disposed of during the licence period to the licensor at the end of the
licence period.

The licenced inventories has been reclassified from other non-current
assets to other current assets as the licence will expire on 31 August
2019.

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the
licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables of a related
party of the Licencee, with a total receivable value of not less than the
value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of as at
the end of the reporting period.

18. GOODWILL

17.

18.

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

HthkRBEE
HtRBEE

BT EREA (R ME15)EAM
FE - REXBERGE - EREAR
R RARMERRERFE  EF
BRESFEMRESFE - A - RIXE
EREERE  BREARAREAE
EMRENEEERBRCER - /8
HHENRRERFTEHE -

9

BREEAFECREMIERBEERE
HOBEHMRBEE  AEEERS
BR-E-NFNA=+—HBER -

RIEEEREER  BRANEE 2 XHE
ERTFEREREA—RBEEALINR
T REREERERT  BRAEETIR
BEFHEREAEER  RANHE
ZEEERFEZEE-

BE

HK$’000
THAT

CARRYING VALUE BREE
RZZ—tF—H—H"
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 —E—+F+-AF=+—H 2,288,149
Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries KB WK E AT 178,927
2,467,076

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the following groups of CGU:

HREARTE  BEEOETATR
SESBEMAR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Laminates EINER 390,781 390,781
PCBs ENRIARBE IR 1,896,446 1,717,519
Chemicals It ITER 179,849 179,849
2,467,076 2,288,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and chemicals’
CGUs have been determined based on a value in use calculation.
Goodwill is expected to generate cash flows for the next 50 years.
Cash flow projections were extrapolated using zero growth rate based
on a five-year period financial budgets approved by the Directors.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations for the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are as follows:

Laminates

BRER

2018
—E2-N\E

FIRE 12%

Discount rate

Growth rate (for year 1 1o 5) BRE(125%) 4%

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development and the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flow
projections in the first five-year period do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the relevant industries and no growth rate is

used beyond the five-year period.

Since the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were higher than its
carrying amounts, no impairment loss was recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible changes in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed their aggregate recoverable amount.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary and balance at
31 December 2018 (Note 36)

2017
AEE

12%

4%
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18. &

ERmER - ERIRBEIRRC TEMR 2R
SELEEM 2 ARE S BIRE R EER
HABEE - BHBHEBRRK0FE
FHRERE - BARERENERES
HEN D FHMBRERTEREMMG

s
B o
Esl

ERER - ENRIARIEIR R TERER
DEREELBN 2 ERERAEEZ

FEEFWOT -
PCBs Chemicals
EN R R AR tIEM
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\f —T—+F ZB-NFf —T—+F
11% 11% 12% 12%
4% 4% 4% 4%

TEBRDEZEMBERRNEEE
HMSRRZAERAEEEERLSFM
AARERENERETMERE - A TEE
HETEFORMEREX  MABRRSF
HIgEERE -

HRREeELELZ AT EeER N E
FRE(E @ R EAERBEREE -

BEERE  ZERRVAEMNADE
EEHE TS EHE ZAREERRR
A eI

19. BLEE

Customer
base

EFE

HK$’000
FET

WHEHBARMSEER T N\F
+ = A=+— B84 (FI7E36)

27,000

The customer base is amortised on a straight-line basis over a period
of 10 years.

B RBM0FRRE TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. REFE ARz Em

2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cost of investments in an associate unlisted AR EIE E T E AT
in the PRC ZIRE KA 185,066 185,066
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAE B 1R R &
other comprehensive income, Eh 2w
net of dividends received (IR E AR E) 355,615 319,024
540,681 504,090

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in the

following associates:

Name of associate

BENREB

Place of
establishment
and operation
RIK
EXin

Equity interest

—B-NE

held by the Group

FREfSRE
2018 2017

“E—tF

RZE-NEFERZZFE—+tF+=A
=t+—B AEEBBUTHBE A RE

Proportion
of voting
rights held
by the Group
AEERE
RER-LH
2018
—B-N\%

Principal activities

TERK
2017

“E—tF

CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited* PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Manufacture and distribution of
FEEREE L IERAA) i methanol
RS R
RS RER (R BRARY PRC Note Note Note Note  Property developments and
i Fif&E Bzt Fif&E B business management
MELRENEBER
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Sino-Foreign # ERRTIARINGEE SR BRI

Equity Joint Ventures. BT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (ontinueq) 20. REEE AR 2EHE =)

The investment in CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited is solely R AMEE LT BRARMNEEE
for share of results and no other strategic purpose is involved. BoEEEMIEL - WY & HMER
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these B - RIZSEAVBEREK  BEQA
consolidated financial statements. FRE=EEME
Note:  On 18 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a share iz : R-ZE—+FE+-A+N\B  XQAFZ
purchase agreement for the disposal of AT/t K2R GEYI) BIR A 7 with —RHNEARFHERNSEXREROR
an independent third party. The Directors were of the opinion that the held- INBRAREB Y FE=FF]—BE
for-sale criteria as set out in HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and B - EERABCEXBIEFTEN
discontinued operations” were met and therefore, the relevant interest in TBERRERIESH FEIERDEER
the associate was classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017. The BRI ER INFEERME - Bt - R
disposal was completed in January 2018. ERRMBAEEN T —tF+ =8
=+—A5EARE - HEERZZT
—N\FE— AR °
The summarised financial information below represents amounts TH B ERHEBIEM A N T IRE B0
shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance R ERGENB BRI S -
with HKFRSs.
2018 2017
—B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T4
The Group’s share of profits for the year AEEAFEENEF 192,169 103,267
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEBARFERGEM
(expense) income for the year 2HE (X)W (24,555) 141,108
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AREBARFEEEERE
income for the year Wzs 4858 167,614 244,375
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s KEBERZEFHERRZ
interests in these associates AR AE 540,681 504,090
Dividend received from an associate ARFE B U ENE A R R A
during the year 131,018 3,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows:

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

—B-N&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cost of investment in a joint venture REEREZILEKAK 2,503,655 -
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAEU B 1R R &
other comprehensive expense HE2mEbY (37,151) -
2,466,504 -

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting period

are as follow:
Country of Principal Proportion of
incorporation/ place of ownership interest
Name of entity registration business held by the Group
Al Ag FEEEEH
ERLE AHER TSN FEREAL
2018 2017
“2-0\fF —5t%
Lucky Yuen Holding Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% -
[EETARARAR BE Bk
Smart Source Management BVI United Kingdom 50% -
Limited EBRIEE EL

BREEARAT

Summarised financial information of joint ventures
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint
ventures are set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Proportion of
voting rights
held by the Group Principal activity
AEEREN
REERAL TEER
2018 2017
“2-0\fF “TtF
50% - Property holding and
business management
EBRREHEE
50% - Property holding and
business management
EBRREHER
BENRMBERBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21.

(continued)

Information of joint ventures
Lucky Yuen Holding Limited

REENTINER®

BELRNER
JEE T RRARA T

2018 2017

—EB-)N\fF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

; FHBT

Current assets MEEE 2,962 -

Non-current assets (Note) SEmEN A E (MIRE) 694,670 -

Current liabilities MEEE (4,252) -
The above amounts of assets and FiEER

liabilities include the following: BESHEBRE
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS FMEIER 2,596 -

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions)

nBeMAE(TeRES R
HAD B AR S ) = -

Smart Source Management Limited

EREEFRDA

2018 2017

S =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHxT FAT

Current assets MENE E 1,809 -

Non-current assets (Note) SEmENE E (MIsE) 4,252,211 -

Current liabilities MEEE (14,392) -
The above amounts of assets and FiEER

liabilities include the following: BESEERE
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EFEIEE 1,809 -

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions)

nBTHEECTBEREES R
E R BR R N ) 1,641 -

Note:  The amount mainly represents investment properties located in Hong Kong BT

and United Kingdom.

SRIEBRUNEEREENRED
o,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RE& TN ERE

(continued)
Information of joint ventures (continued) EERTNER (B
The two joint ventures are individually material in relation to the cost of ZMREENAIGIRER AN EEFE
the investments and net assets of the joint ventures, but the financial ME=EARBEKX  HZREEEN A
information of profit or loss of the two joint ventures are not material BHEEERITTEKR - AiRagE
and hence disclosed on an aggregated basis. AEHEEE o
2018 2017
ZB-N\F —FtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Revenue EERE 191,041 -
Profit for the year ARE T 173,030 -
Other comprehensive expense for the year AFEEEM2EMY (247,331) -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEELHEFS LR (74,301) -
The above profit for the year includes the following: FRAFESEFRIEATIEE ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest income F 2 WA 6 -
Income tax expense Frisfifsz 13,090 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

21.

22.

PR aR M

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RE&EATNER @

(continued)

Information of joint ventures (continued) EERTNER (B

The summarised financial information below represents amounts T FEERIEEESEATIRE M
shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in FEERAERRRIMBI SRR Z &5 -

accordance with HKFRSs.

2018 2017

ZB-N\F —FtF

HK$°000 HK$'000

Tt Tt

The Group’s share of profits for the year AL B AFE T 86,515 -
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEEEREEAFE

expense for the year Hh 2 X (123,666) -
The Group’s share of total comprehensive REBEELAFE

expense for the year T HEMAZ B (37,151) -

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests AEERZEA L AT 2
in these joint ventures IR EAE 2,466,504 -

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR 22. 4
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS #mT

—E2-N\#F
HK$’000
FHT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT ZERE S 1,282,278
Equity securities listed in Shanghai REBEmZERES 6,782
Equity securities listed in United States RER L2 EwmE S 2,474
1,291,534
At 31 December 2018, the fair values of the listed equity securities RZE—NF+ZA=+—H £~EH
held by Group, determined by reference to the quoted market bid HENEMESES 2 AFEKEEZE
prices available, amounted to HK$1,291,534,000. RIS TS REET) H1,291,534,000/8
I o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT 23 #ZATEAHMZE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER U 25
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ZEBEIE

2018

—E2-N\F

HK$’000

FET

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value: JEETHEZRIRE - I ATFE -

— private equity investments in Hong Kong (Note) — BB LEESIRE (i) 164,124
Note:  Included in the balance is the Group’s United States dollar (“US$”) Mzt AEHRBIEAEERFMC Caymank)ig &
20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$156,000,000) investment in FMC Cayman, 20,000,000 £ 7T ( 48 & 7 156,000,000
an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman BIT) - ZARIIRER SRS AREM
Islands, acquired during the year. The Group has a 0.91% equity interest R BEBRRAT  AEEREKFE
in FMC Cayman. FMC Cayman is an investment holding company and its WigZ AR - AEBEEABFMC Cayman
subsidiaries is engaged in manufacture of premium automotive focused on 0.91%& % - FMC Cayman &% &5 /%
electric passenger vehicles. The investment was made near the year end DA EMBARNESRTERE -
and the Directors are of the opinion that the fair value of the investment as TEEHESF - RMBRAEFRIELHER
at 31 December 2018 approximates to the acquisition cost. B EBERA RERZZ-N\F+=

R=+t—HA8A T EEKREKRAES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
24. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 24. #AFETAHEMZE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE WEmzEBITA
INCOME
—E2-N\F
HK$000
FET
Listed bond securities at fair value: EHESHES - RAFE -
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued by listed — BB LEMEIT ABEITU R AT LT
issuers in Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests BEEFENT6.00EL9.85EVETFE
ranging from 6.00% to 9.85% per annum and B UWRZZEZEFRA-+—HEZ
maturity date from 21 May 2020 to 11 January T ZF—A+—RHIH
2022 1,534,702
- listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in — BB TR ABITU R LT
Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests ranging BBEFENT4.75EZ10.875E 2
from 4.75% to 10.875% per annum and maturity BEZES R -_ZT—AFWA-+H
dates from 25 April 2019 to 27 January 2024 HEZZZ-mHF—A=Z++tRAEH
7,161,134
— listed on DAX and issued by a listed issuer in Hong ~ — &8 F 21T AT RNMERFT £ -
Kong with a fixed coupon interests ranging from BEFE6.25BE6.375E 2 BT R
6.25% to 6.375% per annum and maturity dates B YR -ZE-—FMNA=-+HAZE=
from 25 April 2021 to 17 September 2024 Z-MFENA+EHEH
151,717
— listed on SIX and issued by a listed issuer in — It RER EHEITARITIARLT
Switzerland and United States of America with a R ET - BEFERTA28E
fixed coupon interest of 7.125% per annum and BEERE - WEETFER R - B317
with no fixed redemption date but redeemable at ABRER-_Z-—4% N \A+RHEZEE
the option of the issuer after 10 August 2021 107,279
Total A5 8,954,832
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BWRERBMANA -
— Current assets —REEE 78,195
— Non-current assets —JEmEEE 8,876,637
8,954,832
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24. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
|NCOME (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the fair values of the listed bond securities
are determined by reference to the valuation provided by the pricing
vendor based on its own valuation techniques because of lack of an
active market.

Included in debt instruments at FVTOCI are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they are held:

Uss$ EV

24, 1%
g

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Bit A\HtZ2mH
B IR

b=1]13

v

Z

o
NG

Bl

s

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H  BRR
ZEBRmE - LMEFEFNATFES
ZEBEAREEASN/ERNME
HEETE -

BAVERAREZERE ZEHTA
BRETIINEEERARM2EEEINU
SNEMEETHEZ KR

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FET

8,954,832
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

25. AJHHERE

181

2017
—E—+F

HK$'000
TAT

AFS investments comprise: A ERE R
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FERIRE  'RATE
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZEHES 1,548,780
— equity securities listed in Singapore —RETINEE LT 2 A 2,050
1,550,830
Listed bond securities at fair value: EHEFES - RATE
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued by listed — BB EEBIT ABITW R R AT
issuers in Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests ﬁ BEEFENTOEZIE Y EFE
ranging from 6% to 9% per annum and maturity CWRZTEZEFRA=—
date from 21 May 2020 to 11 January 2022 E! EZEF—-A+—HIH 711,278
— listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in — BB EMEITABITERI AT L
Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests ranging - ABFBENT4.75[EE8.25E
from 4.75% to 8.25% per annum and maturity ZEFES YR -_ZT—NFMA
dates from 25 April 2019 to 29 March 2024 _—Hi AZ=-Z-_mE=A=+h
H 2 &A 3,268,789
— listed on DAX and issued by a listed issuer in — BB LT NBEITWREARAN
Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interest of rm-AB ¢ B£.6.375[F
6.375% per annum and maturity date on Zlmm B
17 September 2024 WH = minﬂ ++ B £ & 92,927
— listed on SIX and issued by a listed issuer in —iﬁiﬁilt MEEIT AT
Switzerland and United States of America with WTRGF LT
a fixed coupon interest of 7.125% per annum BEEFRBT7T125BZEAERE
and no maturity date RIS 114,636
— BB LWEITABEITER
— Listed on CSX and issued by listed issuers in HERBRSMLET BAFR
Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interest 3.875EZEERE
3.875% per annum with maturity date on TR =ZE—N\FE
20 November 2018 +—A=-+HEH 778,986
4,966,616
Unlisted equity investments, at cost: FEETRERRE - IRECR
— private equity investment in Hong Kong — BB EEREE 8,124
Total =X 6,525,570
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RWERBEMANA -
— Current assets —mEAE 778,986
— Non-current assets —EnBEE 5,746,584
6,525,570
- N\FFHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

As at 31 December 2017, all listed AFS investments were stated at
fair value. Fair values of the listed bond securities were determined by
reference to the valuation provided by the pricing vendors based on
their own valuation techniques because of lack of active market. The
unlisted equity investments were stated at cost less impairment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, impairment loss on AFS
investments amounting to HK$34,152,000 was recognised in profit or
loss as a result of significant and prolonged decline in the fair values
of certain of the Group’s listed equity investments below their cost.

Included in AFS investments were the following amounts denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they were held:

USs$ ES
HKS$ BT

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

25. IHHEKRE

RZZE—+F+=_RA=+—H8  FiE7
HHE EMREIEATETE - AR
RZIERMS  WMZELMESFESZ
ANFEDNE2EEBEFAESEEEM
BEEMRENGEEETE - FELMmERR
B A BRRE R o

BE_T-—tH+-_A=1+—HL
FE AHHERENBRERER
34,152,000/ 7T - ERE@m AR - T)
HAREENET EMERRENAF
EER R BN S ENEMA -

AIHHEREBETIAREEEIAM
ZRERBIASNE B EHEZ ZER

2017
—T—+F

HK$’000
BT

4,966,616
1,656,904

As detailed in note 2, the Group’s AFS investments as at 31
December 2017 have been reclassified to appropriate categories of
financial assets upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. ELEMIA
TRAK SRS IR RE BEAE
2 X EIRAEHOR 8 8 A DA R

FL

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting period:

Fair value
Fair value change of
Accelerated change of  assets arising Undistributed
tax Write-down  investment from  Revaluation profits of
depreciation Taxlosses of inventories properties acquisition  of properties  an associate Total
REnz higE -EBEAR
nEHHE HBER FEME  AVER®  AVEEE NEER  ZRAREA Ait
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
Thn TAR Thn TAn Thn Thn TAR Thn
(Note 36)
(Kizkse)
A1 January 2017 R=5—+5-f-H 29,188 (1252) (4.204) 657,630 - 82,550 3,999 796,641
Exchange adjustments ERfE 1459 - - 3,882 - - 200 34,541
Credit to consolidated statement — 5FARFE
of profit or loss for the year BABRR
(Note 9) (M) (1434 - (5,082) - - (3,057) (1999 (1153
At 31 December 2017 A i oy 2913 (1252) (9,286) 690,512 - 79,493 2,240 779,650
Bxchange adjustments ERpfH (1,169) - - (27619 - - (90) (28878)
Creditto consolidated statement ~ SFAREE
of profit or loss for the year LARR
Note9) (Kizto) (1019 - 8,739 - (10,582) (3,057) - (23389
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+ZA=1-H 27,033 (12522) (18,026) 662,893 (10582) 76,436 2,160 727,383

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
26. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 26. ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT AR S RRimim el L FiIE 45
reporting purposes: RO
2018 2017
—B-N\#E -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets FIERIBE E 3,653 3,768
Deferred tax liabilities BERIA B E (731,036) (783,418)
(727,383) (779,650)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses R EHEERER  AEEJH#
of approximately HK$1,900,930,000 (2017: HK$1,529,366,000) EHMARRGEFN 2 ADAREBER
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset #91,900,930,000/8 7T (=& — £ F -
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit 1,529,366,00078 7T ) ° FA AR 2 s Fl) 7
streams. All tax losses will be expired gradually within five years to AATTER] - AR AR (IR T IE &
year 2024 (2017: 2023). B 2HREEBESREFRNELT
HEZ_Z_MFE(ZZ—+F: _Z
—=F) .
4
27. INVENTORIES 27. B&
2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials B 1,377,294 1,068,981
Work in progress EEE 728,597 651,530
Finished goods LUK 850,225 395,046
2,956,116 2,115,657
During the year ended 31 December 2018, a write-down of Bz Z—N\F+-_A=+—HIHF
inventories HK$34,954,000 (2017: write down of inventories £ - MU 7F 534,954,000 T (=&
HK$20,607,000) has been recognised and included in cost of sales in —+EF  WURTF E20,607,000/87C) B
the current year. BEER R ARFERHEMA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

28. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  28. 5% REY%

Movements of properties held for development are as follows:

FRRERMEEHNT

» ..

HK$’000
TAT

At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%—AF—H 15,810,227
Exchange adjustments B b, 840,016
Additions NE 4,022,496
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) EREEYE(E14) (723,380)
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment (Note 15) BB EYE - R MR (BEE15) (179,254)
Transfer to cost of sales R EEERAR (4,132,281)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H 15,637,824
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 15 PRANE S B 75 B i ERI B 1557 Ay o 28 69,684
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZTE—-NF—-A—RB (&) 15,707,508
Exchange adjustments B b, (746,813)
Additions NE 8,239,802
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) EREEYEE14) (100,328)
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment (Note 15) R EYE - R MR (BEE15) (430,444)
Transfer to prepaid lease payments (Note 16) EREIEEERE (ME16) (6542,832)
Transfer to cost of sales R EERAR (2,103,757)
At 31 December 2018 W2 \F+-_A=+—H 20,028,136

During the year ended 31 December 2018, properties held
for development with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,103,757,000 (2017: HK$4,132,281,000) were completed and
sold to third parties. The remaining balance as at 31 December 2018
was related to properties that were still under development.

Included in the amount are properties held for development with
carrying amount of approximately HK$8,398,844,000 (2017:
HK$12,142,107,000) are expected to be realised after one year from
the end of the reporting period.

One of the Group’s properties project with a carrying amount of
HK$4,808,928,000 (2017: HK$3,403,615,000) has been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

In the opinion of the Directors, the properties held for development
were classified as current assets as the properties were held for
sale purpose after the completion of construction under the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

HE - N\E+-_A=+—HIt#E
£ - BRE{E4)2,103,757,000/8 L (=&
—+ 4 1 4,132,281,00006 70 ) 2 53R
MEZERLETFE=T - RZT—N\F
T A=+ HBTHAERESEREY
XEH -

+ e AR EEY £A8,398,844,0007
TT(ZZ—+4F : 12,142,107,0007% 7T )
HFRREYE  BHARRE SRR
SF—FREE -

AEEEREF-—HEAEA
4,808,928 000 B T v MEHEE (= F
—+4F : 3,403,615,000/8 7T ) * LAKER
HRITHE o

EERR/FERMEDBRARDEE

THRRNERAEENIERLERY 56
ZEMENBN RN TIRRTRHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 29. HiteMEE

(@ Trade and other receivables and prepayments @ ESZkRHMEWERRRE
and entrusted loans AREREFTEN
2018
—EB-N\F
HK$°000
FET
Trade receivables Z 5 MR TR 7,349,179 7,210,822
Less: Allowance for credit losses/ W EEEBERER
doubtful debts R (1,033,494) (934,179)
Trade receivables, net FEURBRIE S 58 6,315,685 6,276,643
Advance to suppliers TEHE PR IR 378,561 492,792
Entrusted loans (Note ) L ER (D 646,676 845,616
Prepayment and deposits FENFIERIES 1,127,862 728,573
Value added tax (“VAT”) recoverables AR B R ([EFR ) 358,378 247,852
LAT on pre-sale residential properties FEEEEEMNZ
units (Note ii) T 4 IE(E T (i) - 96,763
Deposits for acquisition of land use rights Wi + b FRRELAR{ERE
for development of properties held for HEERENME
sale (Note i i 32 A< H 4 <B (Bf i) - 3,590,431
Other receivables H b FEUBR TR 293,584 273,219
9,120,746 12,551,889
Less: Non-current portion of entrusted B RRERIERBH S
loans (Note i) (P #ED) (605,789) (788,860)
8,514,957 11,763,029

Notes: MiaT -

0] The entrusted loans of HK$646,676,000 (2017: HK$845,616,000) [0) FEBPRIR(ZT—+4F :
are due from certain purchasers of properties developed by the MR) BERIT(THERE
Group in the PRC through four (2017: four) commercial banks in ANDEWEFAREEFRERE
the PRC (the “Lending Agents”). The entrusted loans carry interest Y13 8 B 52646,676,000/% 7T
at variable rates ranging from 3.92% to 5.39% (2017: 3.92% to (ZZF—+F ' 845,616,000
5.839%) per annum payable on monthly basis and the principal BL)ZEXER - £t E
will be payable on or before 2034 (2017: 2034). The purchasers RZFEHFERN F3.92E
of the Group’s properties has pledged to the Lending Agents the E539E(ZZ—+tF : N F
respective properties purchased. These properties are located in 3.REZE539E ) 7 FHE5T
Kunshan, PRC. B ARABKZ  KEAR

—ECNFE(ZT—t+F
Z=POE) RARTHR » A&
EMEBERCRISEED
XEMTHEREA - ZE
MEMRFREL -
As at 31 December 2018, entrusted loans amounting to RZZE—N\F+t=ZA=+—
HK$605,789,000(2017: HK$788,860,000) are in respect of A A& EMEEREBR
repayments due after 12 months from the end of the reporting +o@A%BBBESRZER
period and are classified as non-current assets. B 70605,789,000/8 T (= &
— 4 : 788,860,000 7T )
DEERIERBEE ©

(i) The amount represents the provisional LAT prepaid to the (i) ZeBEREBERRELANR
PRC tax authority based on the latest completion status of FR T A5 0 A AP BB 75 1 R
the development projects. The final assessment will be carried TEfT 2 EE LI ER - &
out upon sales of properties at the completion of development RABBHFERABRT
projects. HEMEETHET -

(iil The amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of land use (ii) % < B8 15 L U B R B b (s
right in the PRC for the purpose of development of properties held AELABEERMHERE
for sale. The acquisition was completed in January 2018. E’U?% i S‘Z/\'E’J ?jqﬁ ;qug

ERZE-N\F—-AEK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days (2017: 120
days), depending on the products sold to its trade customers.
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses/doubtful debts based on invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

HitSmEE )

(GY)

€ 5 & H ftb FE W BR X &?E
NRERETER (&

$%l%€%ﬁ%¥ﬁ21§%ﬁﬁ
HRKA1208(ZZ—+tF : 120
B) RYEENERME °
RBEMEERER - EHEIK

ER(NREEREREER
#) 2RI EREZ RS0
T

2018 2017

—E2-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET T
0-90 days 0Z90H 4,852,418 4,873,171
91-120 days 91E120H 672,327 786,520
121-150 days 1212 150H 522,472 399,032
151-180 days 151Z180H 178,065 123,979
Over 180 days 180H LA b 90,403 93,941
6,315,685 6,276,643

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors have delegated
the management to be responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 74% (2017: 75%) of the trade receivables, that are
neither past due nor impaired, have the best credit scoring
attributable under the credit grading system used by the
Group.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$845,731,000 which were past due at the
reporting date for which the Group had not provided for
impairment loss as the Group considers that these debtors
were financially stable. The Directors are of the opinion that
these amounts were recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables was 129 days.

ERMEFFELA - AEERN
BERFANESHEERR
ZIERER EECERERE
BERERNEFPEEEERER
FEEitx - EPZREEINE
FEH - H974%(ZF—+5F :
75%) 2 B 5 R W AR SR B Hi Bk
BE - WEAREEMRAZER
ARHEZ RBERFD

R=ZZF—+F+=-_A=+—
B NEEBSHEBERGBE
BIEMEIRER - BEEEA
845,731,00087C * NBEHE
Kom - REBWERZETE
EHREESERE  REATSE
ERA  ZEEHBATBIERE -
EERE - ZEHRBEMAT K
B - AEE PSRBT EITE
FRHRER - ZERBERZ T
BERE A1298 -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
As at 31 December 2017, aging analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired were as follows:

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

20. HhE®MEE »)

(GY)

ESRHEMERKRRRTE
NREREZETERE)
RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H"
B RERE B SHEBRERZ
BRER DTN -

2017
T —F
HK$'000
FHET

Overdue: AER
0-30 days 0&30H 255,604
31-60 days 31£260H 331,983
61-90 days 61290H 174,618
Over 90 days 90H A E 83,526
845,731

The Group had fully provided for all receivables that were
overdue over 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables were generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables which have been overdue
for less than 240 days are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience
and objective evidence of impairment as determined by the
management.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors any changes in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end of
the reporting period. The Directors considered that the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
The following is @ movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year ended 31 December 2017:

189

20. HhE®MEE »)

(@ EBEZkRHEMEKERERKRTE
NREREZETERE)
HE-FT—+tF+-A=+—H
LHFE - REREBZEFHIT

2017

T —F

HK$ 000

FH&T

Balance at 1 January —R—B2#&% 723,997
Amount written off as uncollectible WEH T AT U 21 23R8 (2,823)
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables BB Z R R IER 2 REEE 166,793
Exchange adjustments PE H R 46,212
Balance at 31 December +-A=1+—HZ2&#% 934,179

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$934,179,000 which have either
been placed under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$872,564,000 which are past due as at
the reporting date. Included in the past due balances,
HK$86,589,000 which has been past due over 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default based on good
repayment records for those customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in note 39(b).

RZZE—+tF+=—A=+—
B REEBBE®RCRE
CESRRIER  BEH%HA
934,179,0008 7T * ZEHE A
BB SRR E M N B IE R 2
1B - AEERZEEBTERE
(ERGIE R

WZ_ZE—-N\F+=—A=+—8"
AEENE S RKRREHEIE
REE B BN REAE
872,564,000/ 7T ) FE UL AR 3K ©
mERAERRE T © 86,589,000/ 7T
DEEI0 A A £ - R EX
ERPRITHERGCLE - ML
BRI AR AIEL o

BE-_Z-/\Ft+-RA=+—H

IEFE - 85 REMEKERS
BB EFIEH R MIRE39(b) ©
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(@) Trade and other receivables and prepayments
and entrusted loans (continued)
Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

20. HhE®MEE »)

(GY)

B 5 R 5 A B SRR R A
NRERZFRER(E)

5 5 KAt SRS AR TR
5 R AT 8L A5 S
SHELZ R

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
us$ ET 1,061,557 858,814
HK$ BT 577,621 867,930
Euro dollar (“Euro”) B 62,881 49,246
(b)  Bills receivables by EWE

Bills receivables of the Group are all aged within 90 days (2017:
90 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Included in bills receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

AEEEBEERED SHEH
MAERZMOR (ZT—t4F :
90R)ZA -

FEMRBEBE T AR EE A
B E M AINE R EHE Z K
tEl

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

US$ EY

FHT FHT

- 158,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(c)

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank
balances and deposits carry interest at the prevailing market
interest rates which range from 0.01% to 3% (2017: 0.01% to
1.5%) per annum. Fixed deposits carried fixed rate interest of
3.2% (2017: 2.05% to 3.8%)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances and
cash that were not freely convertible or were subject to
exchange controls in the PRC, amounting to approximately
HK$3,270,391,000 (2017: HK$2,902,897,000).

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

Us$ eI
HK$ PBIT
Euro BT
GBP g
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20. HhE®MEE »)

(c)

RITHEBRERS

BTGB RESEEASERE
ZHEERRBEAA=MA K
TZRHRITER c RZZE— N
F+ZA=+—8  AEEMIR
THEHH R FFIRRTMISFR X
NTO0NIBEIE (=T —+F ¢
NTF0.01EE1.5E):HE o EH
GRZEEFEEAI2E(ZE
—+4F: 2.05EE3.80F) °

RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H"
AEETA]BHRHRFATPE
SNEE $IFTIRR 2 IRITAE R R IR
£49/53,270,391,000/8 (==
—+4F 1 2,902,897,000/87T) °

RITREHB LIRS B TIIASE
BRI e ERIAINE A
182 R

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
930,122 1,110,694
1,461,620 3,125,318
5,546 10,330
339,797 598,676
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

30. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 30. 2 AZELE

SALE

On 18 December 2017, Shimao Property Holdings (BVI) Limited and
the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect
of the disposal of the entire interest of Win Real Group Limited and
its subsidiary and the indirect equity interest of 49% in a company
established in the PRC (the “Target Group”).

The assets attributable to the Target Group have been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position (see below). The
Target Group is included in the Group’s others segment for segment
reporting purposes (see note 6). The net proceeds of disposal
are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant
assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised. The disposal was completed in January 2018, details are
set out in note 37.

The major class of asset of the Target Group classified as held for
sale was as follows:

RZZ—tF+=A+ /8 - Shimao
Property Holdings (BVI) Limited €278 &
BT —BEEER®  NABHELE
Win Real Group Limited &2 £ Fff & A &)Y
ZEPRRAE LA R — IR AP B AR 7 ) A R
A9%EEERAE ([ B12ER ) -

ETE%IJHEQFE“*E%{%%&E%E

WA RIRERE M BRREKESN(R
Tx) BEREE A ERE B ETA
REBOEMDB(RKIES) o HEAT
BRIEFREESRAEREERAE
WEREFE - B2 A HRREREE -
HEER =T N\F—AxK(RWE
37) °

BREE I BAFEEENTIREEM
pall (I

2017
—E i

HK$’000
BT

Interest in an associate (Note 20) NBE N Bl RE R (BPRE20) 1,696,193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
=,
31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 31. EZ R EMENEITRE
BILLS PAYABLES AND CONTRACT EREEREHNEE
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables and bills payables ESREMENRIRENEZE
2018
—B-)N\f&E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T4
Trade payables B SRR 3,213,519 2,698,445
Accrued expenses JEIRE A 1,055,844 904,224
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEYE  BERE
plant and equipment HOFE (S BR IR 429,896 535,548
Receipt in advance (Note i) TEURIE (M3 - 3,814,220
Other tax payables E AR IR 826,845 900,893
VAT payables FEfTI{ER 174,324 301,092
LAT payables R L IR ER 344,503 -
Other payables H AR 379,525 414,667
6,424,456 9,569,089
Bills payables (Note ii) e S 4% (B =E) 512,566 691,834
6,937,022 10,260,923
Notes: BsE -
0} Included in receipt in advance as at 31 December 2017 was deposit 0] RZT—tF+ZA=+—HAmBEHH
received from an independent third party for the disposal of the Target BEEREBYF =P ERZER
Group of approximately HK$2,630,126,000. The disposal was completed #92,630,126,000/ TR EWIEZE - B
and the gain was recognised in January 2018. E0EK  WEBER=ZT—\F— A1
Ao
(i) Included in bills payables as at 31 December 2018 was payables for (i) RZFE-N\F+ZA=1+—HHE
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment of HK$57,316,000 (2017: NEEBREREBYE  BERER
HK$163,461,000). f# 57,316,000 % 7T ( =& — + & -

163,461,000/ 7T ) & FE1S BR 18 -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Trade and other payables and bills payables (continued)
The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

31.

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

ESRAMENRIRENRE(GE)
REHREAERRLE - ERBEFZBRHN
AR RO

2018 2017

—e-N\E = —TtF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

0-90 days 0%90H 2,549,851 2,073,037
91-180 days 912180H 397,210 432,894
Over 180 days 180H A k= 266,458 192,514
3,213,519 2,698,445

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2017: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

AEE RN ERRK BTRE BEERE
BO0H(ZZE—+% : 0R)ZA °

B MEMENRALENRERET
FIAGEEE R Z MRS AN EY
AHEZ 2

us$ =TT
HK$ BT
Euro BT

2018 2017
—2-N% —Tt5
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
822,352 856,496
164,624 328,700
103 61

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2017: 90
days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES |

31.

continued)

Contract liabilities

195

31.12.2018 1.1.2018*

—B-)N\f&E

+=BA=+—H
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET T
Sales of properties HEYHE 2,844,281 3,621,246
Sales of chemicals SHELTEMR 496,513 1,030,460
Sales of laminates HEE IR 107,274 153,634
3,448,068 4,805,340

*

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments for the application of
HKFRS 15 (details set out in note 2).

As at 31 December 2018, certain amount of contract liabilities arising
from sales of properties are expected to be realised after one year at
the end of the reporting period. The entire amount of contract liabilities
of sales of laminates and chemicals are expected to be realised within
one year at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 December 2018, included in contract liabilities for sale of
properties was a balance of HK$162,390,000 (1.1.2018: nil) received
from certain Directors for purchase of properties.

The following table sets out the revenue recognised in the current
year relating to contract liabilities at 1 January 2018.

ZIREBEEAET AR R HERF
1555 (R RLPRE2) 1R YEH F9%E -

RZZE-\F+-A=+—H " #HED
ENENRBEETERBHAN RS
REFF—FRER - HEBWER LM
TEMIEHNEBEEHSBEBEMENR

SHRET —FAER -

RZZB-N\F+-A=1t—H  #HEY
ENENRGEEERBEEMERCRET

2 EHFIA162,390,0008 T (ZZE— N\
F—H—H:#)-
AEEHR-_ZT—N\F—A—AMNEHE

ﬁﬁme%ﬁQWWT

Sales of Sales of Sales of
properties laminates chemicals
SHEYE SHEE MR HELLIER
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT T4
Revenue recognised that was FFAZZE—N\F
included in the contract liabilities *)5] HERAaE
balance at 1 January 2018 R E MRS R 3,284,551 153,634 1,030,460
—E-\FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

BILLS PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Contract liabilities (continued)

Typical payment terms with which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sales of properties

The Group receives 30% to 50% of the contract value as
deposits from customers on entering of a sale and purchase
agreement of properties and will receive the remaining
contracted sum prior to customers obtaining control of the
respective properties. The deposits and advance payment
schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property contraction period until the customer
obtains control of the completed property.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money taking into consideration
the credit characteristics of the relevant group entities. As
this accrual increases the amount of the contract liability
during the period of construction, it increases the amount of
revenue recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer.

Sales of laminates and chemicals

When the Group receives a deposit before the production
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered. The Group typically receives a 30% to
50% deposit on acceptance of manufacturing orders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

31.

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

BRNEE®)

AN RIEREERRANENAESHE
RN

- HEWE

AEBRITZMEEE AR A
EPWEMEER A EEE30%E
50%MiEE - WtEFESHER
W) ZEROFE BIRE RTUCER B T A #05K
B o B RIAN IR SIEHE
BYEREPEERENEE
HEEFESKRITY) e G
ALk

AN - AEER R - AN
EHAEARENS - At K
BeREERARSEERNE
BRI FOER EENZ BN
FEE o ST IRIE IR L
BHANEREDRE  ERIVE
MR EEEERPRINEME
ERWERBETHE -

- HEBRERRETER

AN E G A AR BN R A BT UER
e iR E0HRBRERE
NEE BEEEFZEWITHIE
(BN EY 2 ) R E %R
BlE o AEBEREREERIER]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

32. BANK BORROWINGS

32.

RITIEE

2018
—E-N\fF
HK$’°000
FHET
Bank loans HRITER 26,984,653 18,573,701
Trust receipt loans EFUUEE R 529,028 514,641
27,513,681 19,088,342
Secured BER 1,795,968 1,710,866
Unsecured mER 25,717,713 17,377,476
27,513,681 19,088,342
Carrying amounts repayable*: ZHR AT B (B8 2 BRE(E™
Within one year R—FR 6,842,358 4,809,505
More than one year but not more than —F LA L ETEBB
two years R 5,699,682 4,559,770
More than two years but not more than M LA LB B
three years =F 7,024,853 3,929,761
More than three years but not more than =FAEETEB
five years Fag:= 7,630,546 5,444,066
More than five years HBEAF 316,242 345,240
27,513,681 19,088,342
The carrying amounts of bank loans that BERESIE I
contain a repayment on demand clause (B ERBBEE)BERAT
(shown under current liabilities) but repayable: HifAER Z RITEREREE -
Within one year R—FR 24,000 34,000
More than one year but not more than —FU EETER
two years M 24,000 34,000
More than two years but not more than M LA LB BB
three years =% 24,000 34,000
More than three years but not more than =ZF L HETER
five years FF 48,000 68,000
More than five years fiaehc Ak 316,242 345,240
436,242 515,240
Carrying amount repayable within one year W B IR ESRIEIEIENEA
without repayment on demand clause R—FREENERRE 6,818,358 4,775,505
Amounts due within one year shown under T ERSEEZIE
current liabilities R—FREENIE 7,254,600 5,290,745
Add: Amounts shown under non-current liabilites  jl : IER B B (&2 FIE 20,259,081 13,797,597
27,513,681 19,088,342
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the . SR ER B EANTETEERR
loan agreements. P e

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

32.

PR AR M

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings are all variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.9% to HIBOR + 1.75% (2017: HIBOR + 1%
to HIBOR + 1.75%) per annum and London Inter-Bank Offer Rate
(“LIBOR”) + 1.75% (2017: LIBOR + 1.5% to LIBOR + 1.75%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain bank loans and trust receipt
loans of the Group are covered by corporate guarantees given by
Kingboard Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

32.

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RITEE @

R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8 B7E
BE2HAZEMEE  FEXNTES
BITREFREMOOBEERBRITEE
FEIM.75E( =T — L4 « HHRT
FEFREIMEZEARITREN SN
1.75[8) NE  LEN TRBURTTR
FEMI75E(ZT—LF : PR
FEFENMSEZMIBEITRERE
1758 )15 o

RZZE-NEFER_ZFE—+LF+=A
=+—A AEBEETROTERRET
WEEFEASE —R2EHEMNEA
AIEEREERATRBEARER -

AEBERTEEZERMNX(AERE
FTHIRR)SBELT -

Effective interest rates BERA=E
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

HKS

BT
US$ 2

ETT

1.67% to 4.14%
1.67EE4.14E

1.37% to 2.86%
1.37E%£2.86/F

RTTEERETIAEEETR BB
REERINERIHEZ 2R -

2018 2017
—e-N\E = —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
26,889,647 18,120,344
624,034 967,998
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A

Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERTRAR
Number of Number of

shares Amount CLHETCE Amount
REE ] RAEE x|
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T

Ordinary shares of FRROA0B T E B -
HK$0.10 each:

At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—F—H 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,038,400,236 103,840
Exercise of share options  1T{H B4 B R 1
(Note 34) (Bfi5E34) - - 28,052,000 2,805
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+t45F
+=-—A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,066,452,236 106,645
Exercise of share options ~ 1T{ {8 5 B i
(Note 34) (Mf7E34) - - 16,700,000 1,670
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+—-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,083,152,236 108,315
34. SHARE OPTIONS 34. BEBIRHE
(@ Employees’ share option scheme of the Company (@ XAREEELEEREST
2
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was BRER=—ZZZNF=ZA=+=
approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general BEBRZ ARARIREERAE £
meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2009. HOAEAR N BB ER B ([7Z
sTElD -
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive or reward ZETEIRIRR L B MTE R B X 88
to the eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) for their BAER2EE([AEKRE2HE
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests DR AEENZRNER X
of the Group. FEE S -

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the Company

(continued)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of ten years
with a remaining life of less than 1 month as at the date of this
report, the Directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
subscribe for shares in the Company to Eligible Participants
who contribute to the long term growth and profitability of
the Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”), including any executive director of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any person or entity who from time
to time determined by the Board as having contributed or
may contribute to the development and growth of the Group
based on his or its performance and/or years of service, or is
regarded as valuable resources of the Group based on his/
its working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors. The subscription price for the Company’s
shares shall be a price at least equal to the highest of the
nominal value of the Company’s shares, the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of an offer of the grant of the options and the closing
price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of the grant of the options. The Board,
when extending an offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
may impose conditions as it thinks fit, which may include
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised or other conditions as the Board may of its
absolute discretion determine. The options must be taken up
within 28 business days from the date of grant upon payment
of HK$1 and are exercisable over a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period
may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer of
the grant of the options but shall end in any event not later
than ten years from the date of adoption of the Scheme.
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34. BEBRE®

(GY)

ARREEELEBRES
€=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the Company

(continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group (excluding
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 84,473,904 shares,
which represents approximately 7.8% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The limit
on the number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme or other schemes of the Group in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant
unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.

There are no share options outstanding at the end of the
reporting period under the Scheme.
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34. BRERE:

(GY)

ARREEELEBRES
€=

KRR BT RIRZTE R A
AEBEEMETEIRENELHE
B HE (R B B AR IR % T &) R AT A
7N 5 [ ELf E E 6 50 1 2K R Ay
MR ) TR AT BT R D
RE - TEEBBA R RERNZ
FTEIE BB EITRG10% iR
Bz EI T HBITHRHBE A
84,473,904 f1n - (AR BN
A3RE B HR B BITIRANBERL
7.8% - AREZAERAEE
FREAMEIEER N MATT
F RAEFITE 2 BB REETT
EmA 81T 2 AR RRDEE BR
5 TMSHBARARTRE T
B&1730% ° MELEE T B HRLETE
A+ =18 A #5R - ARIEZAT &
NS R B A 5T EI T &R
BAZBEERERERTE
KM ARITE 2 B IR ) 1T
BT RNG FRIT 2 AR AR
DB TRBAAARRED
HHEE BTN 1% - BRIEER
RN AE A - BIfERI o

RIBEIR - 5HEIE AL E R
1T B AAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IR MIEE

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

34, BEBRE
AAAEEBLBRES

(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the Company (@)

(continued)

A summary of the movements of the number of share options
under the Scheme for the year is as follows:

Balance at

1 January

Date of grant 2017
R=E-tF
-A-H
s

BB A

Granted to Directors on:
RTEE:

21 March 2011
“3-—FZAt-R

18,768,000

19 March 2015
“Z-RF=AThA

15,300,000

Granted to employees on:
#7EE

21 March 2011
“F-—fZA-t-A

8,784,000

19 March 2015
“E-1%=AthA

1,900,000

Exercised Balance at
during 31 December
the year 2017

RER
i

(18,768,000) -

(260,000) 15,040,000

(8,784,000) -

(240,000 1,660,000

Exercised Balance at

during 31 December

the year 2018

R=B-N§

RER +=A=1+-A

e Wksth
(Note iv)
(Bitstiv)

(15,040,000) -

(1,660,000) -

@)

5 - HEBIET 2 @
BE BB

Exercise
price
per share

=13
e

HK$33.92
3B.92ET

HK$12.424
1240437

HK$33.92
BI2ET

HKS12.424
12424770

44,752,000

(28,062,000) 16,700,000

(16,700,000) -

Exercisable at
RIATBER T

1 January 2017
“E-t5-f-H

31 December 2017
“E-tF+Azt-R
31 December 2018 -
ZF-\ETZA=T-A

34,752,000

16,700,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Exercisable period

21 March 2011 to
22 March 2019 (Note )
“5-—f=A-{-HZ
“Z-NF-A-t-H
(B

19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note i
“Z-1§=fAt+hAZE
“T-hEZR=TZH
(FtzEi)

21 March 2011 to
22 March 2019 (Note )
“5--%zZf-1-RHZ
“T-hEZR=TZH
(tE)

19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note i
“E-1EZAThEE
“EZ-NF-A-t-H
(B i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the Company

(continued)

Notes:

U

(i

)

The share options under the Scheme were granted on 21 March
2011 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$33.92 per share. 25%
of the total share options vested immediately on the date of grant.
The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and vested on
21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The total estimated fair value at
the date of grant of the share options was HK$279,054,000.

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the share
options on 19 March 2015 was HK$86,809,000. 33.33% of
the total share options granted vested immediately on the date
of grant, 19 March 2015. 33.33% of the total number of share
options were vested on 19 March 2016 and the remaining
33.34% were vested on 19 March 2017. The closing price of
the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant was
HK$12.34.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, options of 27,552,000
shares in the Company at exercise price of HK$33.92 per share
and options of 500,000 shares in the Company at exercise
price of HK$12.424 per share were exercised respectively. The
weighted average closing prices of the Company’s share granted
on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
before the exercise date were HK$31.76 and HK$41.81
respectively. The amount of approximately HK$276,035,000 was
reclassified from share options reserve to share premium.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, options of 16,700,000
shares in the Company at exercise price of HK$12.424 per share
were exercised. The weighted average closing prices of the
Company’s is share granted on the Stock Exchange on the five
trading days immediately before the exercise date was HK$25.0.
The amount of approximately HK$2,560,000 was reclassified
from share options reserve to share premium.
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34. BRERE:

(GY)

AAREEELERES

-U[€))
fi -

() ZEEIETEABRER =
T——F=ZA-_+—HE
o AP EATEE A33.92
B o BAEBEREAEEY
25% A H B EIEN SR 8B o
BRT75%FHHA=H " 5
MR=—FT—=F - ZFT—=
FRZIF-NF=A=+—
AR - BUBERENED
BN EFRAFELSER
279,054,000/ 7T, ©

(ii) EEBRER-_T—RHF=
A+ BREE BB
N F H 48 %8 /586,809,000 %
e BREEXBRERS
AR #933.33% 2 BNEF A IR H B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

The 2008 Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
(“EEIC”) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “2008 EEIC
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of EEIC at the
extraordinary general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May 2008 upon
approval by the Shareholders of the Company.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which was administered by the
committee of directors of EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s
directors, was open to full-time employees and directors of
any company within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent
group and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to
certain conditions being satisfied.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitled the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
either at an “Exercise Price”, which to the average of the last
dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of five consecutive
market days immediately preceding the relevant date of
grant, or at a discount to the Exercise Price as defined earlier,
whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the Exercise
Price, save that the exercise price must be at least the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant; and (i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Options granted at the Exercise Price or at a discount to
the Exercise Price were exercisable after the first or second
anniversary respectively of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme was ten years and
has expired at the date of this report. No share in EEIC may
be issued under the 2008 EEIC Scheme as at the date of
this report. The total number of EEIC shares issued and to
be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of EEIC shares in issue from time to time.

Share options were acceptable within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by payment of S$1.00
(or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants,
but the grant of share options did not confer rights on the
option holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.

There were no share options granted under the 2008 EEIC
Scheme throughout its life.

During the year, a new share option scheme, the 2018 Elec
& Eltek Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “2018 EEIC
Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 April 2018 and
was adopted by the shareholders of EEIC on 12 September
2018 upon fulfilment of all the conditions precedent as set out
the 2018 EEIC Scheme. Since its adoption, no option was
granted by EEIC pursuant to the 2018 EEIC Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

The purpose of the 2008 EEIC Scheme and the 2018 EEIC
Scheme is to provide an opportunity for employees who
have contributed significantly to the growth and performance
of EEIC Group and who satisfy the eligibility criteria as set
out in Rule 4 of the 2008 EEIC Scheme and the 2018 EEIC
Scheme, to participate in the equity of EEIC, so as to motivate
them to greater dedication, loyalty and higher standards of
performance, and to give recognition to past contributions
and services. Additionally, the 2008 EEIC Scheme and the
2018 EEIC Scheme will help EEIC to attract and retain the
services of appropriate, qualified and experienced employees
who would be able to contribute to EEIC’s business and
operations.

The 2018 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
at either: (1) the “Market Price”, which is defined as the
average of the last dealt prices of the Company’s shares
(as determined by reference to the Official List published by
the SGX-ST) for a period of five consecutive market days
immediately preceding the relevant date of grant; or (2) a
discount to the Market Price, provided that the discount shall
not exceed 20% of the Market Price, save that the exercise
price must be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Options granted at the Market Price or at a discount to the
Market Price may be exercised after the first or second
anniversary respectively, of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The duration of the 2018 EEIC Scheme is ten years from
the date of adoption of the 2018 EEIC Scheme and it has a
remaining life of approximately nine years and six months as
at the date of this report. The total number of shares in EEIC
that may be issued shall not exceed 18,691,996 shares (which
represents 10% of the total number of shares in issue of EEIC
as at the date of this report.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

No qualifying participant who is a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued and issuable
to such person under the 2018 EEIC Scheme in the 12-month
period up to and including the proposed grant date for such
options, unless such grant of options is approved in advance
by the Shareholders in general meeting: (a) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the number of shares then in issue;
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)’s daily quotations sheets on each
relevant date on which the grant of such options is made to
such person under the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5
million.

No qualifying participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of EEIC, or any of their
respective associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued and issuable
to such person under the 2018 EEIC Scheme in the 12-month
period up to and including the proposed grant date for such
options, unless such grant of options is approved in advance
by the shareholders of EEIC and of the Company in general
meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
number of shares then in issue; and (b) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares as stated in
the SGX-ST’s daily quotations sheets on each relevant date
on which the grant of such options is made to such person
under the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5 million.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by, inter alia, payment of
S$1.00 (or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants.

EEIC did not grant any share option under the 2018 EEIC
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (“2017 KLHL Scheme”)
was approved by the Shareholders and the shareholders of
KLHL on 29 May 2017, and the 2017 KLHL Scheme took
effect upon obtaining approval from the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange on 2 November 2017. The terms of
the 2017 KLHL Scheme are largely similar to the KLHL share
option scheme approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007 respectively, and took effect after obtaining the approval
from the Listing committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July
2007 and that the purpose of the 2017 KLHL Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards to the eligible participants of the
2017 KLHL Scheme for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests, of the KLHL Group (as
defined below).

The 2017 KLHL Scheme is valid for a period of ten years
and it has a remaining life of around eight years and seven
months, and no share options had been granted or exercised
as at the date of this report. The directors of KLHL may,
at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in
KLHL to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term
growth and profitability of KLHL and include (i) any employee
or proposed employee (whether full-time or part-time and
including any executive director), consultants or advisers
of or to KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL'’s
Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “KLHL Group”) hold an equity interest; (i)
any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any
KLHL’s Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s
Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the KLHL
Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder
of any member of the KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested
Entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect of any
option granted under the 2017 KLHL Scheme must be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of KLHL
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon
the payment of a consideration of HK$1. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date upon which the
offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The directors of KLHL may, at their absolute discretion, fix
any minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the KLHL
Scheme and any other share option scheme of KLHL
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2017 KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of KLHL in issue as at the date
of approval of the 2017 KLHL Scheme by the Shareholders
and the Shareholders of KLHL (i.e. 308,100,000 shares in
KLHL, representing 10.0% of the total issued share capital of
KLHL as at the date of this report).

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2017 KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of KLHL from time to time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 34. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%)

() Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL c) BEHEERESELEER
(continued) E“f_](% ]
The total number of shares of KLHL issued and to be issued E’SEW‘?—:TH BRI & 28
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised EREZEEBREREDT
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month R RITHE BB EiTE
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then MEBTRETFRIT2EERE
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the IR BE - TEBAREER
Company in general meetings. RERFDBEITRAZ1%  BRIE

ERERER RANA B Z R
PR AR S HE/ERIVER ©

A summary of movements of the number of share options EFRX - BEBEERGTEBE TN 2B
under the KLHL Scheme for the year is as follows: SEREHEEHMENT
Exercised
during
Balance at the year end Balance at Exercise
1January  31December 31 December price
Date of grant 2017 2017 2017 and 2018 pershare  Exercisable period
RIB-tER
BE-B—tE “EB-N\§
R=2-t& +ZA=t-A TZA=1-H
gHAM —A— A& LFETHE e BRTEE TRH
Granted to the Directors
RTZEEERES
21 March 2011 54,000,000 (54,000,000) - HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
“Z——F=fA-1-8 6547 (Notel)
B B el = Y
ZE—tFRATEA(M)
Granted to employees
RTER
21 March 2011 27,000,000 (27,000,000) - HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
“F——%5Zf-1-H 6548 (Notel)
ZE——FZf-1-H
—*—t¢£ﬂ+tH(WEo
81,000,000 (81,000,000) -
Exercisable at
WU TRER 176
1 January 2017 81,000,000
E2—tE-f-H

31 December 2017 and 2018 -
“F+FR-F-\F+=F=1-H

Notes: PR -

0] 25% of the total share options were vested immediately on the (i B B R I AR 4R 58 R 9 25% B BIEF
date of grant, 21 March 2011. The remaining 75% were split WEHAR(ZZE—F=/A—=-+—H)
evenly into three lots and were vested on 21 March 2012, 2013 BB B TN25% D B=%%
and 2014. DRIR_T——F - _T—ZFR=-ZT

—mFE=A=+—HR

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2017, 81,000,000 options (i) BE-—T—+F+-_A=+—HAIE
in the Company at an exercise price of HK$6.54 per share were . $ 79’]81 000,00015 18 55 18 R 1
exercised. The weighted average closing price of the Company's RGBT St e ~

ZEMRITE(E.54BTTREITE « AAE]

share granted on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days = P oy ~
immediately before the exercise date was HK$8.93. The amount R EE T B AERSAE

of approximately HK$93,105,000 was reclassified from share B WH&L@WW%$YQW$E%;%%
options reserve to share premium. TT © #993,105,0008 T & FEEE LS

BrERBRERDRERMEE -
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 35. FiElRfEsR

Share of Share options
net assets reserve of a
of subsidiaries subsidiary
—EHEAT
BB AR ZB%E
EERE BRERE &t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT THL BT
At 1 January 2017 NZE—+F—HF—H 6,272,563 93,105 6,365,668
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary Utk — EIFT B A B ZEIMER (437,096) - (437,096)
Share of net changes arising from AFS EEAREEREEENEHTE
investments (Note) (HizE) 16,200 - 16,200
Share of exchange differences arising from EERFEMNEEMEE
translation of foreign operations EHEE (1,792) - (1,792)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERANBEEREEMEEL
translation to presentation currency fE AR 398,424 - 398,424
Share of profit for the year EERFEER 1,240,750 - 1,240,750
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HE—TAMBARMBHER 880,617 (93,105) 787,512
Capital contribution from non-controling BB A Al AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries HER 130,341 - 130,341
Dividends paid to non-controlling YHTHBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FRRRE RS (815,806) - (815,806)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=1+—H 7,684,201 - 7,684,201
Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries  UtEE B 2 FIEIMERS (464,764) - (464,764)
Share of net changes arising from debt EERATE AR M2 ERE
instruments at FVTOCI (Note) BRI AEENEEFEMT) (96,556) - (96,556)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTEIMEEMESE L
translation of foreign operations X EE 431 - 431
Share of exchange differences arising from BERFELREEMEE L
translation to presentation currency ERESR (246,596) - (246,596)
Share of profit for the year JE(EAEERF 994,440 - 994,440
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HE—RNBATRNN N ER 48,066 - 48,066
Capital contribution from non-controlling —FR B R B2 IEERR AR R
shareholders of a subsidiary HE® 66,418 - 66,418
Dividends paid to non-controlling SHFHELEZ
shareholders of subsidiaries JEERR AR R 2 RS (685,354) - (685,354)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\FE+=A=1—H 7,300,286 - 7,300,286
Note:  Share of net changes arising from debt instruments at FVTOCI consist of MiaE . EERATES ARG EREOED

gain on fair value changes amounting to HK$96,095,000 (2017: gain on
fair value changes amounting to HK$70,203,000) and reclassify to profit
or loss upon disposal amounting to HK$461,000 (2017: gain on disposal

amounting to HK$54,003,000).

TAESNEFFEREATFEZSK
796,095,000 TC(Z T —+4 : AF
EEE)R270,203,00087T) R HE
BEHDEEE 2461,0008 7T (=
T—+ 4 HEIREE54,003,00087T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. WEKME AT

On 8 March 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of an entity (the “Entity”) for consideration of HK$600,000,000.
This acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$178,927,000. The Entity is engaged in the investment holding
and its subsidiaries are engaged in the sale and manufacture of
PCBs. The Entity was acquired so as to continue the expansion of the
Group’s PCB operations.

Consideration transferred

MZZE—-N\E=ZANB - KEBURE
600,000,000 T Wi —MEEE ([ &
B2 ])M100% B BTN - IREEE &
AUWREEARR - WEMEEAHNEES
178,927,000/ 7T - X BN EHR &R
% 2 H BB 1 B4 S R B ED A7
AR o HFURIEZEES - DEBRER
£ E 2 EIR RS IR 458 -

EERAE

HK$’000
TET

Cash B4

600,000

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$236,763 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year and included in the
“administrative costs” line item in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

R g B R 8 RO A 8236, 76378 T AT
ABEZERE  WERAFEERAEH
X Rt AGREBEERITTERAA ] —
18 o

RUTE B B EN B E R ERN B BN
T

HK$’'000
T
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 393,000
Intangible asset mpAE 27,000
Inventories FE 66,707
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H M FEER 5K 247,921
Pledged bank deposits DIEIRIR TR 30,579
Bank balances and cash RITERER S 80,352
Trade and other payables Z 5 R H M FERBRFK (255,432)
Bank borrowings HRITEE (158,472)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBRE (10,582)
421,073

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$247,921,000. The gross contractual amounts
of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$247,921,000 at the date of acquisition. All contractual receivables
at acquisition date are expected to be recoverable.
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. WWEKMEB QT

(continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition:

WHEELNEE

HK$’000
BT

Consideration transferred BEENRE 600,000
Less: Fair value of identified net assets acquired B BEWEERREEFENATE (421,073)
178,927

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of a subsidiary because the cost
of the combination included a control premium. In addition, the
consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce of a subsidiary.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary

HRE R BIEEHIEEE - Fitd
BIMBARKSELRE - Wi SR
XARREER EEEETR LT3R BE
HENGE ERBER - REWHE
REMBARMNZRET - tLENEL
BEREEBAINBRER - RETFER
BRIEN B ENTERZE -

B BUCERT E £ R B TR AT E
T o

Wy B — R B B 2 B A9 BR & 0% R

H
HK$'000
THTT

Cash consideration paid BfReNRE 600,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B BUEERIR e MRS EEE (110,931)
489,069

Included in the profit for the year is HK$15,956,654 attributable to the
additional business generated by a subsidiary. Revenue for the year
includes HK$470,660,284 generated from a subsidiary.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018, total group
revenue for the year would have been HK$46,142 million, and profit
for the year would have been HK$7,023 million. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

REEFMBIE—HHB AR EINE
A TS FE (% F1 15,956,654 78 TT © AN
FEAEBAE—HNBAREELD
470,660,284 7T,

HWEBEBR _-_Z-NF-A—-HBHE
TR FASBEREXZEBR
MEAT—EBENF_88ET  FW%
FMEF/tTE-_FT=a88T -HEE
FHEH T - WIFRTAREENBES
BERZT—\F—A—BEKRER
THEEDNEEANMGERESE 1
BIERARREENEE -

—E— ) \FFRK
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HEMBEAF

On 10 January 2018, the Group disposed of its interest in a
subsidiary, Win Real Group Limited, to an independent third party
for a cash consideration of HK$3,786,001,000 with a gain of
HK$2,089,808,000. The subsidiary has an indirect equity interest of
49% in an associate established in the PRC.

—E-N\F—A+8  AEENUEER
{83,786,001,0007% 7T 1 & — M B A
AIWin Real Group Limited 2 J&#E ¥ 7852
$ =77 » Y2k A2,089,808,0007% T °
ZM B A REERE MR R B H
B4 N B149% HO AR AE ©

Consideration received: 2 YA(E :
HK$’000
THT
Total cash consideration received 2R NEREE 3,786,001

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

BREEHENEEREBENDN

10.01.2018
—B—N\F

—A+A
HK$’000
FTExT

Interest in an associate and total assets disposed of DHERN ML AT RN EEHEE 1,696,193

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

HE—REME LRz W -

Cash consideration received BUIRE KRB 3,786,001
Assets disposed of BEHEEE (1,696,193)
Gain on disposal &SR 2,089,808
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRSRATE
Cash consideration HeRE 3,786,001
Less: Deposit received in 2017 (note 31) B RZE—EFUWRERR RS (KI5E31) (2,630,126)
1,155,875
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

38.

39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, other reserves and
retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

38.

39.

>, .

EXEREE

REBEEREERURKREBEES
HEAEFRRRERESE® - F5
BIET EREEMSELE - AREZE
RERAR BB FEARR)

AEBZBEAGBRERTER B
MR EFERBFERANRARFAAR
ERE(BEDETRE - EibfEER
REGH) - TR REEHRARE -

EXLERMELSE - FREH—
B EEHEREARKAE  REZH
REAEBZER - EERRAKEK
BB - BITHA - BERD -
BITHEREBORGEE  AFEHE
RBERERE -

ERTHE
(@ ==@MIAEH

2018
=t B
HK$’000
FExT
Financial assets THMEE
Loans and receivables ERNEWERER(BIERES
(including cash and cash equivalents) FReEHEER) = 20,545,353
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHIER AT ENSREE 19,274,868 -
AFS investments A ERE = 6,525,570
Equity instruments at FVTPL BRATES ARG ERTA 1,291,534 -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFER AEAM
FEKENERTA 164,124 -
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEF AR KR
BEETA 8,954,832 -
29,685,358 27,070,923
Financial liabilities Y =Ri
Amortised cost HEHA AR
— trade and other payables — B MHEMEMNER 4,022,940 3,648,660
— bills payables —FENEE 512,566 691,834
— bank borrowings —iRITEE 27,513,681 19,088,342
32,049,187 23,428,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 8.8% (2017: 13.5%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost 9.9% (2017: 5.8%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of US$, Euro, HK$ and GBP. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase
and decrease in functional currency against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2017: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only the
outstanding monetary items denominated in foreign currency
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2017: 5%) changes in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes trade and other receivables,
bills receivables, equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt instruments at fair value through
comprehensive income, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, bills payables as well as bank borrowings.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year where functional currency of each group
entity strengthens 5% (2017: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of functional
currency of each group entity against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year.

>

39. €@ T A

(b)

MHEAREEBEEREEK
()

TiSER(E)

EXEs ()
AEEFEmMEET - BUT - &
TR EEINE R E R - T
SRS EH s E ¥ K ABRISN
B BE%( —B—+F : 5%)8
BRKE 5% (—ZT—+H4F : 5%)
DHEBBHINERERAELIRZ
BIEZERTE - BUREDITE
BIE M AR B HILASNE D (E R B HE
BE - YEREHREE R A ZINE
ERE% (=T —+HF : 5%)EE
ERIARE - RRESTRIEE
SREMERERTR - EIRERE -
BRAFESFABZOERTA -
RAFES AR AR
#mTA  BAFEFAEMEE
WHMEHTE « BITEHKRIR
& BHREAMEMERR - B
ZENIRITEE - EBIESSE
FRNE S K ABBINEFHE
5%(ZZF—+F : 5%)K - ANF
ERBEEFIEAIEM - Z85%
EEREMNIEEES S BEINER
B5%(ZZF—+F : 5%)8 7]
AT ERRFE S FIB REAE
REVFE -

2018 2017

—EB-—N\F ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Uss$ eV (406,998) (215,279)
HK$ BT 1,078,379 526,895
Euro BT (2,791) (2,431)
GBP B (13,880) (24,455)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed rate fixed deposits (see Note 29(c) for detail of
these deposit) and listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest (see Notes 24 and 25 for details of these listed bond
securities).

The Group’s bank balances, entrusted loans and variable-rate
borrowings have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR (2017: HIBOR)
arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
balances, entrusted loans and bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points
(2017: 10 basis points) decrease are used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

@I A

b) HEERBREEEEREE
()
B E R ()
FIEER

AEFEFAEREESEXEHT
%Mﬁ:?%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁwu)

KEIHEE B Hm EMESFES
(&?LmL%ﬁ%ﬁ\iW&
24K 25) FREEE 2 R EF R R

& o
N

BRRITHSNERE - NEE
ZIRTTHERR - BREER &/7« BfE
Eﬁﬁnniﬁ.é/llb %‘J}:’—L PR

rEEAZSREEZFIERR
Zﬁﬁ RAMEREDE SRR
—& - AEBEWBESREN
M$Eﬁ$%lm%ﬁ@
éﬁﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&:?
—+F  EBRITRERS) K
BT EFH -

BT
AT GBS DT IRIR SRS BRI 45
RE AW BIRITHER - ZRLER
KRITEENFERBRET - /R
%?¥AMM B2 R A R e HARS
HREARIBZESHMTANE
iﬁ%*d% 50fAZEF (=%
—+4F : 50fAZEF ) Mk 101E
T (ZZE—+F - 10E2F)
B BFTANSREE  TEER
B F R A BBEE BT -



BEEEARAQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would decrease by approximately HK$73,592,000
(2017: decrease by approximately HK$41,375,000)
as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
and variable-rate borrowings.

° the investment valuation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2018 would decrease by approximately
HK$132,763,000 (2017: decrease by approximately
HK$123,290,000) as a result of the change in the fair
value of debt instruments at FVTOCI with fixed coupon
interest.

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2017: 10 basis
points) lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would increase by approximately HK$14,718,000
(2017: increase by approximately HK$8,275,000) as
a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
respectively and variable-rate borrowings.

o the investment valuation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2018 would increase by approximately
HK$26,995,000 (2017: increase by approximately
HK$20,761,000) as a result of the change in the fair
value of debt instruments at FVTOCI with fixed coupon
interest.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity and debt price risk through
its investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL
and FVTOCI and debt instruments at FVTOCI (2017: AFS
investments). For equity securities measured at FVTPL
(2017: AFS investments) quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. In addition, the
Group also invested in certain unquoted equity securities for
investees for long term strategic purposes. The Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity and debt price risk at the reporting date,
excluding AFS investments measured at cost less impairment
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$107,843,000 (2017: increase/decrease in investment
revaluation reserve by HK$31,873,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL (2017: AFS
investments).

If the prices of the respective debt instruments had been 10%
(2017: 10%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/
decrease by HK$895,483,000 (2017: increase/decrease in
investment revaluation reserve by HK$496,662,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL
(2017: AFS investments).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customer

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors have
delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade balances individually or based on provision matrix.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of entrusted loans at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
assessment are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
entrusted loans are pledged by the properties held by the
borrowers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 39. £ T H

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) HHKEREEEEREX
policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERBRREL(E)
Collective assessments BRERT A
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group REEYUERFEARNITEET
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following % ERTEEEERREER
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk —&85 o TRIERE-ZZ—N
for trade receivables which are assessed based on provision F+-—/A=+—HERZHHEH
matrix as at 31 December 2018 with lifetime ECL. EEBENO 2 BERRESLHY

B RUIRREERBER -

Gross
trade Range of Trade
Internal credit rating receivables loss rates ECL receivables
REBME ERTAR R EBEEREE 58 FEUIER R
HK$’00 HK$'000
T T
Low risk* KR 4,593,775 1% - 3% 105,746 4,488,029
Watch list BLEmpE 2,072,452 5% —15% 310,760 1,761,692
Doubtful REE 114,435  30% - 43% 48,471 65,964
Loss 518 562,919 100% 562,919 -
Write-off i sH 5,598 100% 5,598 -
7,349,179 1,033,494 6,315,685
Quiality classification definitions: BHEDBEEE -
“Low risk”:  The counterparty has low risk of default and MERERR]: ZZEFTELORER
does not have any past-due amounts. K - BE e
FIE o
“Watch list”: Doubtful debtors frequently repay after due [BEZ2 5 | (EfEE NG
dates but usually settle after due date. HALEREEA

BEEFOR - BB
FAREMAKE

& o
“Doubtful”:  There have been significant increases in credit [RER] - A AL A A SN
risk since initial recognition through information H BRI ) A
developed internally or external resources. BTREERREEY
TATER AR E £
H o
“Loss”: There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- [EE ] AR EBNEEL
impaired. RIEERIE -
“Write-off”  There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in [HsH ] - BRBRBREBA
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no PAABREMR - B
realistic prospect of recovery. AEEEERKS
W BIRIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Collective assessments (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

The following table sets out the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified
approach.

As at 31 December 2017 i
under HKAS 39 and as at +

1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 FHE & HEH|5E395% &
R—ZZE—\F—HF—H

39. €T Ay

(b)

Lifetime
ECL

(not credit-
impaired)

EHEY
FEBE
(BRIEERE)
HK$’000
FTET

MBREAREEZEEERBXE
(&)

1= BB FOR B RT R ()
BREHL (&)

At ER R HENE YRR IER
FHNELBREABEOERM
it WHEF N HBZRALE
FBNA] 13 RO AT R £ B BHE 5
B BHETHENSEIE N
HEORBE IS E R UBR KAV ARRE &
FH R -

TREGIREEOEERSE S
EURRFHN 2 HREEREZ

23 -

Lifetime
ECL
(credit-
impaired)
TR
FEER
(HREE
WAE)
HK$°000
THET

#at
HK$’000
FET

IRIEE B 75 B ERER
el - 934,179 934,179
Net impairment loss recognised ~ #2 (% [E]) R EEE
(reversed) R 480,005 (343,002) 137,003
Exchange adjustments TE H % (15,028) (22,660) (37,688)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZTE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 464,977 568,517 1,033,494

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables

In determining the ECL for bills receivables, the Directors has
considered the bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year are assessed on 12m ECL,
and concluded that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding bills receivables is insignificant.

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the Directors
have made periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables, based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example, the
Group has considered the consistently low historical default
rate in connection with payments, and concluded the credit
risk interest in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant.

Bank balances

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group only invests in debt securities with low credit risk.
The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise
listed bonds in Hong Kong, Singapore, Swiss and Germany
that are graded in the high credit rating among rating agencies
and therefore are considered to be low credit risk investments.
Most listed bonds are engaged in the property development
business in Hong Kong and PRC and top investment grade
banking industry in Hong Kong and UK. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, no expected credit losses on debt
instruments at FVTOCI were recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI (continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables and entrusted loans with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers
other than group entities. However, the Group is exposed
to the concentration on geographic segment in PRC. At 31
December 2018, approximately 95% (2017: 96%) and 100%
(2017: 100%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables and
entrusted loans respectively are arising from the PRC.

At 31 December 2018, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk on its debt instruments at FVTOCI as 38%
(2017: 40%) of the total debt and equity instruments are
concentrated in three (2017: two) listed bond securities issued
by two (2017: two) listed issuers in Hong Kong. The Group’s
listed bond securities are exposed to credit risk due to the
default of repayment by the bond issuers. However, the
Directors considered that the credit risk on these investments
is limited as the listed bonds securities were secured by
certain assets of the issuers and issued by issuers in Hong
Kong with good creditability.

As at 31 December 2018, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising
from the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 41(a).
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TEEEZREMBURERRE
HERTESEEPZEER
B BRERBAZEAIZHRE
F(EEEBRIN S - A -
AREEEZ MR D IPEPEPEH
ZEE - R=—T—N\F+=A
—t+—8  AEEDBIHB%
(ZB—+4F 1 96%) F100%( =
T—+FE100%) 2B RE
i FEUBR 30 e R AL E R R B E
_&I_ °

RZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—H "
AEBERIEAFEFAEMER
Hﬁﬁmﬁa“kl,ﬁﬁﬁw?%@
CEERREm T EBRET
38%(_? +F 1 40%)EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount that
the Group has guaranteed under the respective contracts was
approximately HK$527,397,000 (2017: HK$3,831,426,000)
as at 31 December 2018. At the end of the reporting period,
the Directors have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of the financial guarantee
contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is measured at an
amount equal to 12m ECL. The management of the Group
considers the probability of default is low and accordingly,
loss allowance was considered as insignificant. Details of the
financial guarantee contracts are set out in Note 41(a).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The Directors monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. At 31 December 2018, the Group has available
unutilised bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$4,410,844,000 (2017: HK$11,795,552,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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(b)

BERBREEEEREEK
()

FEERBREENM(E)
HMBEREOME - AEER
—E-N\F+ZA=1+HRE
EENMERNESSELR
527,397,000 70( Z T —+4F :
3,831,426,000/8 7T ) ° P& HA
K BEEETRENS  RA
VBRERRENZEERRE VIS
TEFR LA R 4B AR IE 0 o Bt -
REBBELOVBERENZE
BEERESENt @ AESE
EEEHE ARBEEREERA
BAOMEER - BB ERER
BB RE - BHEERE A8
FEEEHNMIEE41() ©

RBETER
AEEREERSDETRER B
ERE MRS EEIAB RKE
REARNEIEER/ITEMK
F o MEXASENER - TOR
BRERERIOTE - NF
N BEREFRITEENERIE
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NEBEKBIRITEEIEASRD
BEWMEERR - R_ZT—N
F+-_A=+—H A&EH
KRB TEEBREN A
4,410,844,0008 (= —+
£ 1 11,795,552,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @I B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b)) BHXEREEEHERBEE
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESRR(E)
Liquidiity and interest risk tables BB 2 RFFE e

Weighted Over Over Over
average  Ondemand 3 months but fyearbut  2years but Total
effective  orless than not more not more notmore  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months  thaniyear  than2years  than5years cash flows amount
ZfEARE =N RENE  FiBRE
BFgE-F {EFEERF [ETERIF it Rt

il 357 ERE]
RERE ZRARk
% HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
TEn TR TEn Tk TEn T

At 31 Decernber 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities HittHER
Trade and other payables ERRARERE - 473640 = = - 4TR6 4730649
Bills payables EZE - 512,566 - - - 512,566 512,566
Bank borrowings i
- Variable rate -28 34 2,046,044 8,213,314 6,268,653 13,608,826 30,156,837 27,513,681
7,291,259 8,213,314 6,288,653 13,608,826 35,402,052 32,758,896
Finencial quarantee contracts HBERAY - 527,307 - - - 597,307 527,397
At 31 December 2017 RoE-tE+-F=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabiities Fiisnas
Tradle and other payables BAREMERER - 3,648,660 - - - 3648660 3,048,660
Bl peyebes e S e - - S e
Bank borrowings iy
- Variable rate -3 25 2,403,953 2,988,673 4,785,663 10,628,471 20,806,760 19,088,342
6,744,447 2,988,673 4,785,663 10,628.471 25,147,254 23,428,836
Financial quaranteg contracts HBERaY - 3831426 - - - 38314% 3831426

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are M52 BSRB RIGR 2 IRITHE

included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2018,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$436,242,000 (2017:
HK$515,240,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates ranging from one to fourteen (2017: one to fifteen)
years as set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$628,096,000 (2017: HK$592,791,000).

BRSO NGANIRE
K =EMARIZEE - R=F
—N\E+-A=+—01 %=
RITEEZIENMBASLEA
436,242,000/ 0 ( = —+4F :
515,240,000/ 7T ) ° & & B A&
EBHEMR  BFAEE R
I RAIBE TR EYIBHE - Bk
EERRER - EFME - %E
RITEEBNREHEERER
BERBEMH BT ERBH
NF—E=+NE(CT—+4F
—ETRF)NE) 2HEE -
B AERBERHABRER
H 1 5628,096,0008 7T (==
—+4F : 592,791,000/ 7T ) °

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @I B

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) S&BMIEBEATEFE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are BELEMEERATFEITEZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis NEBEESREEZAFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair AEFETDEEENSRER
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table FIZAFEFE - TREMER
gives information about how the fair values of these financial ErZEemEE A NTEZHE
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) (LERATH Z EEREM K A
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy ) URIEAFEEEE AR
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels B EREEE AT EAES
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair B ATFESELEN(E—ZF=
value measurements is observable. )2 EH -
Valuation
Fair value techniques Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December higrarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs ~ Sensitivity
{HERITR
tHEE WtZR=t-R2AYE NPEER IZRAYE EXTUBERANE  ¥8E
2018 7
“5-)\&
HKS$'000
ThR

) Listed equity securities classified as 1,291,534 -1 Quoted bid prices in NA NA
equity instruments at FVTPL active market

(| ABBRLTENABEY BRTAEARE: ¥k ¥k
BRTA LilnEs

fi) Unlisted equity securies classified as 8124 -3 Market approach. Thelack of marketabiity  The higher the lack of
equity instruments at FYTOCH discountand P/Eratio  marketabilty discount,

The market approach was ~~ of selected comparable  the lower the fair value.
used to defermine the ~ companes. The higher the P/E ratio,
valuation using price to the higher the fair value.
eamings (‘P/E') ratio of
selected comparable
listed companies ina
similar business and
similar business mode!
and adjusted for the lack
of marketabity.

) AEARRTETALY [0 E BeTERBIHTRE  REHARELIE
SEYANERIAL ETENSRANTR & ATEEEE-
FEmBAER fEmaL EREEE % [N

SHREHE R DVERNEE -
TELA L HRED

BRETRE U35

ZIERBE I

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Financial assets

THEE

i

i

i

i

1y

iy

Unlisted equtty securities classified as

equity instruments at FYTOCH
ARREATET AL
2ENENERIAL
AR

Listed bond securities classiied as

debt intruments at FVTOC

PRRRLFE AL 2EREY

BHTAZLTERES

Listed equity securties classified as

AFS financial assets
ABRTRIESHEE,
LikAES

Fair value as at 31 December

Mt=A=t-B2AHE
2018
ZE-N\§
HK$'000
T#7

156,000

8,064,832

Fair value
hierarchy

1958

¥l

1050830 1

39. &£l

(c)

Valuation
techniques
and key inputs
{EERHR
IZHANE

N/A (Note 1)

TaR(Hit)

Reference to the fair value
quoted in the over-the-
counter market with the
adjustments for the lack
of marketabilty. (Note 2)

2RETEREL
AV URtRT TS
REEMTFLAE -
(Kisk2)

Quoted bid prices in active
merket.

RETEEARE

T B

229

ERMTAAFEFE®

RESEUHEERAVPEFEZ
FEEEHMEEZAFPEE)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EAFTRREARE

NA

¥l

The lack of marketabilty
discount

RZHERA

N

=

A

=

il

Sensitivity

NA

¥l

The higher the lack of
merketabilty discount,
the lower the fair value.

HE BB
5 ATENAE-

NA

¥l

—E— ) \FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy
SHEE RT=B=1-HZAYE AYEER
2018
ZE2-)\E
HKS$'000
TR
() Listed bond securites classflied as - 4966616 3
AFS financial assets
M ABRUEHESHAR,
kRES
Notes:
(1) The investment was made near the end of the reporting period,

the Directors are of the opinion the fair value of the investment at
31 December 2018 approximates to the cost of investment.

2 For the debt instruments at FVTOCI (2017: listed bond
securities classified as AFS financial assets), the most significant
unobservable input is the marketability discount. As at 31
December 2018, if the marketability discount to the valuation
model was 0.5% higher/lower and the other variables were held
constant, the total carrying amount of these investments would
decrease/increase by HK$132,763,000 and HK$132,763,000
(31 December 2017: HK$123,290,000 and HK$123,290,000)
respectively.

There were no transfer between level 1 and 3 during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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ERMTAAFEFE®

(c)

Valuation
techniques
and key inputs
{EERHR
IZHANE

Reference to the fair value
quoted in the over-the-
counter market with the
adjustments for the lack
of marketabity. (Note 2)

SRENTRRRLAT  BTHARANAT

B LRRZTRRR
oA -
(I&2)

RESEUHEERAVPEFEZ
FEEEHMEEZAFPEE)

Significant

unobservable inputs

Sensitivity

EATUBERANE  8REE

The lack of marketabilty

The higher the lack of
merketabilty discount,
the lower the fair value.

HE BB
5 ATENAE-

BA N IR R T
EFRARRER =T\
FH-A=t+—AWATHE
SRR ©

MO BALRATETAEM
PERENESIAMS
—T—tFpBEATH
TESRHEEN EhELFE
%) ZREAHTAIERE
ABE AT ZRBIENI
RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—
B WEEEXO TSRS
MH I LA TRE05% ¢
i E A ] B2 YT
AlZESRENEERMESD
Bl 4 # 0 132,763,000
7 Jt & 182,763,000 #& T
(ZB—+F+-_A=+—
H : 123,290,000 & 7T &
123,290,000/ 7T) °

BHEZZT-N\EkZZT—tF
+—A=+—HILFE  BEF
—EE=EHNEY -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial assets

39. €T A x

SRMTAAFEFEE)

(c)

F-REMEEZAVEFEZ
Bk

Unlisted Listed
equity bond
instruments securities Total
kLEm Em
=T R BEHES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET THET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—HA—H - 2,321,905 2,321,905
Additions VIN=E - 3,617,573 3,617,573
Disposals ﬁ € - (1,136,539) (1,136,539)
Fair value gain in OCI REMAZEKEZ
N ERE - 65,017 65,017
Interest income from listed KA LEMESFFE
bond securities FlBEUA - 177,147 177,147
Interest received from listed B EmERFE
bond securities RSN - (78,487) (78,487)
At 31 December 2017 RZTE—+F
+=—A=+—8H - 4,966,616 4,966,616
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 BRANE BB R R ER
Eebiin)-Z 8,124 - 8,124
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZE—-N\F—H—H
(#rEam) 8,124 4,966,616 4,974,740
Additions NE 156,000 5,429,438 5,585,438
Derecognition on disposals or HE s I EA M AR | R
maturity - (1,006,100) (1,006,100)
Fair value loss in OCI REMEEKE 2
NEEERE - (533,782) (533,782)
Interest income from listed KB ETESFE
bond securities FlBUA - 401,497 401,497
Interest received from listed B FmESFES
bond securities WCEREY LS - (302,837) (302,837)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+—A=+— 164,124 8,954,832 9,118,956

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with general accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of these financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate

to their fair values.

HiteREEREBABNAF
ERBTRASRENMRER
REBRUETE - EERA &
BIERAIRNZEEREER
TRABENREEREQFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

40. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS  40. B4k Hfi&E

2018 2017
—E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHBT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FEETHERR
provided in the consolidated financial IRE IS IRERIED
statements in respect of: Bz EAT T
— acquisition of an investment property —BEREME 709,750 4,006,455
- acquisition of properties, plant and —BEYE BEK
equipment B 565,339 306,826
— capital injection in an unlisted investment —FLMREZTER - 3,346
1,275,089 4,316,627
Other expenditure contracted for but not HEFTHERRA
provided in the consolidated financial IRE ISIRERIED
statements in respect of; B Kb
— acquisition and other expenditures —BRFEEYMEZ
relating to properties held Wl R B 32
for development 1,689,242 4,169,329
2,964,331 8,485,956
41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M. HRERE
() The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately B) R-—E—NE+—A=+—A8 -
HK$527,397,000 (2017: HK$3,831,426,000) as at 31 REBAAEEMERYE S
December 2018 to facilitate mortgage bank loans applications R IRIBIRITE BSR4ty
of purchasers of the properties that were developed by the 527,397,000/ 7T ( — B —+4F :
Group. 3,831,426,000/8 7T ) &R ©
The guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans NEEGAEEFERYE S
procured by the purchasers of properties that were developed RS Y BRI TR o
by the Group. Such guarantees will be released by banks Ly S U A 2 e B R
upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and MR RIR Y R R B R IR 1T
completion of registration of the relevant mortgage properties. Rk o BEIA - ANEEEH
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of these financial BIER A B ATERY S TER
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial BN REA  MESRAEES
recognition and the Directors consider that the possibility FEXEEIRIE - Bt - R
of default of the parties involved is remote. Accordingly, no T NE+-F=+—BR-F
value has been recognised at the inception of the guarantee —EFmA=4+—H - RER
contracts and at the end of the reporting period as at 31 A BB T R A HR RS 4 SR A D 4
December 2018 and 31 December 2017. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

On 3 August 2011, Annuity & Re Life Ltd (the “Petitioner”)
presented a petition in the Supreme Court of Bermuda in
respect of KBCF against its controlling shareholders based
on a complaint that the affairs of KBCF had been and/or were
being conducted in a manner which was oppressive or unfairly
prejudicial to the Petitioner.

The controlling shareholders of KBCF were eventually
successful in defending the case following a favourable
judgment by the Bermuda Court of Appeal dated 24 March
2017. Subsequently, the Petitioner took steps to appeal the
said judgment.

On 3 May 2018, the parties reached a settlement agreement
providing, inter alia, that the Petitioner shall forego its appeal
to the Privy Council in its entirety and releases and forever
discharges all of its claims arising out of or connected directly
or indirectly with the case and its underlying facts. The
Company is a party to this settlement agreement.

On 1 November 2018, the Petitioner served a Writ on the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company alleging
a breach of the said settlement agreement. The Petitioner
claimed (inter alia) a sum of $$2,297,360 plus damages to be
assessed, interests and costs. On 27 November 2018, The
Company’s Bermuda counsel filed the Defence arguing that
there is no reasonable cause of action and should accordingly
be struck out. In addition, the defendants denied that they are
in breach of any contractual obligations under the settlement
agreement and pleaded that they have at all times performed
their obligations under it.

Based on the advice of the Company’s Bermuda Counsel to
date, the board is of the opinion the settlement action appears
to be intrinsically defective and that the Company should have
a more than reasonable chance to succeed. Accordingly, no
provision for liability has been made in connection with this
claim.
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234 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
42. OPERATING LEASES 42, KEMRLY
2018 2017
—E-)N\EF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Lease payments charged to the consolidated ~ ER B4 & Bz FRING
statement of profit or loss during the year ZHEIA
— for premises — 26,318 24,759
— for plant and machinery — B i 2s 1,468 1,326
27,786 26,085
Under the leases entered into by the Group, operating leases are BEANEBT L 2L - EiEmk - K%
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 33 years. AR FERN F1FE33F -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments RREHEERER - NEBIREA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: B2 EERAR AR 2 HERE

AR THIEM AT

Premises
M

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Within one year R—FR 3,548 4,833
After one year but not later than five years R—FREREFA 9,332 14,520
After five years REF% 4,891 8,949
17,771 28,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
42. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 42. LEHD @)
2018 2017
—Z2—N\F B+
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
The Group as lessor/licensor: REBEERHBEA BEA
Rental income credited to the consolidated RENGTALEEBRERL
statement of profit or loss during the year Be A 1,055,784 897,436

Licence fee income credited to the consolidated FAE AT AdZB B &R Y

statement of profit or loss during the year EREFEREBIRA 120,000 120,000
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties REBEZIEENMEDIRTBERET TR
for periods up to twenty five years (2017: twenty five years) at fixed HeHTINAAL HHSERAZTH
predetermined amounts. F(ZT—tF: —+HF) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RRERERE R - AEEDRBRET
tenants under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasing AR S - SR EY = EM
of investment properties (see Note 14) and with Licencee under BETH(RMIEE14) - WARBE AT HSH M
cancellable licence agreement for the following future minium lease FRRE  RARARSERENTRER
payments commitments and licence assets (see Note 15) which fall BREFHREEHEBREATO(RME
due as follow: 15) » LA HARISIER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FATT
Within one year R—FR 767,370 687,850
After one year but not later than five years R—FRERAFA 1,873,959 1,793,660
After five years REAFE 2,388,688 2,358,465
5,030,017 4,839,975
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236 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
42. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 42. REHEN @
The Group licences its Licenced Assets to a committed Licencee BEREERARE  ~NEEREDER
under the licence agreement as follows: ZERENFEANREEREENT
o Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group o EREFERE T -_@A &%
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its B EREATITERERS
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than BomBR—ABETIOR—E
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party AELAZEBHM YRR —FX
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually 41,000,000/ T sk & 7 £ H %
agreed in writing between both parties. ENHEHMESE - KIEEREFERD
o
. After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may o EREFERE T _EA% K&
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by B REREAZELE T DR —E
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice AE4AEmBEA - 2ERBRIL
in writing. PR A -
43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following assets RBEHEERER - AEBTHEE
pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group: EERTIRIT  (EAREBRITRED
R
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Investment properties BEYE 1,780,000 1,780,000
Properties held for development FEEME 4,080,928 3,403,615
5,860,928 5,183,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group and are invested in the funds
under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees and each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2017: HK$30,000).

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payrolls to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the required contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$228,998,000
(2017: HK$214,883,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2018, contributions of HK$15,468,000 (2017:
HK$14,326,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequently to the

end of reporting period.

44.
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238 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
45. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 45. @& ZE oMW EaEY
ARISING FROM FINANCING BR
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFAVALEEME ZB S| RNAES
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 3 BRESNFFRSEEY - RMETY
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash SIENBERRESREER « SARKE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s SREBFNAEENGERERERD
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BRARELDMERERENARE -
activities.
Bank Interest
borrowings payable Total
RITER EAFIE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE T
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 16,864,152 17,030 16,881,182
Financing cash flows BMERERE 2,222,718 (346,929) 1,875,789
Interest expenses recognised in iR E 1B R R
the consolidated statement of B
profit or loss - 311,919 311,919
Interest expense capitalised B F SR - 33,603 33,603
Exchange adjustments PE H A 1,472 5 1,477
At 31 December 2017 and R-_TE—+4F
1 January 2018 +-A=+—8K
RZZE—NF—H—H 19,088,342 15,628 19,103,970
Financing cash flows MERERE 8,268,533 (639,074) 7,629,459
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) U BE T B A &) (M 5E36) 158,472 = 158,472
Interest expenses recognised in the REFEIBRRERS
consolidated statement of profit or loss | £ - 589,222 589,222
Interest expense capitalised BAREF BRI - 58,323 58,323
Exchange adjustments DEE 5, 5 X (1,666) (3) (1,669)
At 31 December 2018 R_ZT—\F+_A=+—H 27,513,681 24,096 27,537,777
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year.

Sales of goods to subsidiaries of a shareholder [F)%} 7~ & [ B 8 A 22 H K
with significant influence on the Group IR B A RIEEE D
Purchase of goods from subsidiaries of a MEAEBMESERTE NN
shareholder with significant influence on IR A RIIRIE & @
the Group
Sales of goods to a non-controlling shareholder [&—FfEH B AR 2
of a subsidiary FEPERR AR RS E
Purchase of goods from an associate W — A R RIREE R

iy EI:I
og

BEEALRES
AEBRMBEAHEFRET 2 BAR
S0 -

2018 2017
—B-)N\f&E

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

702,935 659,021
932,415 763,403

53,233 55,092
463,671 428,338

The transaction above constituted continuing connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at
31 December 2018 was an amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately HK$9,488,000 (2017:
HK$9,665,000) which was in trade nature. The Group allowed credit
periods of up to 120 days (2017: 120 days), depending on the
products sold to its related parties.

Included in trade and other payables as at 31 December 2018
was an amount due to an associate of HK$10,672,000 (2017:
HK$6,882,000).

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2018 was
an amount due from subsidiaries of a shareholder of HK$366,011,000
(2017: Nil).

Included in trade and other payables as at 31 December 2017 was
an amount due to subsidiaries of a shareholder of HK$132,034,000
(2018: Nil).

RIEETRAEAR - BT 5K
ARBMFEBEZ S

N_ZT—N\F+_A=+—8" %%&
HiEWERRBEMNRECEBNE
SV 2 R — B A 5 2 JEfE Rk

%?KIE%"JQAS&OOO?%T_E(:%E—ti :
9,665,000/ 7T ) ° ANEE M HBEA T
BHZEEBR&ERAI208(ZZE—+
& 120H) - RTAHEZERIME °

R-ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—HHES K
Hip R BEREREMN — MBS QR
FIER10,672,0008 L (ZFE—LF :
6,882,000/ 7T ) °

RZB—-N\F+_A=+—HNHNESR
ﬁf@ﬂ’éuﬁzﬁﬁﬁfa%ﬂ%u&—%ﬁﬁiwr%%
A A]H366,011,000/8 L (ZZ—+4F :
) o

R-E—+F+-_A=+—HNESL
HAbfEATERIB B IEFEN — R AR A H B
A A]H132,034,0008 0 (= — )\ F :
) o
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240 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BEA LR F @)

(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAEHME
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key FRN EEZRHEBIZEEASZHE
management during the year was as follows: LN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR T
Short-term benefits S HAE AR 222,358 227,282
Post-employment benefits RIRIRAE T 1,772 1,824
224,130 229,106
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by BEERFETBRABZHESEHFMEE
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of BERMEMNEIXRBEMSBYEEE
individuals and market trends. E °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

47. AR TN ETEME QT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =

(a)

General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

i

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

2018
“E-\E

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered capital
BRTRATRS/
EER

(@

PRS2 R — AR
ARREEMBARTIN=_F—N
FR-F—tFt-A=1+—H
ZFEWT

Effective equity interest
held by the Group

Principal activities
A5EIE
IEEH

Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands® US$1,000 US$1,000 100* 100" Investment holding
EERAEE 10007 1,000%7 REER
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limted ~ PRC! US$29,466,000 1S$29,466,000 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution
BHBR)EERERAT e 29,466,000£7 29,466,000 T2 of laminates
LERAHERER
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates Co. Ltd.  PRC! US$17,936,546 US$17 936,546 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution
BRREEARERAA e 17,936 546£ 70 17,036 54657 of laminates
LERAHERER
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. Limited PRC! RMBY903,672,940 RMB03,672,940 100 100 Manufacture and distrioution
BAMNEARAF G AR903672940m  ARI903,672.9407C of coke and chemicals
HERAHERRIER
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRC? US$18,500,000 US$18,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
(Chong Qing) Limited! e 18,500,000% 75 18,500,000% T of methanol
BERRRI IER)ARAR HERAHTE
Kunshan Guo Rui Development Co. Ltd. PRC US$90,000,000 1S890,000,000 100 100 Property developments
EILEREZERAR e 90,000,000%7 90,000,000%TC FHERR
Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC! HK$30,000,000 HK$30,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
EhREVIERAR G 30,000,000 7 30,000000% 7 of caustic soda
SERDHER
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242 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. XA R X EK B A T
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY B

(continued)

(a)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEIARAN—RERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and fully paid Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities

il BRTRARERE/ ARENE
HEAAER BRRERNE e ZRBRE TERK
2018 2018
Z2-)\f

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fiore Glass Co. Limited  PRC * US$13,700,000 US$13,700,000 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution

BEEN FREEERAA ! 13,700,005 7% 13,700,005 of glass fabric
SERARRRAAT

Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited @ Bermuda # US$72,250,000 US872,250,000 62.26 57106 Investment holding

BEE 72,250,000% 70 72,250,005 RABR

Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong # HK$8,000 HK$8,000 100 100 Investment holding

BEREARAR Eb 8,000&7 800037 RABR

KLHL 2 CGayman Islands * HK$308,100,000 HK$308,100,000 70.79 69.32  Investment holding

BERER REHS 308,100,000 7 308,100,000 RABR

Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Lid. PRC! HK$242,800,000 HK$242,800,000 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution

IR ERERERAT ! 242,800,000 7 242,800000%7C of laminates
HERAHERAR

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC! US$32,000,000 15$32,000,000 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution

BETHILIARAT Gl 32,000,000%7 32,000,000 ¢ of chemicals
HERARLIER

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd PRC! US$32,010,000 15$32,010,000 70.79 69.32  Manufacture and distribution

BERERRILERAF R 32,010,000% 7 32,010,005 of laminates
HERAHERAR

Elec & Eltek International Holdings Limited Bermuda/ HK$122,467,240 HK$122,467,240 100 100 Investment holding

[HzEEREEERAT Hong Kong * 122,467,404 70 122,467 24057 BaRR

AR/ A
EEIC e Singapore * US$113,800,000 1US$113,800,000 73.63 7375 Investment holding
fiig o g 113,800,000% 70 113,800,005 RABR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Kaiping Elec & Ettek Company Limited
RERHREETARAT

Kaiping Elec & Ettek No. 3 Company Limited
AEHREE T E=ARAT

Kaiping Elec & Ettek No. 5 Company Limited
RTHNREEFERERAR

Elec & Etiek (Guangzhou) Electronic
Company Limited
[ BB TARAA

Guangzhou Elec & Eftek Microvia
Technology Limited
BMGAZEERRARAT

Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical
Company Limited
BMEELTARAA

Shi'You Chemical (Yangzhou) Co, Ltd
ERIEIEMERAR

15 )

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered capital
BRTRATRE/
&R

2018
“3-)\F

Effective equity interest
held by the Group
A5EE
ZBRIRE

2018 2017
“E-\E “E-t%

%

i/
BRRERNE

PRC? 1$$49,520,000 US$£9,520,000 69.95 7010
e 49,520000£ 7 495200007
PRC? 1$$87,800,000 US$87,800,000 69.95 7010
g 87,800,000£7 87,800,005
PRC? 18$30,075,100 US$30,075,100 69.95 7010
e 30,075,100£ % 3007510057
PRC? 18$95,506,000 US$95,596,000 7216 7228
g 95,506,000 95,596,005
PRC? 1$524,800,000 US$24,800,000 7216 7228
e 24,800,000£ 7 24 8000007
PRC' 1$$40,200,000 US$£0,290,000 100 100
B 40,290,000£ 7 402900007
PRC! US$144,237,000 US$144,237,000 100 100
B 144,237,000% 7% 144,237 000%7T

—-—=

T— \FFH
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47. KA ETEH B DA

MEARN—RER(E)

Principal activities

IEER

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
SHERHHEIRIRE R

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
SHERHHEIRIRE IR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
SHERHHEIRIRE IR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
SHERHHEIRIRE IR

Manufacture and distribution
of PCBs
SHERHHEIRIRE IR

Manufacture and distribution
of phenol/acetone
BERSHAR/ AR

Refining and distribution of
chemicals

BERNHILTER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

47. KA ETEH B DA

15 )

ME AR —RER (B

(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
AL/
BRERERE

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered capital
ERARMERE/
HfEA
2018
“E-)\F

Effective equity interest
held by the Group
A5ERE
LBRRE

2018 2017
“B-N\E F-tF

Name of subsidiary Principal activities

HEAAER

FEEE
2017
“5-tF

Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! US$30,000,000
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd kil 30,000,000
RARFHIH(TE R
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical PRC! RMB250,000,000
Company Limited e A& #250,000,0007
BHEERH)AIERLT
* The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI)

Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

@ These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

A These companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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RMB250,000,000
AR#250,000,0007

%

70.79

0.

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

HERHHERER

69.32  Manufacture and distribution

of chemicals

RERN B TER

A BIE A Jamplan (BVI)
Limited Z fx 1 o &R AR PR
BHAMM B AR RIESE
i@Jamplan (BVI) Limitedf#Z
ESE=I

IEREBEZERQE  TE
FE 2 T RIE LB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. XATFEME QB
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1 e
(continued)
(@)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEARN—RERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REHMERER - AAFH
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal BHAREE TR EMMER
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: Al e ZEMB AR T EEBRH
EZMT

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2018 2017
FTEEK FTEEEME —E-N\F —T—tF
Manufacture and sale of laminates PRC 27 27
B N HE B E R A
Macau 2 2
JBRPY
Thailand 1 1
ZE
30 30
Manufacture and sale of PCBs Hong Kong 3 2
BU3E 2 S EDRI AR BE AR 6
PRC 14 13
H
Macau 3 3
JBRFY
Thailand 1 1
ZE
21 19
Manufacture and sale of chemicals PRC 20 20
BlERNHECIER A
Properties Hong Kong 11 11
ZJES B
PRC 53 54
H
United Kingdom 5 5
ES
69 70
140 139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group partially
disposed its interests in a subsidiary without losing the control
over this subsidiary for the consideration of HK$26,329,000
(2017: HK$1,307,207,000). The difference of HK$21,737,000
(2017: HK$519,695,000) between the increase in the non-
controlling interests and the consideration received has been
recognised in the goodwill reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
acquired additional interests in certain subsidiaries for a
consideration of HK$525,024,000 (2017: HK$265,492,000).
As a result, the difference of HK$60,260,000 (2017:
HK$171,604,000) between the consideration paid of
HK$525,024,000 (2017: HK$265,492,000) and the amount of
non-controlling interests acquired of HK$464,764,000 (2017:
HK$437,096,000) was directly recognised in goodwill reserve.
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47. AT ETEMB QT

15 )

(b)

HE2-_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—
HIEFE  AXEBURKRE
26,329,000 7L (=& —+F :
1,307,207,000% 7T ) K & E R —
E NG E ar e RS
HZMB R Rzt - JEE
SN RREZMZ
21,737,000 LR (=T —+
F : 519,695,00078 7T ) B R &
BEEER -

HE2_Z2—-N\F+-_A=+—
HIEFE  AEBRESTH
BARKENER  REA
525,024,000 L( = F—t4F :
265,492,000/ 7T ) ° BEE T
X {8 525,024,000 % T ( = &
—+4F 1 265,492,0008 7T )
U B8 JE 4% A% #E 25 464,764,000/8
7T (=& —+ 4 : 437,096,000
77T ) 2 fE] #) %= §860,260,000/8
L (ZZF—+4F : 171,604,000
L) EER R REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

47. KATETEMB A FIF

15 )

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) HEEERFEREZZHE
have material non-controlling interests 2> EHREWB RIS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

TREHIAEE A BRI
REZFRERBMB AR

interests: I
Proportion of ownership
place of incorporation interests and voting
and principal Place of rights held by non - Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ERELK FERERSERER AERIIFEER RatFER
WEARER TTEXHY BERREELA B a7 (68) i
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
e = S = U S R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAL THET BT
KLHL # Cayman Islands 29.21% 30.68% 949,420 1,154,961 5,111,625 5,359,784
BERER HERE
EEIC* Singapore 26.37% 26.25% 49,980 74,040 112,347 798,578
EFIC* st
KBCF # Bermuda 37.74% 42.94% 6,579 3,654 715,827 407,583
BIEE ARE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (11,539) 8,095 699,987 1,118,256
BRF R BT EANE AT
994,440 1,240,750 7,300,286 7,684,201
# excluding non-controlling interests of KLHL, EEIC and KBCF’s # T RIERERER - EEICK

F2 O RS B0 B BB 1 B A9 FE 4R
et o

subsidiaries.
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248 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. KRR FENE A S
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1 e
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that c) HEEEREEREZZIE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) >EREHBATFE®)
KLHL and subsidiaries EEEERRME LT
2018 2017
—®-NE T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Current assets TREVAE 15,571,721 18,610,922
Non-current assets JEMBYE E 13,150,020 9,940,301
Current liabilities mENAE 6,016,310 7,475,453
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 4,862,429 3,088,836
Equity attributable to owners RATFA AR
of the Company 12,387,947 12,110,175
Non-controlling interests of KLHL HHEE IR IR S 5,111,625 5,359,784
Non-controlling interests of KLHL’s EERBEREIROME A RH
subsidiaries FEIER AR 343,430 516,975
Revenue L 20,645,776 18,242,796
Expenses, other gains and losses X - Hablizs REE 17,387,785 14,470,545
Profit for the year IREESHF 3,257,991 3,772,251
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

47.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(©)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

KLHL and subsidiaries (continued)

ARBETEMBLARF

15 )

) BEEEXRFEZEREZZF
2EREMBLRFE®)
BEEERRMEAR(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RNFHEE ARIEET 2,300,961 2,609,579
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EERERIEER
interests of KLHL T RIS 949,420 1,154,961
Profit attributable to the non-controlling BEEBRNKEAT
interests of KLHL’s subsidiaries IR R 7,610 7,711
Profit for the year REE 5 F 3,257,991 3,772,251
Other comprehensive (expense) income KRAREAAENL
attributable to owners of the Company Hip2m () e (788,096) 759,906
Other comprehensive (expenss) income BERERIETERER
attributable to the non-controlling interests iR (Y ) s
of KLHL (325,183) 336,323
Other comprehensive (expense) income EERERNNB AR
attributable to the non-controlling interests FEPERR RS G
of KLHL’s subsidiaries Hoith 28 (B> ) s (10,704) 6,621
Other comprehensive (expenss) income AEEEMEZE(FR)KE
for the year (1,123,983) 1,102,850
Total comprehensive income attributable RRAEE AEE
to owners of the Company PEMEEE 1,512,865 3,369,485
Total comprehensive income attributable BERERIEERER
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL EiEeEkEeE 624,237 1,491,284
Total comprehensive (expense) income BERERNNEB AR
attributable to the non-controlling interests FEFERR g RS
of KLHL's subsidiaries 2H(AR)WaiEE (3,094) 14,332
Total comprehensive income for the year REELHMEETE 2,134,008 4,875,101
Dividends paid to non-controling interests T FREEREER B
of a KLHL’s subsidiary NABEHERER R E = -
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEERESRAFE 3,528,128 3,125,276
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEERESRLFE (4,125,561) (1,643,170)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities g8& EENIE & RACRE ) F58 44,557 (1,680,380)
Net cash outflow RemLFE (552,876) (198,274)
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KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. A 8 FEH B A TF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1 e
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (o) BEERFEREZZE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) >EREHBATFE®)
EEIC and subsidiaries EEICK i B A &

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT T
Current assets TREVAE 2,075,003 1,993,610
Non-current assets JEMBYE E 3,591,892 3,208,031
Current liabilities mENAE 2,013,671 1,852,999
Non-current liabilities SEREEE 455,637 217,971
Equity attributable to owners of RATFA AR
the Company 2,319,767 2,243,625
Non-controlling interests of EEIC EEICIEIE ARt 772,847 798,578
Non-controlling interests of EEIC’s EEICH) T/ A 7]
subsidiaries FEPER AR 93,272 88,468
Revenue L 4,700,545 3,903,026
Expenses, other gains and losses X - Hablizs REE 4,506,209 3,616,104
Profit for the year IREESHF 194,336 286,922
Profit attributable to owners of ARAREHB ARG T
the Company 139,551 208,015
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICIE iR 7 25 FE (8 )5 K
interests of EEIC 49,980 74,040
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICHIHIEB A F]
interests of EEIC’s subsidiaries FEPERRAE S (5 A 4,805 4,867
Profit for the year ARE i F 194,336 286,922

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



» ..

BEEEARAQA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. KRR FENE A S
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1 e
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that c) BHEEERFEREZZIHF
have material non-controlling interests (continued) >EREHBATFE®)
EEIC and subsidiaries (continued) EEICK K& 2 = (48)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TATT

Other comprehensive expenses attributable KA 738 AE(L

to owners of the Company Hib2mAX (7,937) (5,033)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable EEICIEIZE AR HE 2 FE(G

to the non-controlling interests of EEIC Hib2mAX (2,843) (1,792)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year ZREE E 2 E X (10,780) (6,825)

Total comprehensive income attributable to AN A &35 H A FE(

owners of the Company EEWESAA%E 131,615 202,982
Total comprehensive income attributable to EEIC3EIEIRIE RS FE(S
the non-controlling interests of EEIC P E BT 44,670 72,248

Total comprehensive income attributable  EEICHIMIE A =
to the non-controlling interests of EEIC’s IR S A

subsidiaries e EaY 4,805 4,867
Total comprehensive income for the year — AREE 2 HE W 4258 181,090 280,097

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of % {5 FEEICH KB A &)

EEIC’s subsidiaries FEFEARRE RS 2 LB - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities KLEEE IR AR 510,830 558,215
Net cash outflow from investing activites ~— & /ZENIRE R IF5E (652,984) (548,222)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEEIRESMAERE 164,752 53,282
Net cash inflow BHemAFE 22,598 63,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(continued)

KBCF and subsidiaries

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

N
it

(c)

/

|

)

AXENBERAF

BEERFERESZF
2ERENELRFE®

BERERME AT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T4
Current assets TRENVEE 2,561,238 1,837,886
Non-current assets JEMBYE E 321,836 1,098,099
Current liabilities mENBE 106,506 116,253
Non-current liabilities JERBEE 4,521 4,793
Equity attributable to owners of RATFE AR
the Company 2,031,655 2,380,058
Non-controlling interests of KBCF B RE IR R 715,827 407,583
Non-controlling interests of KBCF’s EEIRSE R B A A
subsidiary FEIER AR 24,565 27,298
Revenue e 586,979 609,407
Expenses, other gains and losses Bz - Efbless g8 559,547 591,655
Profit for the year IREESHF 27,432 17,752
Profit attributable to owners of RABIEE ARG G
the Company 15,945 8,256
Profit attributable to the non-controlling I ETE BRI A A S
interests of the KLHL TE(ER 6,579 3,654
Profit attributable to the non-controlling BEIEIE TR s
interests of KBCF JE{ & ) 3,086 2,558
Profit attributable to the non-controlling BEIERKIB AR
interests of KBCF’s subsidiary FEF5E IS 25 FE 5 % ) 1,822 3,284
Profit for the year AR [ A 27,432 17,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

47. KA ETEH B DA

15 )

BEEARFERESZF
EREMEARFRE

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries ()
that have material non-controlling interests
(continued)
KBCF and subsidiaries (continued)

EEAERMEAR(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other comprehensive (expense) income KATHEH AEML
attributable to owners of the Company Hibem ()= (40,948) 82,168
Other comprehensive (expense) income JEFERR R ZS PR
attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ Eofh 2 [ (B s ) Yz (16,896) 36,367
Other comprehensive (expense) income EEIRHIEE R R S R
attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ Ecfh &2 (B ) Wk
of KBCF (7,925) 25,458
Other comprehensive (expense) income EEIRERKI B AR
attributable to the non-controlling interests  FE4 A% 7 FE (L
of KBCF’s subsidiary H 2w (B s ) ds (1,199) 1,786
Other comprehensive (expense) income AREEEME2E G
for the year (66,968) 145,779
Total comprehensive (expense) income i N/NSIEEYEPN el
attributable to owners of the Company 2HE (X)W (25,003) 90,424
Total comprehensive (expense) BB IR FEIE RS
income attributable to the Eha2m(AY) RassE
non-controlling interests of the KLHL (10,317) 40,021
Total comprehensive (expense) income B IRAIEITE RS
attributable to the non-controlling EnEE () KkamiesE
interests of KBCF (4,839) 28,016
Total comprehensive income attributable to 32258 $fSE &I FT & A 7)
the non-controlling interests of KBCF’s IR MR FEAG
subsidiary SEWELATE 623 5,070
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEFEE2E(FAR)WamEsE
for the year (39,536) 163,531
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3 1~ F&EASERIMEB A 7 2
of a KBCF’s subsidiary PR b R 2 IR B (3,356) (3,208)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KA ZETRIR B AT ER 122,923 120,499
Net cash outflow from investing activites & %I & R L FEE (17,811) (43,837)
Net cash outflow from financing activites ~ FE& /EZENIR &R IF5E (3,356) (3,208)
Net cash inflow B mAFEE 101,756 73,454
—E-\FFR
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254 KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 8 January 2019, the Group announced that it has entered into an
agreement in relation to the acquisition of the entire interests in certain
subsidiaries (the “Target Companies”) from Hallgain Investments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the

48. MEHBEEREIR

R-ZZE—AE—ANR AEEEMH
Rl AAEE—REXERESR
B EAHME R A Hallgain Investments
Limited gEEE FHBARI([BZRA]])

Group, for a consideration of HK$909,750,000. The target companies MWEE gD - AME /? 909,750,000 7&
are property holding companies and owns certain investment TC © E FOARIRIER DR - RS
properties in Hong Kong. BEETRED -

49. AR 7z B8R K &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

49.

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

CE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets SEREBEE
Properties, plant and equipment M - BE REE = -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIE 1,493,556 1,459,316
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 1,059,222
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE S BT BB A R R E 11,081,379 8,438,160
Equity instrument at fair value through LA AR ABRE
profit or loss BT A 127,423 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other BAFEFAHM
comprehensive income TEBENERTA 840,548 -
13,542,906 10,956,698
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H b FEUBR TR 225,978 197,130
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Dy NGIE O 20,419,707 17,684,321
Tax recoverable AT EI R IR 505 -
Bank balances RITHERR 225,841 305,008
20,872,031 18,186,459
Current liabilities BB E
Other payables H b FEFBR K 651,754 1,083,670
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A R K8 11,174,282 11,024,807
Bank borrowings — amount due within one year {758 — —ERFIH 2 %18 1,331,771 1,286,215
13,157,807 13,344,692
Net current assets MEEEFE 7,714,224 4,841,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  49. 7&K T Z B i #k 0 & 6
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY CETELC D
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
Total asset less current liabilities BELBERREAE 21,257,130 15,798,465
Non-current liabilities SEREAE
Bank borrowings — amount due after one year  $R4 7188 — — 14 B #2218 12,984,902 7,766,675
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG E O] 2,003,434 1,897,234
14,988,336 9,663,909
6,268,794 6,134,556
Capital and reserves B&AS 2 G
Share capital ik 108,315 106,645
Reserves (Note) & (B aE) 6,160,479 6,027,911
6,268,794 6,134,556
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256 ' KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR MIEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 49. AA T Z BB R B £
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY R EEY

(continued)
Note: BfE -
Capital Share Investment

Share redemption options  revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BXEE EEBRE REEM
B AR5 E (-] it it REEF #aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET BT THET TET FEL

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E—tF—A—RAziEH 4,652,528 1,911 275,459 (31,687) 596,559 5,494,770
Profit for the year AEEHF - - - - 1226632 1,226,632
Net changes arising from available-for- ARHEREEEZ

sale investments (Note a) 28)FE (fiTa) - - - 43,676 - 43,676
Total comprehensive income for the year A E 2 ENZHEE - - - 43676 1,226,632 1,270,308

Issue of new shares from exercise of BB M TR

share options 1,214,004 - (276,035) - - 937,969
Recognition of equity-settled RS EENR O AR

share-based payments - - 3,136 - - 3,136
Final dividend for the year ended 31 BE_Z-—RF+-A=1+—H

December 2016 FFEZRBRE - - - - (726,880)  (726,880)
Special final dividend for the year ended ~ B E-Z—~E+-HA=+—H

31 December 2016 IFEE 2 RIRER S - - - - (811,520)  (311,520)
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 BE-T—tF+-A=+—H

December 2017 IFFEE 2R HRE - - - - (639,872) (639,872

1,214,004 - (272,899 - (1,678,272 (737,167)

Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+-A=+—B2z#&#H 5866532 1,911 2,560 11,989 144,919 6,027,911
Adjustments due to adopting new R ERIEH B R

standards - - - (16,747) 16,747 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Eﬂ%ﬂﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ

(continued)

Note: (continued)

Share
premium

HK$'000
BT

Capital
redemption
reserve

g o]

e
HK$'000
TR

Share
options
reserve

BRBRE
ke
HK$'000
g

Investment
Retained
profits

revaluation
reserve
REEfR
1]
HK$'000

Total

REET
HK$'000
TET THET

BE
HK$'000

Balance of 1 January R=ZZE—-\F—A—RHZ

2018 (Restated) wer(gE) 5,866,532 1,911 2,560 (4,758) 161,666 6,027,911
Profit for the year ZK Ea - - - - 2270320 2,270,320
Net changes arising from debt instruments &2 T A H 2 E U #)

through at FVTOCI (Note b) Ei%IEIFEZ“@J)%TE(WE?b) - - - (85,644) - (85,644)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEEEE(EH)

income for the year gyt - - - (85,644) 2,270,320 2,184,676
Issue of new shares from exercise of IEE L BREM TS

share options 208,371 - (2,560) - - 205,811
Recognition of equity-settled R EREEMRNO T T

share-based payments - - - - . _
Final dividend for the year ended 31 BE-T—+tF+-A=+—H

December 2017 IFFEZ KBRS - - - - (1,066,452)  (1,066,452)
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 BE-T-\F+=-A=t+—H

December 2018 IFFEZPHRS - - - - (649,891) (649,891)
Special interim dividend for the year BE-ZE—-\E+-A=1+—H

ended 31 December 2018 IFEEZSRIRERE - - - - (641,576)  (541,676)

208,371 - (2,560) - (2257919  (2,052,108)

Balance at 31 December 2018 - \G+-_R=+—Hz& 6,074,903 1,911 - (90,402 174,067 6,160,479

Notes: s -

(@) Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of gain (@) AL EREELANEHFERRE
on fair value changes amounting to HK$159,427,000, gain on disposal 159,427,000 7L A FEZ B W= -
amounting to HK$130,007,000 and impairment loss amounting to 130,007,000 7 7T H & FT 15 W =5 &
HK$14,256,000 14,256,000/ 7T EEE

(b) Net change arising from debt instruments through at FVTOCI represents (0) RATEFAREMEENENEF TR
loss on fair value in debt instruments amounting to HK$85,644,000 B4 2 B8 F{EHE85,644,00078 TLIE

BERTEEE
- N\FFHK
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following tables set out the Group’s material properties held for AEBFESEKEEMEINNTER
investment:

Group’s interest

GFA (m?) rEEFEER
Location Existing use Tenure BB 2018 2017
ith 2 ERAR FHER (EHXK) =B-—N\FE —ZT—+F
(%) (%)
Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun, Office Medium term lease 33,000 100% 100%
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong BFE R HAFE A
BB BAPMILREIREEKRE
One Aldgate, No. 1 Aldgate, London, Office Freehold 5,000 100% 100%
EC3N1AA, United Kingdom BEIE KAEERE
88 to 93 Fenchurch Street, Office Freehold 8,000 71% 69%
5 and 7 Carlisle Avenue and BT KAEERE

Part of Saracens Head Yard,
London, EC3M 4ST, United Kingdom

Moor Place, Fore Street, Office Freehold 21,500 100% 100%
London EC2Y 5BJ HEFiE KAERE

Shanghai Modern Plaza, Office Medium term lease 17,000 100% 100%
369 Xian Xia Road, Changning District, 5 =1& b HARE HA

Shanghai, the PRC*
B LT R R L EEE3695

EERAES
Guangzhou Dongzhao Building, Shop, Office Medium term lease 91,000 100% 100%
No. 515 Dong Feng Central Road, i =2FE hHFEE

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Privince, the PRC*

FR B R N T S [ SR R AR B 5155%
BNEBAE

Zhanfeng Commercial Building, Shop, Office Medium term lease 72,000 100% 100%
Zhujiang New Town 1-3, i SFE  FRHIFEE
Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*
Bl E R BN TR0 [
BROLETI-BH R R I i AR

Shanghai Kingboard Plaza Phase |, Shop, Office Medium term lease 297,000 100% 100%
224 Xin Jing Road, Changning District, 4 @ BFi# R ERFE B
Shanghai, the PRC*

B T RERITNEH2245%
CEREES

Huagiao Kingboard Plaza Phase |, Shop, Office Medium term lease 178,000 100% 100%
Kunshan City, Jiangsu SOHO & Hotel A HAFHER
Province, the PRC* B BFE

RENTIERERILM SOHO B &

TEfREES 8
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following tables set out the Group's material properties under AEBFEFERERMEINNTE
development:

Approximate
percentage of
completion Year of
as at the date of expected Gross floor Group’s interest
this report  completion area (m?) rEEEAEER
Location HEARHERAH S MmESmEE  Expected use 2018 2017
2 IETERBA AR RIFE (£HK) g “B-N\F C—EtF
(%) (%) (%)
Nansha Kingboard Plaza, 70% 2019 110,000  Shops, & SOHO 100% 100%
East of Fenghuang Main Road, %% kSOHO

West of Power Supply Bureau,
Nansha District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*
HEEREBNTEYEEABUR -
HERAUPPRZERS

Kau To Project, Sha Tin Town 50% 2019 30,000  Residential 68% 68%
Lot No. 579, Area 56A, Kau To Shan, FE
Sha Tin, New Territories

RV LA S6ARES TSR S
ER

Huagiao Kingboard Garden Phase V, 50% 2019 180,000  Residential 1% 69%
Guixi Road, Huagjao District, =
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC*
HENT &S BILMIER R ARSI R R
BRERIEETH

Kunshan Development Zone 80% 2019 151,000  Shops & Residential 100% 100%
Kingboard Yu Garden Phase |, BEHREE
South of Bai Shi Pu River,
West of Tai Hu Road,
Development District, Kunshan City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC*
REIIHERIITRER
BOBTEIRANRLREE
BERTEE -8

Kunshan Centre 17% 2020-2028 1,111,000  Shops, Offices 75% 75%
South of Zhong Hua, & SOHO
Yuan Road, West of % - BT RSOHO
Huang Shan Road,

Development District, Kunshan City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC*

BIUFL - REITEERIITRER
R EREILARR

* denotes English translation of Chinese addresses in the PRC for identification * AR E 2 BB RE QR g
purposes only
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

RESULTS

260

KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=1t—HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mFE ZT—HF —E-N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FH&T AT THT FH&xT

(RES EE)) (RES EIEN)) (RESEWES)] (RESEWE))

(g =) (Fe s i) (g sEa) €
Revenue B 36,259,842 33,134,282 36,103,078 43,371,270 45,994,419
Profit before taxation MR TR AT A 3,513,621 2,522,559 7,237,226 8,365,361 9,121,910
Income tax expense FRiSHifE (692,615) (569,464)  (1,075,209)  (1,531,177)  (2,051,710)
Profit for the year IR [k A 2,821,006 1,953,095 6,162,017 6,834,184 7,070,200

Attributable to: FE(H1DEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIESYEUN 2,536,800 1,650,323 5,026,831 5,593,434 6,075,760
Non-controlling interests FEFE R RE A 284,206 302,772 1,135,186 1,240,750 994,440
2,821,006 1,953,095 6,162,017 6,834,184 7,070,200
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE

At 31 December
Rt=A=+—~
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T—mNF —ZE—HF ZZT—AF T—tF =ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FE T
Total assets BEEME 75,632,742 72,920,997 76,420,553 88,294,383 94,430,339
Total liabilities afEeE (33,659,552) (31,580,270) (32,467,881) (34,570,663) (39,797,068)
41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672 53,723,720 54,633,271
Equity attributable to ViN/NCIE= =N
owners of the Company FE(G MR 35,676,308 35,246,168 37,587,004 46,039,519 47,332,985
Non-controlling interests VIR 6,296,882 6,094,559 6,365,668 7,684,201 7,300,286
41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672 53,723,720 54,633,271
Note:  Interest income from debt instruments and dividend income from equity instruments MieE © DAERTAEAMA - S RBEMNESE TAZF)

which were previously included in other income, gains and losses have been

reclassified to revenue to conform with current year's presentation.
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KINGBOARD HOLDINGS LIMITED

23/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong
EEFAYHAMZRE=REEAE -1+

Tel B3 © (852) 2605 6493 Fax f8H& : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail EE : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #3831t : http://www.kingboard.com



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	董事及高級管理人員之資歷
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	集團物業資料
	財務概要
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


